
Kermit Williams, District 7 
President 
Randy Carter, District 4 
President Pro Tern 

PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

Patrice Waterman, District 1 
George Williams, District 2 
Mary Pietila, District 3 
Gloria Miller, District 5 
Dr. Doris Taylor Burks, District 6 

It is this Council's mission "To serve the citizens of Pontiac by co,iunitting to help provide an enhanced quality of life 
for its residents, fostering the vision of a Jami ly-ji-iendly community that is a great place to live, work and play. " 

STUDY SESSION 
January 14, 2020 

6:00P.M. 
134th Session of the 10th Council 

Call to order 

Roll Call 

Authorization to Excuse Councilmembers 

Amendments to and Approval of the Agenda 

Approval of the Minutes 
1. January 7, 2020 

Public Comment 

Resolutions 
City Council 

Garland S. Doyle, M.P.A. 
Interim City Clerk 

2. Resolution to appoint Harold Hanis, Linda Watson and Bobbie Yates to the Board of Review and Mattie 
Lasseigne shall serve as an alternate. 

3. Resolution for Friends of Murphy Park 

4. Resolution to require that all Planning Commission recommendations that require final action and or Pontiac 
City Council approval, must be placed on the Pontiac City Council's agenda within twenty-one (21) days from 
the date the applicant was provided a recommendation by the Planning Commission. 

Mayor's Office 
5. Resolution to appoint Mr. Dan Ringo as the Director of Public Works for the City of Pontiac. 

Planning 
6. Resolution to approve the Specially Designated Distributer (SDD) Class C 'Bistro' License on behalf of the 

petitioner Fillmore 13 Brewery, and that notice of approval be sent to the Michigan Liquor Control 
Commission for consideration. 

7. Resolution to approve a Zoning Map Amendment request [ZMA 19-08] for 7 & 9 Glenwood Avenue also 
known as Parcel Numbers 64-14-21-383-011 & 012, to amend the cunent site zoning C-1 Local Business to 
C-3 Conidor Commercial and M-1 Light Manufacturing with CR Conditional Zoning and create a Medical 
Marihuana Overlay District [MMOD] to allow medical marihuana provisioning and non-provisioning facilities 
to locate within the MMOD. Additionally, the CR Conditional Rezoning is effective for a period not less than 
twenty years. 



8. Resolution to approve a Zoning Map Amendment request [ZMA 19-12] for Parcel No. 64-14-18-351-017 to 
amend the current site zoning C-4 Suburban Commercial to C-3 Corridor Commercial with CR Conditional 
Rezoning. 

9. Resolution to approve a Zoning Map Amendment request [ZMA 19-13] for 676 Cesar Chavez also known as 
Parcel No. 64-14-19-429-013 to amend the current site zoning C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor 
Commercial with CR Conditional Rezoning. 

10. Resolution to approve a Zoning Map Amendment request [ZMA 19-14] for 114 W. Walton Blvd also known 
as Parcel No. 64-14-08-380-027 to amend the current site zoning C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor 
Commercial with CR Conditional Rezoning. 

11. Resolution to approve a Zoning Map Amendment request [ZMA 19-15] for 108. W. Walton Blvd also known 
as Parcel No. 64-14-08-380-028 to amend the current zoning C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor Commercial 
with CR Conditional Rezoning. 

12. Resolution to approve a Zoning Map Amendment request [ZMA 19-16] for 228 W. Walton Blvd also known 
as Parcel No. 64-14-08-354-010 to amend the current zoning C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor Commercial 
with CR Conditional Rezoning. 

13. Resolution to approve Mayoral recommendation to reappoint the following individuals to the Planning 
Commission: Mona Parlove for a term ending June 30, 2021 and Dayne Thomas for a term ending June 30, 
2022 (This item was deferred from the November 26, 2019 Council Meeting.) 

14. Resolution to reappoint the following individuals to the City's Planning Commission: Lucy Payne for a term 
ending June 30, 2023 and E. Ashley Fegley for a term ending June 30, 2022. (This item was deferred from the 
December 10, 2019 Council Meeting) 

15. Resolution to schedule a Public Hearing for the City of Pontiac 2020-2024 Parks & Recreation Master Plan on 
January 21, 2020 beginning at 6:30 p.m. at the Council Chambers in Pontiac City Hall, 47450 Woodward 
Avenue, Pontiac, Michigan 48342. 

Adjournment 





January 7, 2020 Formal 

Call to order 

Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council 

133rd Session of the Tenth Council 

A Formal Meeting of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order in City Hall, Tuesday, 
January 7, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. by Council President Kermit Williams. 

Invocation - Pastor Douglas Jones 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 
Members Present: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, G. Williams and K. Williams. 
Mayor Waterman was present. 
Clerk announced a quorum. 

Authorization to Excuse Councilmembers 

Amendments to the Agenda 
20-1 Motion to add Planning Commission Recommendation of Rezoning of Glenwood 
Plaza after approval of minutes. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson 
Pietila. 

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, G. Williams, K. Williams and Carter 
No:None 
Motion Carried. 

20-2 Motion to move public comment after Planning Commission recommendation of 
Rezoning and reduce presentations time limit to seven (7) minutes. Moved by Councilperson Taylor
Burks and second by Councilperson G. Williams. 

Ayes: Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, G. Williams, K. Williams, Carter and Miller 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

Motion to schedule Public Hearing for Parks & Recreation. Moved by Councilperson 
Pietila and no second. Motion Fails. 

Motion to defer item #7 (Resolution to award the Professional Engineering and 
Architectural Services for the Phoenix Center to IDS for possible violation of Opening Meetings 
Act.) Moved by Councilperson Pietila and no second. Motion Fails. 

1 



January 7, 2020 Fonnal 

Approval of the Amended Agenda 
20-3 Approval of Amended Agenda. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by 
Councilperson Miller. 

Ayes: G. Williams, K. Williams, Cmier, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks and Watennan 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

Approval of the Minutes 
20-4 Approve meeting minutes for December 30, 2019. Moved by Councilperson 
Waterman and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: K. Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and G. 
Williams 

No: None 
Motion Carried. 

Add On- Discussion regarding the Planning Commission Recommendation of rezoning of 
Glenwood Plaza. 
Vern Gustafsson, Planning Manager stated that he was not prepared to present. 

Public Comment 
Five (5) individuals addressed the body during public comments. 

20-5 Motion to give Mattie Hatchett Point of Privilege. Moved by Councilperson G. 
Williams and second by Councilperson Pietila. 

Ayes: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, G. Williams and K. Williams 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

Closed Session 
20-6 Resolution to go into Closed Session. Moved by Councilperson Waterman and second 
by Councilperson Pietila. 

Whereas, Michigan Open Meetings Act Section 8(h), MCL 15.268(h), allows a public body to go into 
closed session to consider material exempt from discussion or disclosure by state or federal statute; and 
Whereas, Michigan Freedom of information Act Section 13(g) exempts from disclosure records subject to 
the attorney-client privilege; 
Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved by the Pontiac City Council that it recess into closed session to discuss 
an attorney-client privileged memorandum regarding the Request for Proposals (RFP) for the Phoenix 

2 



January 7, 2020 Formal 

Center, infonnation exempt from disclosure by statute, specifically an attorney client privileged 
memorandum exempt from disclosure pursuant to MCL 15.243(1) (g). 

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, G. Williams, K. Williams and Carter 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

20-7 Motion to come out of Closed Session. Moved by Councilperson Waterman and second 
by Councilperson Pietila. 

Ayes: Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, G. Williams, K. Williams, Cmier and Miller 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

Special Presentations (Presentations are limited to 7 minutes.) 
20-8 Suspend the rules. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson 
Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Tylor-Burks, Waterman, G. Williams, K. Williams, Catier, Miller and Pietila 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

20-9 Defer special presentation #3 (Park Place Little City) for two weeks. Moved by 
Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Waterman, G. Williams, K. Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Taylor-Burks 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

Parks & Recreation Master Plan Update and Scheduling of Public Hearing. 
Presentation Presenter: Donovan Smith, City Planner 
**Council President would like the status of Hidden River Park Ownership** 

2019 City Audit Highlights 
Presentation Presenter: Jane Bais DiSessa, Deputy Mayor. 

Recognition of Elected Officials- H. Bill Maxey, Pontiac Library Treasurer 

Agenda Address- None 

Communication 
Office of the City Clerk 
Medical Marihuana Application Process Status Update 

3 



January 7, 2020 Fmmal 

The Interim City Clerk gave an update on the process and announced that the Office of 
the City Clerk has its own website http://pontiaccityclerk.com 

Resolution 
Department of Public Works (DPW) 
Resolution to award the Professional Engineering and Architectural Services for the 
Phoenix Center to IDS and to authorize the Mayor to sign contract in the amount of 
$659,000 and a Not to Exceed Cost of $13,000 for Reimbursable expenditures. Moved 
by Councilperson Pietila and no second. Failed. 

Mayoral Monthly Reports 
Monthly Check Register 
(The check registers for November 29, 2019; December 6, 13 and 20, 2019 have been 
posted on the website and are attached.) 

Staff Changes Report 

City Credit Card Statement 
(The December credit card statement was not submitted by the Mayor's Office.) 

Council President Williams stated that the Council would receive the monthly 
reports. 

Mayor, Clerk and Council Closing Comments 
Mayor Deirdre Waterman, Interim City Clerk Garland Doyle, Councilwoman Doris Taylor-Burks, 
Councilwoman Mary Pietila, Councilman George Williams, Councilwoman Patrice Waterman, Council 
Pro-tern Randy Carter and Council President Kermit Williams made closing comments. 

Adjournment 
Council President Kermit Williams adjourned the meeting at 8:32 p.m. 

4 

GARLAND S. DOYLE 
INTERIM CITY CLERK 





Pontiac City Council Resolution 

WHEREAS, section 5 .402 of the Pontiac City Charter requires the City Council to appoint three electors 

of the City annually, to the Board of Review before the first meeting; and, 

WHEREAS, in addition to the charter requirement of being an elector, all members of the Board of Review 

must attend and receive training. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Pontiac City Council appoints Harold Ha1Tis, Linda 

Watson and Bobbie Yates to the Board of Review and Mattie Lasseigne shall serve as an alternate. 





City of Pontiac Resolution for the Friends of Murphy Park 

WHEREAS, it is with warm and sincere gratitude that we recognize the Friends of Murphy Park; 
organized in 1994 in the Recreation Department when the Adopt a Park program was established, under 
the leadership of Maurice (Butch) Finnegan and Portia Fields-Anderson; and, 

WHEREAS, sanctioned by the City of Pontiac, a liaison was formed with the Mayor, City Council, 
District Seven Citizens District Council and organizers Jean Sheppard, Sally McAllister, and Charlie 
"June" Adams who answered the call to adopt Murphy Park and subsequently organized the Friends of 
Murphy Park, whose mission was to: enhance the quality of life for youth with quality and relevant 
recreation programs; and most notably for operating a structured summer playground program that has 
operated for 13 years serving thousands of youth of all abilities and diversities with activities in nature, 
fitness, wellness, personal development, special events, cultural arts, enrichment, drama, dance, music, 
art, sports, field trips , daily lunch, and provided summer job opportunities for youth ages 14 to 21; and, 

WHEREAS, the Friends of Murphy Park continued to flourish with the support of its friends, partners 
and collaborators: Welcome Baptist Church, Michigan Works, OHLSA, DNR, Take One Programs, 
DTE, Forgotten Harvest, Unique Foods, Meals on Wheels, Pontiac DPW, Better Pontiac, Night Riders, 
Pontiac Creative Art Center, Oakland County Parks, Huron Clinton Metropolitan Authority, Nicks 
Comer, Save-a-Lot, Elam Brothers, Habitat for Humanity, Welcome Baptist Church, St. Vincent Church, 
Woodside Bible, Take One Programs, Pontiac Horse Shoe Pitchers, Leona Patterson, Mattie McKinney
Hatchett, Chuck Johnson, Kermit Williams, Loretta Crisp, Cheryl Morway, Attorney Earlene Baggett, 
Dave Coleman, Leonard Smith, Willie Martinez, Butch Finnegan, Duck McConner, Travis, Dennis 
Williams, Yohannes Bolds, Everette Seay, Curtis Cheeks, Shardae Johnson, Pat Franks, Troy Craft, 
Deborah Vaden, Margaret Yellen, Regina Press, Mark Holland, Maria and Esther Jimenez, Maria 
Bermudez, Rip Peterson, Brenda and Randy Carter, Ramone "Cornbread" Johnson, parents, City of 
Pontiac Mayors and members of the City Council, and, 

WHEREAS, the Friends of Murphy Park has been recognized by the National Recreation and 
Association Ethnic Minority Society and the Michigan Recreation and Parks Association Community 
Service A ward. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Pontiac City Council recognizes the Friends of 
Murphy Park for 25 years of service to the City of Pontiac and more specifically the Murphy Park 
Community, and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this honor be bestowed to current officers Queenie Jones
Hawkins, Joe Woods, Gloria Hill, and Portia Fields-Anderson. 

Kermit Williams, President 

Randy Carter, President Pro-Tem Patrice Waterman, Councilwoman 

George Williams, Councilman Mary Pietila, Councilwoman 

Gloria Miller, Councilwoman Doris Taylor-Burks, Councilwoman 





Pontiac City Council Resolution 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission is tasked with the responsibility of coordinating, intergovernmental 
cooperation, zoning administration, infrastructure, land division, subdivision reviews and capital 
improvement planning; and, 

WHEREAS, state law mandates that the Planning Commission make and approve a master plan as a 
guide for future development of the City and make careful and comprehensive surveys and studies of 
present conditions and future growth of the City with regard to its relation to neighboring jurisdictions; 
and, 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviews all development and re-development proposals 
including site plans, planned unit developments, subdivisions and special use pennits; and, 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission forwards recommendations for street or alley vacation, zoning 
amendments, the layout of redevelopment or rehabilitation of blighted areas, the removal, relocation, 
widening, narrowing, abandonment, change of use, or extension of streets, grounds, open spaces, buildings, 
utilities, or other facilities to the City Council for final action. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that all Planning Commission recommendations that require 
final action and or Pontiac City Council approval, must be placed on the Pontiac City Council's agenda 
within twenty-one (21) days from the date the applicant was provided a recommendation by the Planning 

Commission. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all other outstanding Planning Commission recommendations which 
require final action and or City Council approval, must also be placed on the Pontiac City Council's agenda 

within twenty-one (21) days from the date of passage of this resolution. 





DR. DEIRDRE WATERMAN 

MAYOR 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

To: Honorable City Council President Kermit Williams and City Council 
From: Mayor Waterman 
CC: Jane Bais DiSessa, Deputy Mayor; Anthony Chubb, City Attorney; Garland Doyle, Interim City 

Clerk, and l<iearha Davidson, HR Manager 
DATE: January 9, 2020 
RE: Recommendation to Appoint Dan Ringo as DPW Director for the City of Pontiac. 

Since June 3, 2019, Dan Ringo, has served as Deputy DPW Director for the Department Public Works. Dan 
has over 20 years of experience in operations management. He obtained both his Juris Doctor and 
Bachelors of Technology and Interdisciplinary Studies from Wayne State University. A United States Air 
Force Veteran, Dan Ringo's combined education and experience, has been an asset to the department. A 
copy of his resume is attached. 

Dan Ringo's work performance has been exemplary. In accordance with Article IV, Chapter 1, Section 
4.106, it is my recommendation that Dan Ringo is formally appointed as the Director of Public Works 
(DPW) for the City of Pontiac. 

As such, it gives me great pleasure to recommend the following resolution: 

WHEREAS, the Mayor, in accordance with Article IV, Chapter 1, Section 4.106 appoints Dan Ringo as DPW 

Director for the Department of Public Works; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Article IV, Chapter 1, Section 4.106 such appointment is subject to approval 
by Council; and 

WHEREAS, Dan Ringo has the credentials, experience, and professionalism necessary to be 

the DPW Director; and 

WHEREAS, Dan Ringo has served as Deputy Director of Public Works since June 3, W19; 

Now, therefore, be ft resolved in accordance with appointment procedures provided by law and the City 
Charter, Dan Ringo is formally appointed, effective immediately, as Director of Public Worker for the City 

of Pontiac. 

Attachment 

47450 Woodward Avenue• Pontiac, Michigan 48342 
Direct: (248) 758-3181 "Appointments: (248) 758-3326 • Fax: (248) 758-3292 

E-mail: DWaterman@pontiac.mi.us • www.pontiac.mi.us 
https: / /www.facebook.com/pontiacmayor / 



Background: 

Dan Ringo, J.D. 
Chief Executive Officer 

Dan is a United States Air Force veteran where his peacetime mission was as 
a heating, ventilation, air-conditioning and refrigeration journeyman. Leading 
a squadron of Air Force emergency engineering forces, Mr. Ringo studied 
mechanical and electrical engineering while serving in the military and went 
on further to study law. 

Dan's experience and background covers both blue and white collar jobs in 
both private and public sectors. He has immense experience in negotiating 
multi-million dollar contracts of various natures. Dan also possess a Juris 

. Doctor degree which he earned while working full-time managing a $33 
million dollar and fourteen million square foot account for a multinational 
billion-dollar organization. Dan also developed the very first Chicago Public 
Schools (CPS) Integrated Facilities Management (IFM) Pilot program where 
he served as VP of facility operations. The knowledge and experience he 
gained through law school allowed him to think critically and act quickly 
ultimately becoming a driving force of any team. He has successfully 
maneuvered his way in especially intense and difficult labor and negotiation 
situations that he credits to his legal experience. It has helped with virtually 
any type of endeavor. It has given Dan a panoramic and broad professional 
view that will help produce better and more informed results." 

As Chief Executive Officer, Dan Ringo holds leadership responsibility for 
Ringo Services, including over-all strategy and operations as well as strategic 
planning, client· relationship management, customer satisfaction, sales 
leadership, employee development/retention/recruitment, and performance 
management. 

Professional Experience: 
Ringo Services, Inc 
Chief Executive Officer (March 2016- Present) 

• Founded company in 2016 and by year two grew company to over $6million dollars in revenue and a 
diversified portfolio. 

• Established an incredibly strong and diverse leadership team to execute and offer an innovative service 
offering 

• Responsible for client, partner, and community relations 
• Ensures quality of services provided follows client expectations 

• Holds ultimate responsibility for over-all account performance 
• Provides executive leadership to all operational, human resources, IT, and financial functions 
• Final decision maker for Ringo Services regarding contractual matters, allocation ofresources, and operational 

issues 

REDICO / Continuum Services / American House 
Chief Operating Officer (Aug 2015 -June 2016) 

• Complete oversight for Continuum Services' operations including three operational divisions and business 
development, accounting, human resources and administrative support 

• Reduced anticipated losses in Exterior Services division by 50% for 2015 
• Secured agreements with long-term customers to stabilize revenue expectations 
• Increased internal client sales with securing American House preventive maintenance contract 
• Implemented and standardized processes for Key Performance Indicator measurements and Requests for 

Proposals 
• For 2016, exceeded sales revenue in Exterior Services by $300,000 

Sodexo / SodexoMAGIC 
VP-Facility Operations (Aug 2012-Aug 2015) 

• Strong experience and proven success with P &L accounts with total managed volume of $50M+ 
• Led team of professionals that developed $8.5M in savings for FY15 



• Managed over 10,000,000 gross SF and 150 school buildings within the Detroit and Chicago Public Schools 
• Consistently exceeded net income projections every year 
• Led a full Integrated Facility Management (IFM) program from start-up to implementation with a span of 

control covering custodial, engineering, maintenance, and grounds operations including managing service 
J contracts with elevator, pest control and fire system vendors 

• Attained 90% completion on corrective and preventive maintenance for critical assets 
• Consistently maintained customer satisfaction quality ratings above 90% 
• Created safety program that has netted several consecutive periods without incident 
• Delivered APP A Level 2 Qua!lty for buildings managed under portfolio for Chicago Public Schools 
• Created and implemented innovative operational processes which provided and improved transparency and _ 

employee/manager accountability 
" Proven leader in developing and cultivating key client relationships to foster smooth and seamless. contract 

administration 

Powerlink Facility Management Services 
Director of Operations (Mar 2011 - Aug 2012) 

• Responsible for the over-all direction and maintenance of Detroit Public School Facility Services including 
Engineering, Custodial, Skilled Trades, and Site Management providing non-instructional support services for 
over 14,000,000 SF and approximately 140 facilities with the Detroit Public Schools 

• Created and implemented operational programs that reduced operational costs, increased productivity, and 
improved client interaction and satisfaction 

• Responsible for staffing levels and assignments to ensure maximum productivity and minimal over- hour 
accumulation 

• Managerial responsibility for 200 employees, 4 Area Managers, and 6 skilled trades foremen 
• Provided and presented monthly progress reports of the Detroit Public Schools/Sodexo Facilities Joint Venture 
• Facilitated an improved operational relationship through client planning meetings with both the Detroit Public 

Schools Chief Operating Officer and Facility Operations Executive Director and Sodexo's Vice President of 
Operations 

• Interpreted and enforced contractual agreement between Sodexo and the Detroit Public Schools 
• Interpreted and enforced collective bargaining agreements between Powerlink Facility Management Services 

and the IUOE Local 324 and Sodexo and the Greater Detroit Building Trades Union, including disciplinary 
actions and contract provision interpretations 

• Created and issued reports to Executive Level Management regarding budget, personnel, staff and facility 
operations 

International Union of Operating Engineers Local 324, Bloomfield Twp. Michigan 
Executive Director I Recording Corresponding Secretary (Aug 2009 - Mar 2011) 

• Central figure for the successful implementation and merger of IUOE Local 547 into IUOE Local 324. Tiris 
merger of Local Operating Engineer Unions impacted 20,000 employees across Michigan 

• Directed, managed, and facilitated staff operations for Local 324's Stationary Division comprised of two 
directors, five business representatives serving approximately 6,000 members statewide, and 225 collective 
bargaining agreements 

Detroit Public Schools 
Facility Manager/ChiefEngineer (Sept 1997- Dec. 2008) 

• Overall management and supervision for physical plant 9perations for individual school operations 
• Managed custodial and engineering staff 
• Ensured a clean, safe and healthy learning environment for staff and students 
• Led energy and sustainability efforts in the school 

United States Air Force, Maxwell Air Force Base Alabama 
Heating, Ventilation, Air-Conditioning and Refrigeration Journeyman (Nov 1993- 1997) 

• Maintained, serviced, installed, and operated various HV AC/R equipment. 
• Member of the Prime Base Emergency Engineering Force (Prime B.E.E.F.) 

o Ready to deploy anywhere in the world to support wartime mission 





CITY OF PONTIAC 
Department of Building Safety & Planning 

Planning Division 
47450 Woodward Ave• Pontiac, Michigan 48342 

Telephone: (248) 758-2800 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

' HONORABLE MAYOR, COUNCIL PRESIDENT AND CITY COUNCIL 

VERN GUSTAFSSON- PLANNING MANAGER 
DONOVAN SMITH - CITY PLANNER 
THROUGH THE OFFICE OF DEPUTY MAYOR, JANE BAIS-DISESSA 

FILMORE 13 BREWERY - RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL OF REDEVELOPMENT LIQUOR 
'BISTRO' LICENSE 

JANUARY 8, 2020 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac City Council chooses to engage in PA 58, 1998, (MCL 436.1101 to 

436.2303} Se. 521(a}(l}(b) for the issuance and establishment of Redevelopment Liquor Licenses 

in a Tax Increment Financing District in accordance with Sec 521(a}(l}(b) of MCL 436.1101 to 

436.2303, 

Whereas, Filmore 13 Brewery, 7 S. Saginaw St. Suite D, has made petition for a Specially 

Designated Distributer (SDD} Class C 'Bistro' License, and whom meets eligibility requirements 

for licensure issuance under subsection Sec 521 (l}(b) and (6}(a-c) of MCL 436.1101 to 436.2303, 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac Planning Commission unanimously approved a recommendation at 

the December 4, 2019 meeting, that the Bistro Liqueur License for Filmore 13 Brewery be 

approved for issuance to the Pontiac City Council, 

Whereas, Filmore 13 Brewery, shall comply with the City of Pontiac Ordinance 2366 to Allow for 

Redevelopment Liquor Licenses and Conditions for Issuance and Operations of the petitioned 

Specially Designated Distributer (SDD} Class C 'Bistro' License and the MCL 436.1101 to 436.2303, 

Therefore it be resolved, that on January 14th, 2020, at the regularly schedule City Council 

meeting, City Council voted to approve the acceptance of the Specially Designated Distributer 

(SDD} Class C 'Bistro' License on behalf of the petitioner Fillmore 13 Brewery, and recommends 

this application be considered for approval by the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 



City of Pontiac 

Redevelopment Liquor License 
Planning Division Staff Review Assessment 

Application Review Date: October 25, 2019 

Applicant: Filmore 13 Brewery 

Contact Person: Lee Todd Phone: 248-977-3972 I Email: 
Business Name: FIimore 13 Brewery Address: 7 N Saginaw Ste D 

Type of Redevelopment License: 0 A-Hotel 
DB-Hotel 
[Z] Class C • Tavern 

Description of Business: 
Restaurant/Brewery with Sunday & Outdoor Sales 
Permits for Sale of Beer & Wine 

Documentation Submission 

[Z] Proof Of Ownership 

[Z] Detail Breakdown of Personal Property Investment 

[Z] City of Pontiac New License Application 

[Z] City of Pontiac Questionnaire 

[Z] Notarized Affidavit of Attempt to Secure Escrowed License 

[Z] Submission of Application Fee 

Eligibility Requirements 

Eligibility Requirements: [Z] Business is to be Licensed with eligible license area. 
(All Boxes Must be check to be eligible) Applicant has expended over $75,000 over the preceding 

[Z] 5 years or committed to the expenditure before the 
license is issued. 

[Z] Business engages in dining, entertainment, or recreation 
with a seating capacity of more than 50 persons. 

[Z] More than 50% of Business revenue is generated from 
food and non-alcoholic sales. 

License and Property Details 

Types of Liquor Sales [l] Beer [l] Wine JZL Spirits (Hard Liquor) 

New Construction Building D Yes [77 No 

Facility Currently Occupied [77 Yes D No 

Is the facility planning a renovation? D Yes [l] No 

Detailed Breakdown of Personal [l] Yes • No 
Investment Included: 

Value of Personal Investment: $194,800.00 

Assessors Assessment of Investment: $81,000 

Donovan Smith 10/25/2019 

Printed Staff Reviewer Name Date 

10/25/2019 

Signed Staff Reviewer Name Date 



6) 
i. Fillmore 13 Brewery will utilize the DOA Redevelopment License to further advance an 

already successful venture in Downtown Pontiac. Including a full range of spirits to our already 
unique craft brewery will open our doors to more general public and give us the opportunity to 
expand our clientele by widening our product selection. 

a. By introducing a full bar to our selection, we will be hiring extra serving and 

bar staff to help deliver our products in a professional and timely manner. 
b. Continuing on our path as an already solidified Pontiac business, we will utilize 

the license to help new concepts see our success in the city and help the growth of the 
Downtown District. 



81TY OF PON-TIAC APPLICATION FOR 
NEW LICENSES 

Date: CJ - / 5· - / J 
Instructions: This application must be completed and returned with a $150 application fee for each license 
before it can be considered. All answers must be typed or printed. Sign the completed form in ink and return to the City 
Clerk, 47450 Woodward Ave., Pontiac, Michigan 48342. 

MAKE ALL CHECKS OR MONEY ORDERS PAYABLE TO THE CITY OF PONTIAC, MICHIGAN. 

1. Applicant identification-all applicants 
Name of individual, partnership, corporation or 
limited liability company who will hold the license: 

~1L.1-n·,0e.~ \3 '?,i:i£we,i4--'-) L,L,(_, · 

Business Street Address: 

1- iJ' $A\::\ \ \'..\r,;v'.i -S\s l\) 
-~!y/State/Zip Code: / 

Cn.111\"IC. J tvl. l £-1 i '.s l.-1 '"J.-
Township: I 

2. Nature of Application - (Check all that apply) 

cl Retail Applicants 
• Manufacturer or Wholesale Applicants 

Contact Person Name: 

LA 11\\ '2-.Dl..:l "N\f\'--{ ,A 

Street Address: V 
i}. 0 '?, -t ~ "-J I i0~ \'l- -

City/State/Zip Code: / . 
Y'v\f\t..(J;-,/l 1?, Tt,0-.,1].St\·,,P / 'N\ \ Lj '{ DL\2.-l 
Business Phone No. Home Phone No. 
( ;}!-~) cq ".'.\' - 3"'\ °{ J-. (\{4--) ,9_to6 - t"-:'.\.-t,. \ 

3. Retail Applicants - (Please identify all permits being applied for with this license application} 
3a. Check Type of License 3b. Check Type of Permits 
• SOM W Sunday Sales 
• Class C • Add Bar 
• A-Hotel • Entertainment Sales 
• B-Hotel ·I'?{ Outdoor Sales 
• Tavern • Before / After Hours For: 
• Club 
D SOD 
-r/ Redevelopment 
o Other: 

4. New Manufacturer or Wholesale Applicants 
• Wine Maker • Manufacturer of Spirits • Outstate Seller of Mixed Spirit Drinks 
• Small Wine Maker • Industrial Manufacturer • Outstate Seller of Wine 
• Wine Maker Tasting Room • Warehouse • Outstate Seller of Beer 
• Micro Brewer • Brewpub • Other: ________ _ 
• Small Distiller 

. 6. Briefly describe the business, for example - Drug Store, Restaurant, Party Store, Wholesaler, Wine Maker, 

etc. ~--/:::~' \..J lZ..',f'.;; N~ / ·'6 ,'2...~Wc: '¼? .. >-l 



:i~~t~~ CITY OF PONTIAC REDEVELOPMENT LIQUOR LICENSE 
;~~f;ff PRE:..APPUCATION QUESTIONNAIRE 

Instructions to Applicants: If you are applying for a City of Pontiac Redevelopment Liqour License, within the 
Downtown Area this form must be completed prior to filling out the City of Pontiac New Liquor License 
Applicatiori Form. The new application form will not be accepted without a completed pre-application 
questionnaire. Please include copies of two pieces of personal identification. 

Please indicate, by checking YES or NO, if your establishment meets the following criteria. 

'l. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

Is the busJess to be licensed within the geographic boundaries of the City of Pontiac Downtown 
District?~ Yes _No (Please indicate proposed location on the attached map.) L . 

,::: 1 L..L-rY\cR..E:. I 3 ¢>R...<S~&£...'i L, ' L. , . . 
Complete name and address of business to be licensed -+-i,Jc,12-n-{ $A<!o\ 11'.)Aw -S,'E ID,7(:,k;T\l't'C/''\\ Ll ~;!,'-t::J.. 
Personal Property ID (for existing businesses) c~ L\ q ~ ~ co -- b 1 't ~ob~:. 

Applicants for development district licenses, must demonstrate to City of Pontiac and the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission (MLCC), at the time of investigation, that the amount expended for the 
rehabilitation or restoration of the building that houses the licensed premises shall be not less than 
$75,000 over a period of the preceding five years 6r a commitment for a capital investment of at least 
that amount in the building that houses the licensed premises, which must be expended before the 
issuance of the license. At the time of application, can your business demonstrate this requirement? 
✓Yes _No (Please attach supporting financial information for verification.) . 

Will the licensed business engage in dining, entertainment or recreation, that is open to the general 
public, with a seating capacity of not less than 50 persons? ✓ Yes _No (Please attach current or 
proposed floor plan that supports seating capacity.) 

Will the licensed business generate 50% or more of its revenue from food and non-alcoholic drink 
sales? J Yes _No · 

What type of on-premise sales are you interested in applying for? Check all that apply. (Checking the 
boxes does not guarant(;e award of any or all categories.) 
✓ Beer ./ Wine _✓_ !Spirits (hard liquor) 

Please describe (on an attached sheet) how your business will do the following, if issued a license: 
i. Prevent deterioration in the DOA district and promote economic growth by: 

a. creating new employment opportunities 
b. adding new tax value through the purchase of new equipment and/or building improvements 

ii. Represents a desired land use as determined by the City's area master plan and zoning 
requirements. 

iii. Contribute to the mix. of dining/drinking, entertainment and recreational existing establishments 
(describe unique characteristics) 

~/~ 
Signature of Applicant Date Printed Name 

If any of the above questions have been answered NO, the applicant is not eligible to apply for a Development District 
License as designated under Michigan State Law (Public Act 501 of 2006). Applicants that cannot meet the minimum 
criteria will not be considered by the City of Pontiac. Do NOT fill out an application. 
If all of the above questions have been answered YES, the applicant is eligible to apply for a Redevelopment Liqour 
License. The next step in the application process is to fill out the City of Pontiac application form. Attach this completed 
form to the application and submit with $150 application fee to the Pontiac City Clerk. 47 450 Woodward Ave, Pontiac, 
Ml 48342. Phone No. - 734-794-6140. A $600 license fee is due upon approval. 
To inquire about other licensing opportunities, including transfers of existing Class C licenses, please contact the 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission directly. All transferred licenses begin at the State level. MLCC On-Premises 
Ucensfng Division - 517-322-1400. 



7. This proposed licensed business will be owned by: (check one) 

✓rhe named liability company • Me as the individual owner D The named corp1xation 
The following partners (indicate limited partners with an "l" before their name) 
Partnership Information: (attach additional sheet if necessary) 
Name of Partners Home Address Telephone Number 

\_,'Aq \.-\ ?-ou,Y\¥\~A ~D:, .1-'1, v l)Jc bl<.. l S"i!'S., ".l ]._Go~ 1-1-0 \ 

j'I/\ 0£-Cr.'\?i Te, w1-vS1--h (J , '--\ '?t Y 4 

t-\ D l"'- 14\::..!) i\) I LL-\ r\iY\S ;U-\0\ l 5A.MD~6'1 \ki\ll.. 0--1..\~ \ '.3td- - <?C\C\ l 
Scv-n-\HE:,L,D M \ l 1-\i~.;J 3 

~ R" "' L lrJQ[¾ \rJ l 1...1.- 1A•V\-S "Se,e, ;\'.\,(;\).(:; _/ S::::,l:::. ~ '3 /)'J E:, .,) 

* All partners may be required to complete and submit additional information as part of the application review process, by 
completing this application applicant agrees to comply with any such requests. 

8. Personal Information - Individual Applicants and Partnership Members Only 
Date of Birth i \ ~ J. "'\.,, jC{<.,«:, (required to confirm applicant is over 21 years of age) 

Jf you are not a US Citizen - Are you a registered alien? iJ Yes • No Or, do you have a Visa? o Yes o No 
Full name of spouse: N l(: .. o L§'.. Lou. r/\ v>,-"-\ 'I\ 

Have you ever legally changed your name? • Yes...,/ No lfYes, from ______ to ____ _ 
Have you been known by other names? • Yes efNo List Names: ___________ _ 

Have you ever been convicted of a criminal offense, including alcohol related infractions (exclude traffic 
citations)? ; 
• Yes cl No If Yes, please list charge, date of conviction, location and disposition below. 
(Use additional sheet if necessary.) 
CHARGE DATE PLACE DESCRIPTION 

List your former occupations for the past 3 years: 
DATE (to/from) OCCUPATION EMPLOYER NAME AND ADDRESS 

tJ t>Pb1.JnW •o,6 \ D 
(\I\ \ i.jl5 'rj ..\ "c1--

I or my spouse previously held or now hold interest in the following licenses for sale of alcoholic beverages as 
sole licensee, partner or corporation: 

NAME OF LICENSE TYPE OF LICENSE LOCATION DATE 

Do you or your spouse hold any law enforcement powers including powers of arrest? • Yes ·-~ No 



9. Limited Partnership Applicants Only - is the limited partnership authorized to do business under the laws 
of Michigan? 

JYes • No Date authorized:_0_
1 

-] _1'--_I~/~· Ji_· _o_l "~,2 __ 

10. Corporate & Limited Liability Company Applicants Only -
Attach copy filed or proposed Articles of Incorporation, last annual repo1i/statement filed & attach copy of stock 
options. 

Corporate/LLC Name: Incorporation/Organization date: 
,.,.. 

1'6 i~,;;,.v0t=--~'-\ L,L.C:.., i,-11..L.MO<:l..~ bl I I . IL\ ;101 b. 

Incorporated/Organized in what State? Michigan Authorization date: 

"[v\ 16\·h ~'f-\r-l 0\ l \L\ l J_c\'.j 

Name, Address, Phone Number of Resident Agent: 

Le,~ \d--c1U/V\.C..Vf ~- S t"l-- '2--6 o ~ 77 c, I 
~ o ::> 7 f V \I\ c.. 'i) )'L. 

M.Aeo111_ bi Mt LJ"?t1 4 Lt 
(Check one of each) '19" Profit or • Nonprofit ef Public or • Private Corporation 
Corporation 
Date last annual report/statement filed with Michigan Corporation and Securities: 

Corporate Officers Name Address Phone Number 

President 

Vice-President 

Secretary 

Treasurer 

11. Corporations and Limited Liability Companies - List all persons, companies and other entities that 
hold or will hold stock interest or membership in applicant entity. 

Name Address Phone Number %Interest 
1. ________ ,.;___ __ 

2. __________ _ 

3. __________ _ 

4. __________ _ 

5. __________ _ 



·12. Denial of Application/Revocation of License 
(A) Have you, prior to this application, made application(s) for a similar or other license on premises other than 
described in this applicatign? 

• Yes ~.No 
If yes, please list date, place and disposition of such application(s). 

(B) Have you, prior to this application, been disqualified to receive approval for a license under the laws of the 
State of Michigan? 

• Yes 'liNo 
If yes, please explain. 

(C) Have you ever held a liquor license which has been revoked or not renewed? 
o Yes ✓No 

If yes, please state reason. ___________________________ _ 

13. Financial Details - All applicants 
(A) Source of funds used to establish business, or which will be used to purchase this business, list name, 
address and amount of all money lenders. 

Name 

(B) Attorney or representative 

'JZ.Mhl M~Bl0--\ 
Name 

Address Amount 

__________________ $ ____ _ 

__________________ $ ____ _ 

;;)_(,,)_\\ Ck,iSffinL-'(J,-R.h ~\vo. "5{£ :;;l-c.O 

Address ucoTt\-Flf.-1..):::s 1-'V\l t{'Mt'ri.,, 
iti.\S··l-9'\ i9--1-1\ 
Phone Number 

14. Premises (Answer either A, B, or C.) Applicant shall attach a building and grounds layout diagram 
(8-1/2 x 11) showing the entire structure, premises, and grounds, and in particular the specific areas 
where the license is to be utilized. Plans shall demonstrate adequate off-street parking, lighting, refuse 
disposal facilities, and where appropriate, adequate plans for screening and notice control. 
(A) New cowructioo 
Do you need to build a facility at the residence that will hold the license? • Yes ..J No 
If yes, do you have building permits? • Yes • No 
If no, when do you plan to get them? ________________________ _ 
If yes, when do you expect construction will begin? ___________________ _ 
If yes, when do you expect construction to be completed? ________________ _ 
If yes, what is the estimated cost of construction of the facility? $ _____________ _ 
When is your anticipated occupancy date/open for business date? _____________ _ 
Would you build the facility at this location if you do not get a license? • Yes o No 

(B) Existing facility-No RenovatiQa 
Is the facility currently occupied? ./ Yes • No 
If yes, do you intend to be licensed under the existing business at this location? J Yes • No 
If yes, do you intend to be licensed under the same management? -.J Yes • No 
How long has the existing business be at the location? 3 '-l E:" A~-:~ 
Are you currently associated with the business operatio_n_o_n_s_ite-?-' __ :_;;;---.-y-e-s----•-N-o ______ _ 

If yes, in what capacity are you associated?_0_~_·,..,_1-:i~e;:_P-. _________________ _ 
If no, will you be purchasing the premises? _____________________ _ 



(C) f)(istin~Facillty-Renovativ.n 
Do you plan to renovate an existing facility? o Yes -.£ No 
If yes, what is the estimated cost of the renovation? $ _________ _ 
If yes, when do you expect construction will begin? ___________________ _ 
If yes, when do you expect the construction to be completed? _______________ _ 
When is your anticipated occupancy date/open for business date? _____________ _ 
Is the facility currently occupied? • Yes • No 
If yes, are you currently associated with the business operation on site? • Yes • No 
If yes, in what capacity are you associated? _____________________ _ 
Will it be necessary to temporarily close the facilityfor renovation? • Yes o No 
If yes, how long will the facility be closed? ______________________ _ 
Are you going to renovate the facility if you do not get a license? • Yes 

15. Employment - (All applicants must complete either A or B section) 
(A) Existing Business 
How large is the current staff? (i.e. 1 full-time bartender) 
Number Full or Part-time Position 

I p • 

y5 D 

D 

• 

• D 

D • 

• No 

IV\~t-lf\6f;-~ 

Will you be retaining current staffing levels, expanding current staffing levels, or decreasing current staffing levels 
if you receive the license? Explain. ________________________ _ 

(B) New Business 
How large of a staff do you plan to have? (i.e. 1 full-time bartender) 
Number Full or Part-time Position 

D • 

D • 

D • 

D D 

D D 



' ' 
16. Operating Statement - Attach a general operation statement outlining the proposed manner in which 
the business for which the license being proposed will be operated, including a schedule of the hours of 
operation, food services, crowd control, and use of facilities. 

17. Personal Statement- (App applicants must complete this requirement) 
Please describe how this business will enhance the City of Ann Arbor community. What special considerations 
should we take into account in evaluating your application? PLEASE LIMIT YOUR ANSWER TO 200 WORDS 
OR LESS. Please attach a separate sheet of paper if necessary. 

I have read all of the above answers and they are true. I agree to provide all requested information and to fully cooperate 
with all City Service Areas requesting any and all additional information provided in this application or any attachment 
thereto. Any changes that occur after the date of this application, applicant will notify the City Clerk, in writing, within 14-
days of such change. I understand that the falsification of the information on this form or any false statements made 
during investigations may constitute grounds for denial of a license. 

I warrant that I am not disqualified to receive a liquor license under the ordinances of the City of Pontiac or the laws of the 
State of Michigan. If granted a liquor license I will not violate any federal or state laws or any ordinance of the City of 
Pontiac in the conduct of business. 

Attested to: 

Date of Application Signature of Applicant 
(if applicant is a corporation, include title 
of signor) 

Name of person completing this 
form if not the applicant 



16) 
Fillmore 13 Brewery will continue to operate 7 days a week as follows: 

Monday: 3PM -10PM 
Tuesday: 11AM - 11PM 
Wednesday: 11AM - 11PM 
Thursday: 11AM - llPM 
Friday: 11AM - 12AM 
Saturday: 11AM -12AM 
Sunday: 12PM -9PM 

We will utilize this license during all hours of operation paired with our extensive menu offering 
brick oven pizza, handmade sandwiches and house entrees. The ODA Liquor license will pair 
with our microbrewery to further service the many individuals who work in the area or seek 
entertainment in one of Pontiacs' many venues. 

17) 
Fillmore 13 Brewery will continue to be a destination point in Downtown Pontiac and 

this license will help us expand our vision and dedication to excellence by broadening our 
available products to greater client base. We ask that you view our progress over the last three 
years and see that we have become a part of the Pontiac community, as well as an attraction 
for residents of outlying cities to visit our rebuilding Downtown Area. The acquisition of this 
license will help us create an environment that not only satisfies individuals looking for 
excellent craft beer, but will now offer a full service restaurant, brewery and bar. 



ORDINANCE NO. #2366 

THE CITY OF PONTIAC ORDAINS: 

I. BISTRO RESTAURANTS 

(1) An applicant for a liquor license may propose to utilize the license for purposes of the operation of 
a bistro. Dining, entertainment, or recreation may be the primary purpose of the bistro. Unique and diverse 
venues with specialized menus that attract new patronage are encouraged. 

(2) For purposes of this chapter, a "bistro" is defined as being a fixed food service establishment with 
interior seating that meets all of the following criteria: 

(a) The liquor license must be a redevelopment district or development district license, as defined 
in the Michigan Liquor Control Code, MCLA § 436.1101 et seq., as amended. 

(b) Interior seating (including bar seating) can be no less than 50 people and no greater than 150 
people. 

(c) Sidewalk Cafes and Outdoor Dining Patios as defined in Section 2.539 of the Pontiac Zoning 
Ordinance are permitted in establishments with Bistro Liquor Licenses, provided that the City 
determines that there is sufficient space on an adjacent public sidewalk. Rooftop seating does not 
qualify as seasonal sidewalk cafe seating. Alcohol may only be served to seated patrons in sidewalk 
seating areas. 

( d) Bar seating shall be limited to 25% or less of the interior seating. 

( e) The establishment shall close no later than 12:00AM. With the prior approval of City Council, 
an establishment may remain open to offer food service. 

(f) Sales of food shall total not less than 50% of the total revenue of the establishment. 
(g) The licensee must otherwise comply with all requirements of the City Code. 

(3) Bistro Restaurants may only be located in the C-2 Downtown Zoning District. 

(4) Bistro Restaurant liquor licenses may not be transferred to other businesses, nor other addresses. 
A Bistro Restaurant liquor license may be transferred to a subsequent owner of the business originally 
granted the Bistro Restaurant liquor license if approved by the City Council, which shall use the criteria set 
forth in Section 8(a)-(h) to make such determination. 

(5) Prior to requesting approval by the City Council, a Bistro Restaurant shall obtain a Special 
Exception Permit from the City Planning Commission. 

( 6) Prior to operating a bistro, a licensee shall enter into a Development Agreement with the City 
setting forth all rehabilitation/restoration plans and operating requirements for the Bistro Restaurant. 
Failure to comply with the terms and conditions of the Agreement shall be grounds for the City Council to 
recommend revocation of the license by the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 

(7) Grounds for Immediate Review. A bistro license holder may be subject to immediate review by the 



City Council ifhe or she is cited for three violations within one calendar year. When under review, the City 
Council may determine that the bistro license holder is no longer operating within the best interests of the 
city, and the City Council may recommend revocation of the bistro license to the Michigan Liquor Control 
Commission. 

(a) A violation includes any of the following: 

(i) Violations issued from the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 

a. Citations from the City. 

(ii) Citations issued from any other governmental body. 

(8) Approval. If the City Council is satisfied that the establishment or operation will provide a benefit 
to the City of Pontiac and constitute an asset to the community, it will adopt a resolution granting approval, 
subject to the satisfaction of any conditions stated in the resolution. The City Council shall consider the 
following nonexclusive list of criteria to assist in the determination if the establishment will provide a 
benefit and be an asset to the community. 

(a) The applicant's demonstrated ability to finance the rehabilitation/restoration as set fo1ih in the 
Development Agreement. 

(b) The applicant's demonstrated ability to finance the operations of the proposed project. 

( c) The applicant's track record with the city, including responding to city and/or citizen concerns. 

( d) Whether the applicant has an adequate site plan to handle the bistro liquor license actjvities at 
the proposed establishment. 

( e) Whether the applicant has adequate health and sanitary facilities at the proposed establishment. 

(f) Potential community benefits proposed by the applicant. 

(g) The applicant's ability to employ city residents. 

(h) Whether the applicant has outstanding obligations to the city (i.e., property taxes, utilities, etc.). 
Applicant shall be automatically denied if applicant has any outstanding/past-due obligations to the 
city or other municipality or governmental agency. 

(9) Approval Procedures and Requirements; 
A. Submission & Initiation of Licensee Process. A property owner with business interest in 

an existing establishment, a possessory interest entitled to exclusive possession, or a 
contractual interest may submit to the City of Pontiac Planning Division an application 
requesting a Bistro Redevelopment Liquor License. 

B. Submission of application. All requirements of the Bistro Redevelopment License 
Application and Special Exemption Application must be submitted to the Planning 
Division with all required information included to be considered complete, incomplete 
applications will not be reviewed. Applications must be submitted 45 days prior to the 
scheduled Planning Commission Meeting. 

C. Technical Review. Upon receipt of the Bistro License Application, and prior to the 
scheduled Planning Commission Special Exemption Review, the Planning Division must 



conduci: a technical reviev, of the app!icatinn findings based on ihe (;rit.~ri;i outline nbov-~ 
q • ~( ) (l ) · ! l · · · 1 • • , ··, • ~ r ,.. --, · l uect1on o n ~ Jl , as wr:;;! as t 1osf: cntena out,m1: m tne Lou mg Un.,mancf! ror :)pecrn 
Exemptien R,':.'view. 

D. Spedai Exemption :fHilld Applicntiou ltevfow. lJpon the Planning Commission's revkw 
of the proposed Bfr;tro Redevelopment Liq nor License, the Planning Commission will offer 
a recommendation to City Council for Denied or Approval of the license request 

E. City Council Lken3ic Review. Upon receipt of the Planning Commission 
recommendation of the proposed Bistro Redevelopment Liquor License. City Council 
will affirm that the proposed site complies with the City of Pontiac Zoning Ordinance and 
section 8(a)-(h) of this ordinance, and vote to adopt a resolution to approve or deny the 
applicant's request for a Bistro Redevelopment Liquor License. 

Ayes: Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams 
No: None 
Ordimmce Pi1sselt 
Councilwoman Miller vvas absent during the vote, 

I,, Garland S. Doyle, Interim City Clerk of the City of Pontiac, hereby certify that the foregoing is a true 
copy of the Ordinance passed by the City CounGil of the City of Pontiac at a regular Council Jvfoeting held 
in the City Council Chambers in said City on the 61h day of August 2019. This Ordinance shall be effective 
ten days after date of adoption by the City Council. 

('. 

,-" :,/ \\}(~f ,fLt .)'. \,,:, ·~) 'J I 

Garland S, Doyle, Interim City Clerk 





CITY OF PONTIAC 
Department of Building Safety & Planning 

PLANNING DIVISION 
41450 Woodward Ave., PONTIAC, MICHIGAN 48342 

TELEPHONE: (248) 758-2800 

)l1ayor Deirdre Waterman 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

HONORABLE MAYOR, COUNCIL PRESENT, AND CITY COUNCIL 

VERN GUSTAFSSON, PLi\NNING MANAGER 

THROUGH THE OFFICE OF DEPUTY IVIAYORJANE BAIS-DISESSA 

GLENWOOD PLL\ZA REVIEW PROCESS SUMMARY 

JANUARY 9, 2020 

We are excited to present the City Council with a Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions to convert the 
former Glenwood Plaza into mixed use retail, cannabis and light manufacturing facilities [see attached 

report]. It is a significant development project with many moving parts and City's internal, Planning 
Commission and City Council reviews to get the applicant at this point for City Council to review and 

approve the Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions. 

The process began in mid-2019: 
July 2019: Split/Combination Applications submitted 
August & September 2019: City Attorney & I worked with applicant and consultant to final 

Conditional Rezoning Agreement 
October 2019: City Council approve Lot Split/Combination 
December 2019: Planning Commission recommends approval of Zoning Map Amendment with 

Conditions "to City Council 
January 2020: City Council to review and approve Glenwood Plaza Zoning Map Amendment with 

Conditi-~ns 

We request City Council to approve a resolution on the next page to rezone Parcel Numbers 64-14-21-
383-011 & 012 from C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor Commercial and M-1 Light Manufacturing with CR 
Conditional Rezoning and create a Medical Marihuana Overlay District [MMOD] to allow medical 

marihuana provisioning and non-provisioning facilities to locate within the MMOD. 

1 



Resolution 

ZMA 19-08 - Zoning Map Amefldment 

Address: 7 & 9 S. G!.€nwood Avenue 
Parcel No: 64-14-21-383-011 & 012 

Whereas, The City has received an application for a Zoning Map Amendment for 7 & 9 S. Glenwood 
Avenue identified as Parcel Numbers. 64-14-21-383-011 & 012 from Manuel David Ferraiuolo; and 

Whereas, The Planning Division has reviewed the applicant's rezoning request and the 
requirements set forth by Section 6.804 of the Zoning Ordinance, and the Planning Division has 

determined the aforementioned request and proposed intended use of the property complies with 
the City of Pontiac Zoning Ordinance; and 

Whereas, In accordance with the procedures outlined in the Zoning Ordinance, Sections 6.802 as 
it relates to Zoning Map Amendments, the request has undergone the required: Technical Review, 
Public Hearing, and Planning Commission Recommendation; and 

Whereas, On December 18, 2019, a Public Hearing was held and in consideration of public opinion, 
the Planning Commission recommends City Council to approve the Zoning Map Amendment 
request for 7 & 9 Glenwood Avenue approving the change from the current C-1 Local Business to 
C-3 Corridor Commercial and M-1 Light Manufacturing with CR Conditional Rezoning; and 

Now Therefore, Be ft Resolved, That the City of Pontiac City Council approve the Planning 
Commission recommendation for the Zoning Map Amendment (ZMA 19-08) request for 7 & 9 

Glenwood Avenue also known as Parcel Numbers 64-14-21-383-011 & 012, to amend the current 
site zoning C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor Commercial and M-1 Light Manufacturing with CR 
Conditional Zoning and create a Medical Marihuana Overlay District [MIVIOD] to allow medical 
marihuana provisioning and non-provisioning facilities to locate within the MMOD. Additionally, 

the CR Conditional Rezoning is effective for a period not less than twenty years. 

2 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
Department of Building Safety & Planning 

PLANNING DIVISION 
47450 Woodward Ave., PONTIAC, MICHIGAN 48342 

TELEPHONE: (248) 758-2800 
Jviayor Deirdre Waterman 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

HONORABLE MAYOR, COUNCIL PRESENT, AND CITY COUNCIL 

VERN GUSTAFSSON, PLANNING MANAGER 

THROUGH THE OFFICE OF DEPUTY MAYOR JANE BA!S-DISESSA 

ZMA 19-08 ZOM!NG iVlAP AMENDMENT WITH COi\lDITIONS 
IVlANUH DAVID FERRAIUOLO 

7 & 9 S. GLENWOOD AVE. I PIN 64-14-21-383-011 & 012 

C-1 LOCAL BUSINESS TO M-1 LJ·GHT MANUFACTURING & C-3 CORRIDOR 
COMMERICAL WITH CONDITIONS 

JANUARY 9, 2020 

The City of Pontiac is in receipt of application ZMA 19-08 for the proposed conditional rezoning of parcel 
64-14-21-383-011 & 012. The approximately 26 acre site is located on 7 & 9 S. Glenwood Avenue, 
southeast of Perry Street. Manuel David Ferraiuolo, the Applicant proposes a Zoning Map Amendment 
from C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor Commercial and M-1 Light Manufacturing with CR Conditional 

Rezoning and create a Medical Marihuana Overlay District [MMOD] which would allow medical 
marihuana provisioning and non-provisioning facilities to locate within the MMOD. According to the 
application, the Applicant proposes to convert the former Glenwood Plaza into mixed use retail, Medical 
Marihuana and light manufacturing facilities. At the December 18, 2019 meeting the Planning 
Commission recommended to City Council the approval of the Zoning Map Amendment. 

If the rezoning with conditions are approved, the Applicant is required to obtain an approved Medical 
Marihuana permit for each Medical Marihuana facility from the City and state of Michigan and complete 
a site plan per Section 6.204 to obtain preliminary and final site plan review for each phase of 
development from the Planning Commission. 

Proposal/Process 

As noted above, the Applicant requests rezoning with conditions and establish a new MMOD on the 

subject site with the intention to convert the former Glenwood Plaza into mixed use retail, medical 
marihuana and light manufacturing facilities. A significant amount of buildings in the approx. 20 acre 
proposed M-1 Light Manufacturing area will be renovated and improved to facilitate Medical Marihuana 
growers, processors and other non-provisioning medical marihuana facilities and construct new light 
manufacturing facilities. 

In the approx. 6 acre proposed C-3 Corridor Commercial development area, the Applicant plans to 
construct an anchor grocery store, farmer's market/event space, support business/retail center and 

1 



potentially a medical marihuana provisioning center. The Zoning Map Amendment application includes 

conditions volunteered by the Applicant, which are described in greater detail in this report. 

In accordance with Section 6.807 of the City Zoning Ordinance, the request for Conditional Rezoning 
requires a technical review, Public Hearing and recommendation by the Planning Commission, and final 
decision by City Council. The Conditional Rezoning Agreement will be executed between the Applicant 

and City Council at the time City Council approves the Conditional Rezoning. 

Existing Development Pattern 

The subject site, which is the former Glenwood Plaza received lot combination/lot split approval from the 
Planning commission to create two parcels on the east side of S. Glenwood Avenue. Both parcels have 
vehicular access from S. Glenwood Avenue. Land uses to the north, east, and south surrounding the site 

are predominately residential. Areas to the west are commerc_ial uses wedged betweer: S. Glenwood 
Avenue and Perry Street and along the west side of Perry Street. 

Existing Zoning Pattern 

The subject site and abutting property to the west are zoned C-1 Local Business. Immediately to the 
north, east and south are zoned R-1 One Family Dwelling. 

Master Plan 

The City of Pontiac updated the City Master Plan in 2014. The Plan has an economic development focus. 
A key goal of the Master Plan is to "take advantage of Pontiac's central location and affordability to 
attract new office, retail, commercial, and mixedTuse development/redevelopment to Pontiac that works 

to help recruit new economy businesses and workers". 

Various land use categories are identified in the Master Plan to support the City's goals and preferred 
vision for future land development. The distribution of these future land use categories are embedded in 

the Master Plan as Exhibit 42 - Pontiac Future Land Use Map. 

The subject site is designated as Entrepreneurial: Industrial, Commercial, and Green Future Land Use. 
This zoning district's stated goal is to provide flexibility that encourages the positive reuse of under
utilized properties in strategic locations throughout the City. The Conditional Rezoning limits proposed 

uses and achieves the objectives of the Master Plan by eliminating a blighted, vacant site. 

Rezoning Criteria 

The City of Pontiac City Council should consider "any of the following criteria [found in Section 6.804, A-J] 

that apply to the rezoning with conditions application in making findings, recommendations, and a 
decision" to amend the Official Zoning Map (see Section 6.804}. 

Additionally, the section also stipulates that the City of Pontiac City Council may also consider other 
factors or considerations that are applicable to the application, but are not listed among the ten criteria. 
To assist the City of Pontiac City Council in its evaluation of these and other criteria, we offer the 
following findings of fact for your consideration. The ten stated criteria are listed below with our findings: 

2 



1. Consistency with the goals, policies and objectives of the Master Plan and any sub-area plans. If 
. conditions have changed since the Master Plan was adopted, consistency with recent 
development trends in the area shall be considered. 

As described in the Master Plan, this proposed development project is consistent 

with the goals, policies, and objectives of the City's Master Plan. 

2. Compatibility of the site1s physical, geological, hydrological and other environmental features 
with the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district. 

The site was previously developed so it's geological, hydrological, and other environm~ntal 
features were previously lost. 

3. Evidence the Applicant cannot receive a reasonable return on investment through developing the 
property with one (1) or more of the uses permitted under the current zoning. 

The Applicant did not provide evidence that they could develop the 26 acre property with 
only small business and personal service uses, since it would not be in character with 
Glenwood Avenue and Perry Street commercial corridor and would not provide a reasonable 
return on investment. 

4. Compatibility of all the potential uses allowed in the proposed zoning district with surrounding 
uses and xoning in terms of land suitability, impacts on the environment, density1 nature of use, 
traffic impacts1 aesthetics, infrastructure and potential influence on propertv values. 

Planned development in the C-3 Corridor Commercial District and IV1-1 Light Manufacturing 
District with CR Conditional Rezoning limits select commercial and manufacturing uses and 
would be compatible with existing single family uses surrounding the site. Additionally, the 
planned commercial uses would be compatible to the commercial nature of the S. Glenwood 
Avenue and Perry Street's development patterns, land suitability, aesthetics and should not 
affect property values. 

5. The capacity of the City1s utilities and services sufficient to accommodate the uses permitted in 
the requested district without compromising the health, safety and welfare of the City. 

Existing City utilities and services capacity would be sufficient for the proposed use. 

6. The capability of the street system to safely and efficiently accommodate the expected traffic 
generated by uses permitted in the requested zoning district. 

S. Glenwood Avenue is a IVlajor Road. The proposed development will not impact the ability 
of Glenwood Avenue and Perry Street to handle potential traffic. 

7. The boundaries of the requested rezoning district are reasonable in relationship to surroundings 
and construction on the site will be able to meet the dimensional regulations for the requested 
zoning district. 

The boundaries of the rezoning with conditions are reasonable in relationship to 
surroundings and meet dimensional regulations in the C-3 and M-1 zoning districts. 

8. if a rezoning is appropriate, the requested zoning district is considered to be more appropriate 
from the City's perspective than another zoning district. 

The Conditional Rezoning request is much more appropriate than other zoning districts. 

3 



9. If the request is for a specific use, rezoning the land is considered to be more appropriate than 
amending the list of permitted or special land uses in the current zoning district to allow the use. 

It would be inappropriate to amend the existing C-1 Local Business district to permit a wide 
range of uses including large-scale retail, service commercial, office and low-impact light 
manufacturing uses. Conditional Rezoning of the subject site is the most appropriate action 

to allow limited proposed uses within the C-3 and M-1 zoning districts. 

10. The requested rezoning will not create an isolated or incompatible zone in the neighborhood. 
This Conditional Rezoning application would not create an incompatible C-3 and M-1 zoning 
district within the entire Glenwood Avenue corridor. 

Conditional Rezoning Agreement 

The Applicant has volunteered conditions as part of their Conditional Rezoning Agreement [see 

attachment] that will restrict the uses developed on the subject site and we determined that the 
Conditional Rezoning Agreement to be consistent with Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, Michigan Public Act 
110 of 2006, specifically Section 405. 

'" The Developer obtains all of the necessary permits from MDOT, Oakland County Road 

Commission, Water Resource Commission and the City of Pontiac, and any other approval or 

permits necessary for site work construction approval. 

c, The Developer shall as part of Phase I of the project remove the existing fa<;:ade from the entire 

shopping center, install all necessary underground utilities and infrastructure, repair or replace 

entire roof, and install new perimeter fences and walls. Phase I shall be completed within six (6) 

to twelve (12) months of receiving the necessary permits. 

0 The Developer shall as part of Phase II completely buildout no more than One Hundred 

Thousand (100,000) square feet of space for medical marijuana tenants until there is a grocery 

tenant that is minimum of Fifteen Thousand (15,000) square feet that has received a certificate 

of occupancy and is open to the public for business. The Developer shall also replace, remove 

and or repair the entire asphalt parking lot. Phase II shall be completed within six (6) to twelve 

(12) months of receiving the necessary permits. 

o The Developer shall as part of Phase Ill complete the interior build out of the remaining retail 
space to white box standard. The Developer may also elect to construct a new retail strip center. 
Phase Ill shall be completed within six (6) to twelve (12) months of receiving the necessary 

permits. 

The City of Pontiac City Council must evaluate the request with these conditions in mind. It is important 
to note that the City cannot request or suggest modifications to these conditions. Per the Michigan 
Zoning Enabling Act, such conditions must be made voluntarily of the Applicant. If favorable 
consideration is given to the request, the City Attorney will review the Conditional Rezoning Agreement 
for execution between the Applicant and City Council. 

4 



City 

good ST.E, 

exercising an of 

005, 

f;~gafty described en 

1 



.--:; 

\/(; 

F!anning 

-,~he [)e\Ie-roper on 

P/iap /.\rr:endrr:s-nt through ,;;.12y of 2 

t(: t&zone the Prope:iy fron1 C:-·; Loca.i 

,, 
0.rnong oiner 

!, ()ri (Jc;_ubGi 

to 

the ' 
2nd acl•--.Jpte.~_; 



•i 
/.. 

2_ 

a. 

U2S2 

0. 

_,· :-- 1-, --
, ,-~;-

rn:?;nufactufir-~9 te(;c,nts(rn(::-dfca! rn2rfhu2na grc•I./ 

base.d up()P 

the 

. . 
f ::::~_:d_2Ui dl tt~; 

er 

/Jroc:sssing 

=- f\/1-1 



!!. 

rn. 

,_;( 

construction 

a 

of the rsn12!ntng rstaii .;pac2 ID 

(< 
\ ( 

aisc) e-!ec~ to construct 2 tL?'vV 

) to .,, . 
!L :_' 

4 

' .-:::- ·•:.:·' ;c ,"-. ,r 



, j~ ,:::, .• 

i701 liiriited 

c~r nsgHgence, 

Lhs put-=i!ic ener-ny·; cict.s cf thi::: 

er 

cc 

ten { :o) 

vvithh-sld _ 

a. 

Oevelopsr vvithin (3) 

rncnths foilo\~;inq :3Uch faHurs by th~ 



-!- -· 
,_j .-::;-

City Council ,nay, ,:,t its 
,, 
cne 

ter:77fn2ts the 

the developrnent 

,. 
t)73n 

or- art of the 

cond~tions :such . trre total nurnter 

b. 

use of the stnJcture ether tho:n v~1h2t f'1as 

Zonir;Q C)rdin8nc.:s 
1 

\...., 

This .Agrsement th.s 

the instrurnents v-vhicll are to be executed In 2cccrd2/1ce 1-.rvith the requjren12r;(:: 

6 



er 

sh2lt be defined soie!y by 

ccor)eraticn of the p2itiss heteunder r;or snythin9 expressly or iJT;pUcitly containec! 

in accordc:rice 

to the other that this and the terrns 2 .. c-1d condftions thereof have be2;; 

(]Ui); authoctzsd and ln the case of f~s C!ty 1 H~s City c::ouncil encl elf 

•r ' , 

01n&r goverrm1erna1 

2nd 2s to ths 

thereof, and th,:it 



,_·_,. 

ernp!oyee. er partn,er of any saicl ennnes shaH have 

8 



F(Jr: Cfty ot: PontL'.3c 
By: 

_____________ C~(;untyl _____________________ _ 

JD.~:-=ting in _________ ~.:;c}unty)~-------~----------------

C;{)rnrt1isc::i<:n E~>:pires ---------------------------

For: Rubiccn c:;apita! 
Ferraiuoic: 

_____________ C~ot1nty~----------------------

,n. ________ ~County, ____________________ _ 

(:ornrnfssic;n E~:-:pires. ___________________________ _ 



,, 
I~ 
Jt 
il 
~~ 

r•--r:•LL!'-"".:"'-1(==x~,.,. ~ 41 ~1,._ 

/ I ,·· "'"' 

ii '"'""~ J~?' ., .. ,~, bf". "'°1 . ly !i~ .:1/_,#/7 

r 
it~ II _J ~ 

~.-~.,....""~l)g;Cl=,Tla.Oll=M=AP,_.==--
,.,1,,.,,._..:... 

il§..fil!.Q 

N:,c l~ 1c.n11.t~~c:1..1uirn~-1,\1 

. ---- -,,---1-f.Ql!}TS OF !!ffEREST 

;J,(>M~i'iC£.lHrn1,ll'lEC>1~ll>W./tCCNfH>lltl 
~llilril/1lU l<H~ eNlll.,>1lCC Al Un V,. ()q tl!t ,,.1,r.,m 1,•,r-
~!t( l:NtMIIU (;,>R.O't',' 10.zct.eu, 1 

~IIL 01ir1,,•1;,~ j,'1-U"..,\f, TOff\c't!fll~OU <I:.. rurr(,'000 

' -· \.)'-./ / / / 
'"------ \I / / '""'""', 

) r ~ ~" ( t:;:,::;;• 
/1/ ~~ ///~ (____J\~ /// ~""~' ,,_ ~----

'\~9~~/'.!;/ ... .-.,.J~~.:~2£;1:;;r r ... ~··•·····;;, 
,0-></ ( ~::.:::,::." ) -·-•··= .. ,,,,,,..-~-~ 

// /"','-.,\. ---~--·c.:::::-:.::Y:-..:::::-..::.=~·-: . I ,-

///,...'\~<\ /:-:-='\I --;,;,;::.;:;:I 111 I 
/ / / \\\ ', 'r·~--.. -~•-·<;· I" i , 

•~""""""'"'i <'.:i'~) / ' / \\\ I,:,. I . . ,... ,...,,, '"''"•~'""·' 

,,.1,~~:,'i'(;\

0

{,~,tr{[ /~ /:~, / )'\ ~ d}/ !\ C • ;I "•''""'' \ 
/ V / / / ,I? I;.,.,; l 

(~('~., /)/ )\ \, -:._.--,- m,,,, 
1

; ~- -· -' 

~:,;r,~;:\~:.:~'::,<~ )S</ ¾I! I ... , .. · . 
• ;;:.:·~!,!!;'... ~:,/~/ ~Y\ :,::~::~r // !,.,_":"_\,·;-.·-:~ ::'.':_ ".·: ;::::_;;,~====::::.==::::--...:::.= 
~ / \ °" / ........ //nifr"' . ~-,;1,. 
~

1-";, '>:,r,, Jl\ ,i'ij 1'i7l =~~••,;- ~- I ff ~f!?~"?:~i~r_/ \\),.,,,...,,_,."~"' •~• ,t~~~,/! \,I O-:, l' ! 
/., / \\ ':;,,;~~~;.~:· ~.,.. //,7 ";~\~ ·:.z.. ' i = 

/ / / ·:;, ,.;:;;;:-1"-._ ~· ,°' ~"'/ 
/

/ , C'<•-"'' '-. \ / //.,..'' 
/ / '-.. . " ( . . 

·,· / r" ·'\· ,../,-".·/;\. ['"""'"· "' : / / / \.,Jj 0" :,' ,It( ---;1' . ... " IS"-'' • 1<1 '!.J~f~)'.;(j/' i fG· - ;::::{=-~ -- --
( ,; "·'"'""~ ;H~ '1 I , ~ 1;, ·:;;:::~· . j/ L.. 1 ii 

;/1/==--~LA'.'IS_r_ •--,~,,;,~rj •6r~•1\• 11 . 

11// ~'"':~:::~/; I ~·'""'" ., .. t ,c-"" 
'// ,;;;.:";;.~;;_,2./ I •;;:1;,;;;1,;;:.•1., 

•""'•·•=cc, \ 

1 . l,·1 . 

vr"' 

/'--L 
I 
I: , .. 

/,, .... 

~~ 
x.1✓-----

11 i '"'"'~, :l~~:- ,-=~~ ii~ ' r.:;:;\~):r.:D: .. f::l(-::~::/i-=11;-======:::: 1&."'l"ij [1Ji~~gj~~!;:£f~r,zi.1& . ,------- ~~~;:'/,'.~.!IH•,m ... u-,:,~r \ -~··-· ... 

a, <•U ,. • m ............. ()) V. _f;=•- _ ....... , .. , -,,=co sl ;:~::',:'i,1':'!::::,:>1(:.:;'.'.'"r, ,,.,~\Jr, ii!~i~~g{[i~i~Ji~~~~ = I GLENWOOD PLAZA I ~"""""' 1 ]~ ~~. i;f::;~'""" A~-:~;j::. g~fl:;::: =·~::::" ~ ... ;;'.t,;,, o.trifo'"'a,;i;;0.\sio,\\':;il'i;f.,!i'i "':::\;~;;:;~~-~,:~::"' UPDATEmDREZONING ~~'"·;~;··r-'",n,,,,. ~ PONTIAC, tJ\I 

/lERIAL 8UFFCR ~,lAP 



T: 24~L758.2800 F: Zt!-8.758.2327 

fostrnctfons: Completed applications ,vith appropriate fee shall be submitted to the Office of Land Use and Strategic 
Planning at least 30> days prior to the regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting. Applications rnust be complete in 
all respects with supporting documents such as site plan, property survey etc. Planning staff will schedule the application for 
consideration by the Planning Commission in accordance with the attached schedule. Incomplete applications will delay the 
review process. 

Name Manuel David Ferraiuolo 
Address 4234 Ba!d Mountain Road 
Cit1

{ Auburn Hills 
State fV!H1iri~r • V •~:)0, J 

ZIP Code 40'.Y'R , 0,J.C.d 

Telephone Hain:n/a I Cell:2.6.P-)··/ ,:L9?3R .~J .. -., I ~ .,J 
/ c,x· / 10 Tl 8 

E-Mail fv'lannl@RubiconCapital.co 

N 2 me of Pm posed D1::velopmen i:_: R_u_bi_c_on_C_a_p_it_a_l,_L_L_c_. ____________ _ 

The subject property is location at 7 S. Glenwood Ave. cm the l'T / S / E / W side of M. Perry St. ---------be-Kveen Gage SL and _t,_!._P_ad_d_c_,c_k_S_L ____ _ 

The prnperty ts zoried; _c_i ___________ ~---------

~ ~ , . , . . C3 & M1 Pn}pcsed ;.:,omug D,1s1:nc:t: ----------------------

·• ~ ,._ Commerce Park with a mix of uses. l1t fa pr-opo'.>el!:, tu2ct the prnp,eaty ;vil.l. be used as;----------------------

Please see attached. 



-~--~-----·--- ·-~--~ ... - -~- ---·~- ···-------·====--::..:.:.=.:-=---=-.--------~· ~--------~---· ._; __ -,..,_.,::_ ~ ------. 

Name 

Address 

City 

State 

ZIP Code 

Telephone 

E-Mai[ 

J-\uburn Hiils 
Michigan 
48326 
Main: n/a I Cell: 248--2·!4-9236 

!VJanni@HubiconC;2p1ta!.co 

V 
/ '·· Owner Agent/rep. of tbe ovvner 

I Fax: I n,a 

Ocher 

The p:rcp,osed -yv:Hl be used for thic f0Ho,,~1ing purpose (i~rrrvide as mui:h delaH as possible vrith 
phcrtographsj sketches:. s]tie !Jl21n1s, 1,,yritten documents) etc.,)" 
The property wi!I be used to create a new age commerce park that would allow for a mix of uses from retail 

(grocery store, fast causal restaurant, potenfa:;-1 provisioning center, etc.) to light manufacturing (medical 

marihuana growing facilily, robotics repair, etc.) See attached proposed site plan and renderings for details. 

vve.lfare and/on.-- thi: pronert~/ r]'.i.!hts of other Ci:;rsons lucaferl in thie vi~in]ty Gf the site~ 
.tl. .~ V ' .1 

This proposed zoning amendment will bring the ::iroperty 1nline with the uses/ten,:1nts lhn.l have been ulllizing the no,,;1 dil~pldated shopping cen\er. for the '2st 25 pfus years !he 

shopping center has S-irugglsd lo h;,ve :30)' real m~ariir.gful tenants Dr improvements made In it By allowing this Zoning Map Amendment the Cily •:,m enable lh.::: propert~1 ta be 

redeveloped into a new age c:Jmmerr.e par'f\. The re:ieve!oprrienl c;:il!s an entire overhaul of \he site along with new construction. This new development coupled with the mix of 

proposed tenants will greatly beno!fit the no\ only the area res!de-n!.s in the- vicinity of the site but the entire city by bring living wages Jobs, a safe and secure deva\oprnenl addttiona\ 

tax: revenue and large investment dollars. See attached proposed site plan and renderings for details. 

State ofl1iichigan 
County of Oak/a,;d 

,,---··· 

,._::~(;, /'. 

·-. --·"" // ) ·...,__. 
/.' 

----- --:-:?~ 
• I 

.:: . . ---~--- ,_.. .•, (_,..,,./:.,' 

-L_s_="'z-======= 

On this __ rlrzy of .S.D., 20 __ . /;e(ore me personal~y oppean:d th2 aboi:~ nam2d person, rvho b€ing d:u'y 5worn, .,·/a1£d hc/:;h~ hllr;; ,·cud 
the foregoing application. hy hinvl,er signed, and knmv the contents thereof. and thai the same is true of hislher own .l::iww!edge. ~=xr.ept ns io the rnarte:~r; 
there.in slater! to be upon irrfi1rmatir:n an:i heliefand so [U; lo those matters helshe believes it tr1 be true. 

]-./otary Ptr.bfic, OuJdm!L~· Cou;;ry, .Hid1igt1J1 

iV(v CommtSsion EYpire,,: ___ _ 

' 



(1 ':.i 















s ty 
1PLA,Ni"Hf,[G DJVISIO{T 

47~50 \Voodward ,e_-,e [ PIJj'lTiAC MlCHiGAN 433-\2-500':/ 
TELEPHONE: 2,:J.758.LBOO I FAX: 243.758.2327 

hfayor Deirdre ,!Vat.c:rmcm 

TO: H01'JORA8!..E MAYOR,. CCU1\lQl PHESWEJ\ff MlD GTY COUi\lCIL 

vrn.N GUST f.\FS50i'-i, PU\f'lj\Jif\11.:i i\11/-\;'-.IAGE;i 

,·tixOOUGH THE OHlCE !F DEPUTt }'-.1Jt1.YOR-J1-\N::: Bi-\lS-DlSESSA 

SUB.H:CT: r~ESOlUT!OM TO flY?ROVE l()NHIIG l'/lAP AMENDIV1E0r::· \iVffH 

CON!DTIOf'iS 

\J,t\Ci,i'ff ?F'.OPERTY-G.:S!\R CH/J,,\J\.:Z l PlN 64-14-18-351-017 

•i:-l!. SlJ~dJR3/\hi CCH\i1h/!tRCiitL TC:• C-3 CORR HJ OH COI\11f\l1ERCIAL 

D!-\TE: 

The City of Pontiac is in receipt of applicotion [ZMA 19-12) for a Zoning Map ,i\mendrnent [rezoning) ·1vith 
conditions per Section 6.807 of the Ponti2c Zoning Ordinance for parcel number 64-lL\-18-351-017. Th-= 

approx. 2.0 acre site is !ocated 0;1 the east side of Cesar Chavez, south of West Road. 00 Cesar Chavez 

LLC, the applicant requests a rezoning from C-4 Suburb2n Comme1Tial to C-3 Corridor Commercial. Tr-.2 

rezoning would ensure that the proposed iVledical fvlarihuana Pmvisioning Center is properly zoned. ,t.t 

the January 81 2020 meeting the Planning Commission recommended to City Councif the approval of this 

Zoning f\/lap 1'.\mendment with Conditions. 

Sur~'1rnarv 

1. The applicant requests rezoning the subject site from C-4 Suburban Commercial to C-3 Corridoi' 

Commercial. 

2. The ~/laster Plan identifies the subject site as Entrepreneurial: lndustrial 1 Commercial & Gn=:en. 

The proposed zoning designation is consistent with this future land use designation. 

3. The subject property is compatible with C-3 zoning standards. 

4. If the Zoning fl/lap Amendment is approved, the applicant would be required to comply wifri 

/l.rticle 6, Chapter 21 and Section 6.204 Site Plan Review of the Pontiac Zoning Ordinance 1 In 

addition, ensure all requirements to the IVledical Marihuana Zoning Ordinance [Ordinance 2363) 

are met and obtain a 111ledical IViarihuana license from the City of Pontiac and the state. 

5. The applicant submitted a condition to the rezoning that the rezoned parcel 'vVi\l revert bock to 

the current zoning district if a properly licensed cannabis facility is not oper2ting and not open to 

the public within three 1/ears from date of Pontiac City Council approval of Zoning Map 

.1.\mendmen'i: 1Nith Conditions. 

1 



P'/las'tEr P'.ar: 

According to i:;:e City's 2014 !'/laster Plan Upclat2 2n'/ new eccnomic prospects on vvh;ch to buiid a 
sustainable dest;ny 'Nith new retail/cornmerciai de'l'cloprnent is;; rnaJor land use objective. it is 'Nith this 

sr::irit that is 2rnb2dd~d ~1 the 1\/laster Plcn update. 

n-.~ s:..:::iject si·::e is designated as Entrepreneurial: Industrial, Cor;1rnerciai & Green mixed-use land use 

categor-v that allov,:s flexibility in use and form to encourage the use of vacant :Jropert"•/ in locations 

around the Citv. These areas have been identified with the potential to be catalysts for other positive re

investment in these neighborhoods ar:d/or corridors bv entrepreneurs to start businesses and create jobs 

in the process. 

P,reas tc t:12 west. r;orth and east a,e also planr.ed as Entrepreneurial: Industrial, Commercial&_ Green_ 

Area tJ the south planned as Civic/Public, which is owned and operated by the Oakland Countv \J\/a;:er 

Resource Co:-nmiss;on. 

The Zoning i\llap An,endment requ,::st complies with the requi1-ernents found 1Nithin the Master Plan's 

Entrepreneuriai D:st:-ict classif:c2tio;;, which is to spur regional commerciol corridor economic 

de·.Jelopments in areas that allows flexib!lity to attract creative and motivc1t2.d entrep·(eneurs and locate 

in the fviedical IVla1·i:1uana Overlav C.istrict described :n Ordinance 2363 - f,/iec:ic::::I iV1arihuan2 Zoning 

Ordinar,ce. 

Based o,", our technical review of the proposed rezoiling, the subject site is !oc2t2d in the Cesar Chavez 

IVk'.dicai fVlarihuana Overlay District. i,.., cons:c!e:-ation of the proposed nc:zo10ing ·From C-4 Suburban 

Comrnercial to C-3 Corridor Commercial zoning district, the follo,,vi1-,g i\/1edica.1 r-1iarihuana uses; 

Provisioning Center, Safety Compliance ancl Secur.;o Transporter facilities rnav b>:: iocated on this ~ite, if all 

requirement of the Medical I\Jlarii:uana Zoning Ordinance [Ordinance 2363] are met and obtain a Medical 

Marihuana license from the City of Pontiac and the state. 

E1dstin,,.s: Zoning Districts 

Properties to the west are zoned C-3 Corridor Commercial. North, east 2nd south of subject site are 

zoned C-4. The proposed Zoning 1\/lap Amendment provides a mix of comrnerciJI int2nsity areas, which 

implements the mix-use !and use c!2-ssification strategy found in the Fcntiac ii/laster P!an. 

?,ezc,r.ing Crit-~ria 

The Pontiac Planning Commission must consider any of the following criteria [s,::ction 6.804, A-J) that 

apply to the rezoning applicaticn in making findings, recomrnendc1tions, and a decision to amend the 

Official Zoning Map [Section 6.804-]. fa.dditiona!ly, the section also stipulates that the Planning 

Commission mav also consider other factors that are applicable to the application, but are not listed 

among the ten crite1-ia. To assist in the evaluation of these and oth21· criteria, we offer the following 

findings of fan for your rnnside:-ation. 

2 



Section 6.204 ~,rovides revie'N criteria for t11e Fia,1r,ing Cc,rnmission to 'citilize in making i.:s fa,dings, 

.-eco1-rmendations, 2nd fo,Tnuiat;ng a decision. The t2n stoted crit2rio ;::re listed below 'Nith our findings: 

J. Consistency with the goc1ls, policies end ,Jbjceti11es of the Master Pion or;d any sub-area plans. if 
conditions hove changed since the t'1Joster Pion was odoptea~ ccrsistenc;1 with ,ecenr 
de 11elopment trends in the area sho/! be considered. 

The subject sire conforms to the go2\s 2nd objeccives included in the City's IV!asi:er Plan. The 

i\/l2s:2r Plan created Entrepreneurial districts to C:evelop and encourage adaptive re-use of 
vacant properties to allow va~ious intensity of :::omm2rcial uses located within specific areas 

and foster the economic develo9,nent rebirth of the Ces2r Chavez Corridor. 

2. Compotibility of the site's physical, geo/ogico/1 hydro/09ica/ and other environmental features 
with the uses permitted in the proposed zoning d.'~·trict. 

The site is c~n-entiy vcicant; so it's g20:ogical, hydrological, and other environmentz,\ features 

are present 0°1 the site and shou!d be develo:Jed to preserve thesr:'' City's natural resources. 

3. Evidence the applicant cannot receive o reosonable return on inv2stment through developing the 
property with one (1) or more of the uses permitted uoder the current zoning. 

The applicant did not derncnstrate an inability to receive 2 reasor:ab!e return on investment 

with the existing zoning. 

Li. Compatibility of o/1 the potential us2s o!fov,;ed in the proposed zcnfn~ o'istrict with surrounding 
uses and zoning in r2rms of fare! sciito.biiity, irnpocts on the envircn,~0,2,,t, densit:1, notwe of use, 
traffic impacts, aesthetics, infmstr:.,cture and potential influence on _wo,oerty vo!ues. 

Th2 developrn2nt of a IV12dic:o! 1Vlarihu2.na Pro,1isioning Center i.c: compaticle vvith 

surrounding uses and in te,·,--;:; cf /2nd suitabilitv, d2nsiW, traffic ;,,,pacts, aes·':h2tics, and 

infrastructure. 

5. The co po city of the City's utilities ond services sufficient to accon,m'Jdot2 the uses permitted in 
the requested district without compromising the health, svfety and vve!fare of the City. 

The Cit\f's utilities have capacity and services will be sufficient to accommodate the proposed 

Medical f\llarihuana Provisioning Center and not compromise th? City's health, safety, and 

welfare. 

6. The capability of the street sy:,teo1 to safely end efficiently accommodate the expected traffic 
generated by uses permitted in the requested zoning district. 

Cesar Chavez [Bq 24] is a business route under the jurisdiction of the Michigan Department 

of Transportation. The pi-oposed development will not impact the ability rif Business Route 

[BR 24] to handle potential traffic. 

7. The boundaries of the request2d rezoning district are reosonable in relationship to surroundings 
ond construction on the site will be able to meet the dimensiono! regulations for the requested 
zoning district. 

The boundaries of the rezoning are reasonable in relationship to surroundings and zoning 

district dimensional requirements. 

3 



8. if o rezo .. ,ing is opp,·opriote, the requested zoning disu"ict is considered to be more appropriate 

fmm the City's perspecUve rhor: ono''7er zoning district. 
With a:i ;:he P~'=·1ious fir.ciic:gs of feet, ;:he bouncaries cz'the proposed C-3 zoning dis-.:rict ;;re 

reascnable frorn t:,e Cii:v's perspectiv.2 and comply with the vision found in -::he City's /IJ1as,er 
Fla1·,. 

9. If the rec;uEst is for c; sp':cific use, rezoninr;; the land is considered to be more appropriate than 

amending the list of perrnir':ed or speciol /c1nd uses in the curre,1t zoning district to a!!ovv the use. 

it 'Nould be inappropriate to arnend the zoning t2xt for C-4 Suburban Commercial zoning 

district to allow a rvledic,I fvlarihuana Provisioniilg Center ,,vithin the C-4 zoning district. 

10. The requested ,'ezoning will ,-;ot create en isolated or incoropatib/2 zone in the neighborhood. 

The p:0pos2d re;-coning does not create an isolated zoned area and it proposes reasonable 

rnnt1niJ2tion of Corridor Commercia! zoning to the north and :;outh. 

ZMA 19-l2 - Zoning Map Arnencirnent \Nith Conditions 

Parcel: 64-1LL-18-351-C17 

FZeso! ution 

Whereos, ,-he City has received an applicc>ticn for a Zoning i'/lap Amendment 1vith Conditions for 2 

vacant p,·oc:,c:rty, icicntified 2s Parcel i'fo. 64-14-18-351-017 from 00 Cesar Chavez w:: for the 1·ezoning 

of the afo1·=:-:-1enticned parcel; and 

Where':!s, 'he Flanning Division has reviewed the 2pplicant's rezoning request in regards co the City's 

IV!astei- P>' 0• ,...,d the request confo1·ms tc: the goals and vision contained within the plan; anc! 

\iVherea:: .. ThE Planning Division has revie'1ved the applicrnt's rezoning request 2nd the 1-equirements set 

forth by 5-::ction 5.804 of the Zoning Ordinance, and the Planning Division has determined the 

aforerr:ic:ntioned request and proposed intended use of the properiy complies with the City of Pontiac 

Zoning O1-c:inance; and 

Whereos, in accordance with the prncedures outlined in the Zoning Ordinance, Sections 6.802 as it 

relates to Zoning Map /l.mendments1 the request has undergone the required: Technical Revie1,v, Public 

Hea1·i,1g, a1-,c: Planning Commission Recommendation; and 

Wh2reos, On January 8, 2020, a Public Hearing was held, and in consideration of public opinion, the 

Pl2n:1irg CClrnmission recommends City Council approve the Zoning IVlap Amendment with Conditions 

request For vacant property, approving the change from the current C-4 Suburb2n Commercial zoning 

district to C-3 Corridor Commercial zoning dist,ict with Conditions; and 

Now Therefore, Be It Resolved1 That the City Council for the City of Pontiac approve the Planni.1g 

Commission recJmmenciation for the Zo;1ing Map Amendment with Conditions (ZMA 19-12) request 

for vacant property, also known as PIN 64-lL'.-18-351-017, to ar.iend the current site zoning from C-4 

Suburban Commerci2! to C-1 Corridor Corl'lmercial zoning district wit;i Conditions. 

4 



Department of Building Safety & Planning 
PLANNING DIVISION 

47450 Woodward Ave I PONTIAC, MICHIGAN 48342-5009 
TELEPHONE: 248.758.2800 I FAX: 248.758.2827 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

TO: PONTIAC PLANNING COMMISSION 

FROM: VERN GUSTAFSSON, PLANNING MANAGER 

PLANNING DIVISION 

SUBJECT: ZMA 19-12 ZONING MAP AMENDMEMT WITH CONIDTIONS 

00 CESAR CHAVEZ LLC 

VACANT PROPERTY-CESAR CHAVEZ I PIN 64-14-18-351-017 

C-4 SUBURBAN COMMERCIAL TO C-3 CORRIDOR COMMERCIAL 

PROPOSED MEDICAL MAR!HUANA PROVISIONING CENTER 

DATE: DECEMBER 30, 2019 

The City of Pontiac is in receipt of application [ZMA 19-12] for a Zoning Map Amendment [rezoning] with 
conditions per Section 6.807 of the Ponhac Zoning Ordinance for parcel number 64-14-18-351-017. The 
approx. 2.0 acre site is located on the east side of Cesar Chavez, south of West Road. 00 Cesar Chavez 
LLC, the applicant requests a rezoning from C-4 Suburban Commercial to C-3 Corridor Commercial. The 
rezoning would ensure that the proposed Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center is properly zoned. In 
accordance with Section 6.802 of the City.Zoning Ordinance, the request for Zoning Map Amendment 
requires a technical review, Public Hearing, recommendation by the Planning Commission, and a final 
decision by City Council. 

Summary 
1. The applicant requests rezoning the subject site from C-4 Suburban Commercial to C-3 Corridor 

Commercial. 

2. The Master Plan identifies the subject site as Entrepreneurial: Industrial, Commercial & Green. 

The proposed zoning designation is consistent with this future land use designation. 

3. The subject property is compatible with C-3 zoning standards. 

4. If the Zoning Map Amendment is approved, the applicant would be required to comply with 

Article 6, Chapter 2, and Section 6.204 Site Plan Review of the Pontiac Zoning Ordinance, In 

addition, ensure all requirements to the Medical Marihuana Zoning Ordinance [Ordinance 2363] 

are met and obtain a Medical Marihuana license from the City of Pontiac and the state. 

5. The applicant submitted a condition to the rezoning that the rezoned parcel will revert back to 

the current zoning district if a properly licensed cannabis facility is not operating and not open to 

the public within three years from date of Pontiac City Council approval of Zoning Map 

Amendment with Conditions. 

1 



Master Plan 
According to the City's 2014 Master Plan Update any new economic prospects on which to build a 
sustainable destiny with new retail/commercial development is a major land use objective. It is with this 
spirit that is embedded in the Master Plan update. 

The subject site is designated as Entrepreneurial: Industrial, Commercial & Green mixed-use land use 
category that allows flexibility in use and form to encourage the use of vacant property in locations 
around the City. These areas have been identified with the potential to be catalysts for other positive re
investment in these neighborhoods and/or corridors by entrepreneurs to start businesses and create jobs 
in the process. 

Areas to the west, north and east are also planned as Entrepreneurial: Industrial, Commercial & Green. 
Area to the south planned as Civic/Public, which is owned and operated by the Oakland County Water 
Resource Commission. 

The Zoning Map Amendment request complies with the requirements found within the Master Plan's 
Entrepreneurial District classification, which is to spur regional commercial corridor economic 
developments in areas that allows flexibility to attract creative and motivated entrepreneurs and locate 
in the Medical Marihuana Overlay District described in Ordinance 2363 - Medical Marihuana Zoning 
Ordinance. 

Medical Marihuana Overlay District 

Based on our technical review of the proposed rezoning, the subject site is located in the Cesar Chavez 
Medical Marihuana Overlay District. In consideration of the proposed rezoning from C-4 Suburban 
Commercial to C-3 Corridor Commercial zoning district, the following Medical Marihuana uses; 
Provisioning Center, Safety Compliance and Secure Transporter facilities may be located on this site, if all 
requirement of the Medical Marihuana Zoning Ordinance [Ordinance 2363] are met and obtain a Medical 
Marihuana license from the City of Pontiac and the state. 

Existing Zoning Districts 

Properties to the west are zoned C-3 Corridor Commercial. f\lorth, east and south of subject site are 
zoned C-4. The proposed Zoning Map Amendment provides a mix of commercial intensity areas, which 
implements the mix-use land use classification strategy found in the- Pontiac Master Plan. 

Rezoning Criteria 

The Pontiac Planning Commission must consider any of the following criteria [section 6.804, A-J] that 
apply to the rezoning application in making findings, recommendations, and a decision to amend the 
Official Zoning Map [Section 6.804]. Additionally, the section also stipulates that the Planning 
Commission may also consider other factors that are applicable to the application, but are not listed 
among the ten criteria. To assist in the evaluation of these and other criteria, we offer the following 
findings of fact for your consideration. 

2 



Secti.D11 6.804 provides review criteria for the Planning Commission to utilize in making its findings, 
recommendations, and formulating a decision. The ten stated criteria are listed below with our findings: 

1. Consistency with the goals, policies and objectives of the Master Plan and any su8-area plans. If 
conditions have changed since the Master Plan was adopted, consistency with recent 
development trends in the area shall be considered. 

The subject site conforms to the goals and objectives included in the City's Master Plan. The 
Master Plan created Entrepreneurial districts to develop and encourage adaptive re-use of 
vacant properties to allow various intensity of commercial uses located within specific areas 
and foster the economic development rebirth of the Cesar Chavez Corridor. 

2. Compatibility of the site's physical, geological, hydrological and other environmental features 
with the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district. 

The site is currently vacant; so it's geological, hydrological, and other environmental features 
are present on the site and should be developed to preserve these City's natural resources. 

3. Evidence the applicant cannot receive a reasonable return on investment through developing the 
property with one (1) or more of the uses permitted under the current zoning. 

The applicant did not demonstrate an inability to receive a reasonable return on investment 
with the existing zoning. 

4. Compatibility of all the potential uses allowed in the proposed zoning district with surrounding 
uses and zoning in terms of land suitability, impacts on the environment, density, nature of use, 
traffic impacts, aesthetics, infrastructure and potential influence on property values. 

The development of a Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center is compatible with 
surrounding uses and in terms of land suitability, density, traffic impacts, aesthetics, and 
infrastructure. 

5. The capacity of the City's utilities and services sufficient to accommodate the uses permitted in 
the requested district without compromising the health, safety and welfare of the City. 

The City's utilities have capacity and services will be sufficient to accommodate the proposed 
Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center and not compromise the City's health, safety, and 
welfare. 

6. The capability of the street system to safely and efficiently accommodate the expected traffic 
generated by uses permitted in the requested zoning district. 

Cesar Chavez [BR 24] is a business route under the jurisdiction of the Michigan Department 
of Transportation. The proposed development will not impact the ability of Business Route 
[BR 24] to handle potential traffic. 

7. The boundaries of the requested rezoning district are reasonable in relationship to surroundings 
and construction on the site will be able to meet the dimensional regulations for the requested 
zoning district. 

The boundaries of the rezoning are reasonable in relationship to surroundings and zoning 
district dimensional requirements. 

3 



8. If a rezoning is appropriate, the requested zoning district is considered to be more appropriate 
from the City's perspective than another zoning district. 

With all the previous findings of fact, the boundaries of the proposed C-3 zoning district are 
reasonable from the City's perspective and comply with the vision found in the City's Master 
Plan. 

9. If the request is for a specific use, rezoning the land is considered to be more appropriate than 
amending the fist of permitted or special land uses in the current zoning district to allow the use. 

It would be inappropriate to amend the zoning text for C-4 Suburban Commercial zoning 
district to allow a Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center within the C-4 zoning district. 

10. The requested rezoning will not create an isolated or incompatible zone in the neighborhood. 
The proposed rezoning does not create an isolated zoned area and it proposes reasonable 
continuation of Corridor Commercial zoning to the north and south. 

Recommendation 
Per the review requirements found in Section 6.804 of the Zoning Ordinance and our findings, we suggest 
that the Planning Commission consider recommending to City Council the request from 00 Cesar Chavez 
LLC to rezone Parcel Number 64-14-18-351-017 [application ZMA 19-12] from C-4 Suburban Commercial 
to C-3 Corridor Commercial with conditions. 

4 



Technical Assessment of Site ivlMOD And Zoning Map Amendment --
Zon.ing ~hip ;i\m,:::;ndrnent Site 

Name of Development: _T_B_i _D_·~· ______ _ 

00 Cesar Chavez LLC 
Name oi'App-licant _______ _ 

.. , 

81 0 LI -?•-1 2 r::.:_ c··7 
Coniact a'rJfor site (Name, Tel): -----~_1 

__ i-__ 
0_0 __ ~-------

6LL 14- '1 8-3 t; •'! ~0 ~1 7 Address & Zoning for Development __ ' _____ •_....1 _______ _ 

r--._:-=-~ r<·r1~1·a'or ,,...,.o,,,.,nmre·,.,c:12.l· 
1'.'Jroposed Zoning Change: '-' •,._, "-J' .1 - vC 11 • I ~1 

P d U 
l\lledical M:arijuana Facilities ropose · se: ______________ _ 

Adjacent Pmperty Zoning: 

North: C-4 Suburban Commercial 

South: 
C-3 Corridor Commercial 

East: 
C-4 SubudJan Commercial 

West: 
C-4 Suburban Commercial 

Proposal 1 Bufi<er Measurements 

Located in or outside 1111l";1 Overlay District: l ✓ I Ove,rly ,ll.rea D Nori-Overlay Area 

!f located in Overlay District, IJVhat is the district?: Cesar Chavez 

Nearest School Facility: j\/ame: Alcott Elementary . >1 000 
Distance: ' ft 

~lorth Kivvanis Par1" "'500 Nearest Park Facility: [\Jame: · - 1 I'\ Distance: ,.... · ft 

. . The Eternal Mother Ternole . >500 
Nearest Religious Property: Name: ' Distance: ____ ft 

. . . Alcott Elem. Child Care . >500 
Nearest Ch!ld Care Fac1lrty: Name: ---~------- Distance: ____ ft 

ZMA 19-12 
Zlv\A Technical Site Assessment 



Applicati n for ning Map 
Amendment 

City of Pontiac 
Office Land Use and Strategic Planning 

Property/Project Address: .. 
Vacant (See Legal Description.) 

Sidwell Number: 14-18-351-017 

Date: July 26, 2019 

47450 Woodward Ave, Pontiac, Ml 48342 
T: 248.758.2800 F: 248.758.2827 

Office Use Only 
PF Number: 2,_/1 A- l"l - (Z-

Instructions: Completed applications with appropriate fee shall be submitted to the Office of Land Use and Strategic 
Planning at least 30 days prior to the regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting. Applications must be complete in 
all respects with supporting documents such as site plan, property survey etc. Planning staff will schedule the application for 
consideration by the Planning Commission in accordance with the attached schedule. Incomplete applications will delay the 
review process. 

Applicant (please print or type) 

Name 00 Cesar Chavez LLC 

Address 1500 Golfside Court 

City Flushing 

State Michigan 

ZIP Code 48433 

Telephone Main: 810-471-2567 Cell: 810-471-2567 Fax: 

E-Mail 

Project and Property Information 

Name of Proposed Development;;_: u_n_k_no_w_n_a_t t_hi_s_tim_e_. __________ _ 

The subject property is location at 14-18-351-017 on the N / S / E / W side of Cesar E. Chavez, Ave. 

between Kennett Road and _s_ar_as_ot_a A_v_e. ____ _ 

The property is zoned: _c_-4 ________________ _ 

P d Z . D' t . C-3 ropose onmg 1s net: -------------------

It is proposed that the property will be used as: _P_ro_v_isi_on_a_l c_e_n_te_r -------------

The subject property is legally described as follows (include sidwell numbers): 

Please see attached legal description, and site plans. 



Property Owner Information 

Name 00 Cesar Chavez LLC 

Address 1500 Golfside Court 

City Flushing 

State Michigan 

ZIP Code 48433 

Telephone Main: 810-471-2567 I Cell: 810-471-2567 I Fax: 

E-Mail marshshkreli 

Are you the X Owner ___ Agent/rep. oftheowner ___ Other __________ _ 

The proposed will be used for the following purpose (provide as much detail as possible with 
photographs, sketches, site plans, written documents, etc.). 
To construct a secured location for the purposes of operating a dispensery/provisional center. (See site plans.) 

Alternatively, retail development. 

Sate the reason for the Zoning Map Amendment, particularly the manner in which the City will 
benefit if the amendment is approved and why such change will not be detrimental to the public 
welfare and/or the property rights of other persons located in the vicinity of the site. 
Said new construction will be a secure facility with 24 hour video surveillance and directly patched into the the 

Oakland County Sheriff's Department, and any other required law enforcement agencies. The business will provide 

numerous construction jobs to complete a new building. The business once up and running will employee full time 

employees from the local area. The operation of the secure f~cility will provide considerable tax revenue, 

and continous employment opportunities. 

Signature of Owner Signature of Applicant 

State of Michigan , 
County of Qa/drfncl 61e,teS"'C 

On thisJ%,2day of ?~·r , A.D., 20 fr , before me personally appeared the above named person, who being duly sworn, stated he/she has read 
the foregoing application, by him/her signed, and know the contents thereof, and that the same is true of his/her own_know t as to the matters 
therein stated to be upon information and belie J/.tW--SJJJJs.Jo .. those--matters-h believes it to be true. 

DAVID ZAVATSl<Y . &a.,~c::., 
Notary ·Public, State of Michigan ubli , 0afdr:mt/ County, Michigan 

County of Genesee My Commission Expires: :;J-e;••Z..!f 
My commission Expir~ Mar. 05, 2025 

/\Ctlng !n tile County of (.h<c:IM¥( 
,..~,_ __ __,___.-,.,=•--'•'· ✓-~ --- • -· 



EXHIBIT A 

PARCEL 14-18-351-017 

PART OF THE SW¼ OF SECTION 18, T3N, RlOE, CITY OF PONTIAC, OAKLAND 

COUNTY, MICHIGAN. DESCRIBED AS BEGINNING AT A POINT LOCATED N 

01 °52'03" W 1272.24 FT & S 85°00'47" E 630.22 FT & S 04°59' 13" W 300.00 FT FROM THE 

SW CORNER OF SAID SECTION18, T3N, Rl0E; TH S 85°00'47" E 248.99 FT; TH S 

04°59'13" W 220.00 FT; TH S 36°11'40" W 331.78 FT TO THE NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF

WA Y LINE OF CESARE. CHAVEZ AVENUE; TH N 46°29'40" W 205.11 FT ALONG SAID 

RIGHT-O.F-WAY; THN 17°29'06" E 385.14FT TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

CONTAINING 2.64 ACRES. SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS & RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD, 

IF ANY. 



f24·;: 
'· -.. - ~ 

OJ 
~ 

(f; 
a.;. 

~,:;:. .. 
::.,:., 

-c: 
> 
co 
(./) i 
(l) ' 
'> 
;r--

j_:,.,ll 

Zoned-C4 I 
Suburban Business

1 

Zoned-M1 

Light MFG 

l~k; 

06) 
iS" 

<$>,,. a 
~<$>i,, 

6)15' 

4. 

248.99' 
~ 

::! 
'-0. 

~ 

Zoned-C4 
Suburban Business 

/'~~ 

roe$>-£ <2os 
Z9.t;, ·77, 

()' 

.. •· i-....· 

~ 

I ·1·111 

I 
Zoned-C4 

I 

Suburban Business 

- .. -, 1 

'11,,fV Zdhed-C4 
Suburban Business 

11.11·1 

I ! 
Zoned-C3 

Corridor Commercial 

Parcel ID 1418351017 - 00000 Cesar Chavez Dr. 
T3N, R10E, SEC 18 PART OF SW 1/4 OF SEC 18 BEG AT PT DIST N 01-52-03 W 1272.24 FT & S 
85-00-47 E 630.22 FT & S 04-59-13 W 300.00 FT FROM SW COR OF SEC 18, TH S 85-00-47 E 
248.99 FT, TH S 04-59-13 W 220.00 FT, TH S 36-11-40 W 331.78 FT TO NlY R/W LINE OF 
OAKLAND AVE, TH N 46-29-40 W 205.11 FT ALG SD NLY LI OF OAKLAND AVE TH N 17-29-06 E 
385.14 FT TO BEG 2.64 A 

!J ·,11 

!11111 

Owner - 00 Cesar Chavez LLC 
Address - 1500 Golfside Ct. 
Flushing Ml 48433 



Additional statement to be added to zoning application As a condition to 
the rezoning, the proposed parcel 64-14-18-351-017 owned by 00 

. Cesar Chavez LLC will revert back to the current zoning district if a 
properly licensed cannabis facility is not operating and not open to the 
public within three years from date of Pontiac City Council approval 
Zoning Map Amendment 2019 That was approved and passed on April 
9th 2019 

Lesh Shkreli 
Owner 00 Cesar Chavez LLC 
12/30/2019 





SUC:,JtCT: 

D/.\TE: 

-~745{} \Vo{:d•,y;~(l~ .Ll..Ye i POi\fT{ __ \(.:J :\,JJC'HJGfa~··r L~33.:.!,2-5H09 
rf'E1_EF.Fi()t'f"2:: 2'"1.3.753.2~~00 I F/-.X: LA8.753.2327 

\/'::RN GUSTAi=SSOJli, PU\rli\ll/\JG N/.D,HJIB::R 

T~~:ROUG!-i THE (JFF[CE tJ~ DEPtrr'/ !'1/t•.·'/(~·X J/\1~Vi: Bi\JS-DjSES:5~. 

STEVEN ORl 

675 CESAR CHA\'EZ : PH\I C:32--'.'..4-19-429-013 

C-1 L{JCA.l B~JSH··~t5S 7iJ C-3 •=cnR?D\JR COiVt P11ERCL~L 

The City cf Ponti;:,c is in receipt of apolication ZlVi L L.>13 for" Zoning Map A.mc:ndment [;-ezoning] with 

conditions per Section 6.807 of the Zoning Ordin2nu, for parcel !"lumber 64-14-19-429-013. The site is 

located on the 22.st side of Cesar Chavez [Business ?.oute 24], b1c:tween W. Montcalm Street and 

Lounsoury Avenue. Steven Ori, the applicant r2c;1_;e::;~:c a rezoning from C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor 

Commercial. The rezoning \,vould ensure that H,2 ;J,·.~posed l'/leciical Marihuana P:0v1sioning Center is 

properly zoned. J'..t the January 8, 2020 meeting ::,-12 ,=;anning Commission recommended to City Council 

the approval of this Zoning iVlap Amendment 1Nitl·: Ccndit:ons. 

Surf'trnarv 
1. The applicant requests rezoning the subject site frcm C-1 Loca! Business to C-3 Corridor 

Commercial. 

2. The Master Plan identifies the subject site as Ent,epreneuric:l: industrial, Commercial K Green. 

The proposed zoning designation is consistent with this future land use designation. 

3. The subject property is compatible with C-3 zoning standards. 

4. If the Zoning Map Amendment is approved, the applicant would be required to comply 1Nith 

Jlsticle 5, Chapter 2, and Section 6.204 S•t2 Plan Reviev,; of the Pontiac Zoning Ordinance, In 

addition, ensure all requirements to the :V1edical Marihuana Zoning Ordinance [Ordinance 2363} 

are met and obtain a Medical Marihuana license from the City of Pontiac and the state. 

5. The applicant submitted a condition to the rezoning that the rezoned parcel will revert back to 

the current zoning district if a properly licensed cannabis facility is not operating and not open to 

the public within three years from date of Pontiac City Council approval ofZoning Map 

Amendment with Conditions. 

1 



'i';i:ast2i' ;::>)a:1 

,l\cco:--ding t,J f-12 Ci~y's 2014 ~1las1er ?!an Ur,dot2, Pontiac is staking a claim to a nevv d2st:r1y. !t :s c. City 
with e:<i:raordinar1; assets and br;ght economic prospe-=;:s ,x, ·,vhich tci build a revised destin,: ,,,;it~ n2 1N 

retaii/ccmrn':"rcial develop,112nt. !tis 'Nich this spirit that i:::- 2,nbedded in the fvlaster Plan upda1:2. 

The subject sit:? is ciesign.:stecl as E;1-cr2pre!i2uria!: lndustr~c!,. Comrnerciai & Green land use ca:egor/. The 

primary goal ci ,his category is to provide flexibility that encourages diverse uses :n the City. Areas to the 

north and south are also p!a,1ned as Entrepreneurial: !r,dustrial, Commercial & Green. i:i.rea ::,J ,he" east is 

planned as Traditional f\!eighborhood Residential, while i,·1dustrial/iV!anufacturing land use ,:2-cegc,y is 

designated to the '-Nest. 

The Zoning iVlap ,u,,,1endme,1t rec:uest complies with the requirements found within the ivlaste;· Plan's 

Entrepreneuri::d District cl:=:ssification, which is to provide fle:<ibility that encourages the adapti 112 re-use 

of propert'.es around th·= Cit•,t 2nd iocateci in the 11/ledical f1;':arihuana o,1er!a1; Dis'.Tict desc.ibec1 i:-: 
01·dinance 2363 - 1\~edic2,i l11!arihuana Zoning Ordinance. 

Based on cur techr,ica\ revi':: 1;,, of the :Jroposed rezoning, the subject s:te is locater:! in the Cesar Chavez 

Medical Marihu2ne11Jv21·!ci'/ Gis·uict. In consideration of the proposed 1·ezoningfron C-1 Loc:1 1 Susiness to 

C-3 Corridor Coiri,-c;eccial zc0ing dist;-;ct, ::he follovving ;\/ied\cal Marihuana uses; Provisicnir.g Ce1-;ter, 

Safety Cornpli21-:-:2 anc: '.~2cu,2 Tra:1::porterfacilities c:i:i be located 011 this site, if al! Me::Jical 1.,s2.ih.!ana 

buffer distance cequir,':rner/:s are rnet and obtain a f1!ledical fvlarihuar:1 license from the Cit-_1 c 'Po.-.ti;3c 

and the state, 

Propert;es to the :-,c-rth c1~1c south 2re zon.ed C-3 Corridor Cor.irnercial and C-l Local 8us;:~c0::;:::. '.:est of 

subject site is 2.0,12d :=;-1 Or~e Fa,nily Dwelling. West of the site is zoned fvl-1 Light 11/ianufactucing. The 

proposed Zoning 1v1ap Amendmer,t provides a balance bet,Neen various commercial zone-::! areas. 

Rezoning Cr;'c::::ri:,, 

The Pontiac Planning Commission must consider any of the following criteria [section 6.sc,1, /',.-J] that 

apply to the rezoning application in making findings, recornmendations, and a decision to amend the 

Official Zoning 1'-1l;3p [Section 5.804]. Additionally, the section also stipulates that the Pi2nning 

Commission mav 2lso consider ether factors th2t 2r2 applicable to the application. but 2,·e not listed 

among the ten uiteria. To assist in the evaluation of these and other criteria, we offer the fol!ov-1ing 

findings of fact fo: your consideration. 

Section 6.804 p;-011icles review criteria for the Planning Commission to utilize in making its findings, 

recommendatic,ns, and formulating a decision. The ten stated criteria are listed below with our findings: 

1. Consistency with the goofs, pblicies and objectives of the Master Plan and any sub-area plans. If 
conditicns have chanQed since the Master Plan was adopted, consistency with recent 
deve!opmrnt trends in the area shall be considered. 

The subject site will conform to the goals and objectives included in the City's iV1aster Plan. 

The i\/1;,rn:er ?Ian created Entrepreneurial districts to redevelop and encourage adaptive re

use of properties to allmv various intensity of commercial uses located within specific areas 

and foster the economic development rebirth of the Cesar Chavez Corridor. 

2 



' . 

2. Cornooti:Jilit:1 of the site's physical, geo!cgica/, hydmlogiccl Dnd other environrrentof fectures 
\,,1ith the ,~15ec· permitted in Nie proposed zoning district. 

1:-,": si,:2 ':as b ee,1 :!":a(ed so it's geo(ogica I, hydrologica i a :id o th2( envi ror:mental featu ,E:s 
are no ionge.- present on the site. 

3_ E·b"'idence the c1;::,,,c/!cont coo not receive a reoso11abfe return on it·;vestrncnt throu_qh develc-ping the 
prope;-ty vii/th one (1) or more of the uses permitted unde( the current zoning. 

The existing site itself is not conducive to develop as a local business use. It is clear that the 

:;mall parcel cciuld not provide a reasonable return on investment. 

4. Compotibilit)! of ci! the potentiol uses al/ow2d in the proposed zoning district wirh surroundff!g 
uses and zoning in t:::rms of /ond suitability, impacts on the envimnrnent, density, ,ioture of use, 
tmffic irnpocts, C-:c.,theti·=s,, infrostmcture and pot2:;tio/ infiue,,ce on property vo!ues. 

The deveic:=:,-ent cf 2 Medical !''11arihuana Provisioning Ceilter is compatible v,,1ith uses 

allowed 1ivithi-, the C-3 zoning distri,:T and shou!cl not negatively impact density, tr2ffic or 

propertv v:du-::s. 

5. The capacity c,,f the Cit/s utilities and services sufficient to occomrnoC:cte the uses perTnitted in 
the reque:.0ted dist, ict 1,vithout ccrnpromising the heclt,\ safctv and vv·elfore of the City. 

The Cit\r's •~:·:~:!Jles does have cc'.pc:city 3nd serv!ccs \,vii! be sufficient tci accon1rnod2tr~ the 
pr,Jp0s2c: •.1i2·~:i~2i f,1]2ri11u2r,a Pro-,;isioning Cent,2,- and iF:)i: cc1r:1prcrnise the Ct'/s he2lth, 
safety

1 
2t~ic: ~,.,.,'::if:~r2. 

6, The copobilit;.t r,'7e street S)ISU::m to safely and efficieot!y occornmodote the expected traffic 
genercted bv r:50_- perrnitted in the requested zoniog c,'istrict. 

Cesar Ch-3'·'27- [8usir:2ss r{oute 24] is a Trunk!fne C;\,,,ried th2 ~.1iichigan Departrn2,1t of 

Transpo(c:=,ti'J·-,. ThE: proposed development ·,;vii! not impact the ability of this st2te Trunkline 

2nd adjoi!-:i:1g roads to handle potential traffic. 

7. The bounc!oriec: 'Jf the requested rezoning district ore tecsonable in relationship to surroundings 
and construct!cn en the site 1Nilf be able to meet the dimensiDnal regulations for the requested 
zoning district. 

The bo;_,ncfcties of the rezonir.g are reasonable in relationship to surroundings and zoning 

district c:im2r.sional requirernents. 

3. If a rezoning is crppropriate, the requested zoning district is considered to be more appropriate 

9. 

from the Citv's perspective than another zoning district. 
With all th2 previous findings of fact, the boundaries of the proposed C-3 zoning district 2re 

reasonab!2 from the City's perspective and comply with the vision found in the City's f\/laster 

Plan. 

(f the request is for a specific use, rezoning the Jond is considered to be more appropriate than 
emending the list of permitted or special land uses in the current zoning district to allow the use. 

It would be inappropriate to amend the zoning text for C-1 Local Business zoning district with 

its primary goal to create settings for commerciai development to allow a fVledic.11 Marihuana 

Provisioning Center, retail facilities within the C-1 zoning district. 

3 



10. The requrstec rezoning will not ueat2 on ic:oloted or incompatible zor:e in the neighborhood. 

The propos,=:d rez'Jnlng docs not cr-2:ate an incon1patible 'spot zcne' 'Nithin the area and it 
proposes reason;.,bie co;~tinuation c,f corridor Cornme;cial zoning to the north anci south. 

ZMA lS-:,_3 - Zoning Map A.mend.nem v>1ith Coi~d;tions 

Pa(cel: 64-14-19-429-013 

:l.esolution 

Wnereas, The City has received an application for a Zoning Map Amendment v✓ith Conditions for 676 

Cesar Chavez, i,~entified as Pli\l 64-14-19-429-013 from Steven Ori for the rezoning of the 

aforementioned parcel; and 

\t\lhereos, The Planning Div:si,::,n has reviewed the applicant's rezoning request in rC:gards to the City's 

f\Jlaste;- Plan and the request conforms to the goals and vision co11tained within the plan; and 

Whereas, The Planning Divisic•n has reviewed the applicant's rezoning request and the requi1·ements set 

forth bv Section 6.804 c,f the Zoning Ordinance, and the Planning Division has determined the 

aforeme,1tioned request anc qrnoosed intended use of the property complies with the City of Pontiac 

Zoning O1·dinance; and 

Whereas, In acc,xclance •Nith the pmcedures outlined in the Zr;ning Orclinc.nce, Sections 6.802 2,s it 

relates to Zoning Map Amendrr:ents, the 1·ec;uest has unc!ei-go;~e 1:1·1e required: Technical Revievv, Pubiic 

Hearing, and Planning Con,m1::-•jon Recommendation; and 

Whereas, Cn J2nuary 8, 202!\ a ?ublic Hearing 'Nas held, and in .:ons:deration of public opinior, ,J:e 

Planning Comrnission r2con·;m2;1cis Cit1; Council approve the Zoni;-:g fVlap J',mendment with Cond1tic11s 

request for 676 Cesar Ch2\1ez., approving the change from the c:Jr 0 ent C-1 Lccal Business zoning district 

to C-3 Corridor Commercial zoning district with Conditions; 2nd 

Now Ther2jore, Be It Resolved, That the City Council for the Cit'/ of Pontiac 2.pprove the P!2nning 

Commission recommendation for the Z1Jning Map Amenclmel7t with Conditions (ZMA 19-13) request for 

676 Cesar Chavez, also known as Parcel No. 64-14-19-429-013 to amend the cu1Tent site zoning from C-1 

LoC31 Business to C-3 Corridor- Commercial zoning district 1,vith Conditions. 

4 



Department of Building Safety l}:, Planning 
PLANNING DIVISION 

47450 Woodward Ave I PONTIAC, IvllCHIGAN 48342-5009 
TELEPHONE: 248.753.2800 j FAX; ,;ws.758.2827 

l'vfayor Deirdre Waterman 

TO: PONTIAC PLAMl\ill\JG COMMISSION 

FROM: VERN GUSTAFSSON, PLANNING MANAGER 
PLANilJlNG D!VISlON 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

ZMA 19-13 ZONING MAP AMENDMENT WITH CONDff!OMS 

STEVEN ORI 

676 CESAR CHAVEZ I PIN 64-14-19-429-013 
C-1 LOCAL BUSINESS TO C-3 CORRIDOR COMMERCIAL 

PROPOSED MEDICAL MARI HU ANA PROVlS!OrH;,JG CENTER 

DECEMBER 26, 2019 

The City of Pontiac is in receipt of application ZMA 19-13 for a Zoning Map Amendment [rezoning] with 
conditions per Section 6.807 of the Zoning Ordinance for parcel Number 64-14-19-429-013. The site is 
located on the east side of Cesar Chavez [Business Route 24], between W. Montcalm Street and 

Lounsbury Avenue. Steven Ori, the applicant requests a rezoning from C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor 
Commercial. The rezoning would ensure that the proposed Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center is 
properly zoned. In accordance with Section 6.802 of the City Zoning Ordinance, the request for Zoning 
Map Amendment requires a technical review, Public Hearing, recommendation by the Planning 

Commission, and a final decision by City Council. 

Summary 
1. The applicant requests rezoning the subject site from C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor 

Commercial. 

2. The Master Plan identifies the subject site as Entrepreneurial: Industrial, Commercial & Green. 

The proposed zoning designation is consistent with this future land use designation. 

3. The subject property is compatible with C-3 zoning standards. 

4. If the Zoning Map Amendment is approved, the applicant would be required to comply with 

Article 6, Chapter 2, and Section 6.204 Site Plan Review of the Pontiac Zoning Ordinance, In 

addition, ensure all requirements to the Medical Marihuana Zoning Ordinance [Ordinance 2363] 

are met and obtain a Medical Marihuana license from the City of Pontiac and the state. 

5. The applicant submitted a condition to the rezoning that the rezoned parcel will revert back to 

the• current zoning district if a properly licensed cannabis facility is not operating and not open to 

the public within three years from date of Pontiac City Council approval of Zoning Map 

Amendment with Conditions. 

1 



Master Plc1n 

According to the City's 2014 Master Plan Update, Pontiac is staking a claim to a new destiny. It is a City 

with extraordinary assets and bright economic prospects- on which to build a revised destiny with new 
retail/comr:,ercial development. It is with this spirit that is embedded in the Master Plan update. 

The subject site is designated as Entrepreneurial: Industrial, Commercial & Green 'land use category. The 
primary goal of this category is to provide flexibility that encourages diver.se uses in the City .. Areas to the 
north and south are also planned as Entrepreneuri.:il: Industrial, Commercial & Green. Area to the east is 

planned as Traditional Neighborhood Residential, while lndustri;:il/Manufacturing land use category is 

designated to the west. 

The Zoning Map Ar;iendment request complies with the requirements found within the Master Plan's 

Entrepreneurial District classification, which is to prolfide flexibility that encourages the adaptive re-use 
of properties around the City and located in the Medical Marihuana Overlay District described in 
Ordinance 2363 - Medical Marihuana Zoning Ordinance. 

Medical iVlariheana Overlay District 

Based on our technical review of the proposed rezoning, the subject site is located in the Cesar Chavez 
Medical Marihuana Overlay District. ln consideration of the proposed rezoning from C-1 Local Business to 
C-3 Corridor Commercial zoning district, the follo1.,ving Medical Marihuana uses; Provisioning Center, 
Safety Compliance and Secure Transporter facilities can be located on this site, if all Medical Marihuana 

buffer distance requirements are met and obtain a Medical Marihuana license from the City of Pontiac 

and the state. 

Existing Zoning Districts 
Properties to the north and south are zoned C-3 Corridor Commercial and C-1 Local Business. East of 

subject site is zoned R-1 One Family Dwelling. West of the site is zoned M-1 Light Manufacturing. The 
proposed Zoning Map Amendment provides a balance between various commercial zoned areas. 

Rezoning Criteria 
The Pontiac Planning Commission must consider any of the following criteria [section 6.804, A-J] that 

apply to the rezoning application in making findings, recommendations, and a decision to amend the 
Official Zoning Map [Section 6.804]. Additionally, the seE:tion also stipulates tha.t the Planning 
Commission may also consider other factors that are applicable to the application, but are not listed 
among the ten criteria. To assist in the evaluation of these and other criteria, we offer the following 
findings of fact for your consideration. 

Section 6.804 provides review criteria for the Planning Commission to utilize in making its findings, 

recommendations, and formulating a decision. The ten stated criteria are listed below with our findings: 

2 



1. Consistency with the goals, policies and objectives of the /I/laster Pion and ony sub-area plans. if 
conditions have changed since the Master Pion was adopted, cl'.'r~istency with recent 
development trends in the area shall be considered. 

The subject site will conform to the goals and objectives included in the City's Master Plan. 

The Master Plan created Entrepreneurial districts to redevelop and encourage adaptive re

use of properties to allow various intensity of cornmercial uses located within specific areas 

and foster the economic development rebirth of the Cesar Chavez Corridor. 

2. Compatibility of the site's physical, geological, hydrological and other environmental features 
with the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district. 

The site has been cleared so it's geological, hydrological, and other environmental features 

are no longer present on the site. 

3. Evidence the applicant cannot receive a reasonable return on investment through developing the 
property with one (1) or more of the uses permitted under the current zoning. 

The existing site itself is not conducive to develop as a local business use. It is clear that the 

small parcel could not provide a reasonable return on investment. 

4. Compatibility of all the potential uses allowed in the proposed zoning district with surrounding 
uses and zoning in terms of land suitability, impacts on the environment, density, nature of use, 
traffic impacts, oesthetics1 infrastructure and potential influence on property values. 

The development of a Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center is compatible 1.,vith uses 

allowed within the C-3 zoning district and should not negatively impact density, traffic or 
property values. 

5. The capacity of the City's utilities and services sufficient to accommodate the uses permitted in 
the requested district without compromising the health, safety and welfare of the City. 

The City's utilities does have capacity and services will be sufficient to accommodate the 

proposed Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center and not compromise the City's health, 

safety, and welfare. 

6. The capability of the street system to safely and efficiently accommodate the expected traffic 
generated by uses permitted in the requested zoning district. 

Cesar Chavez [Business Route 24] is a Trunkline owned by the Michigan Department of 

Transportation. The proposed development will not impact the ability of this state Trunkline 
and adjoining ro@ds to handle potential traffic. 

7. The boundaries of the requested rezoning district are reasonable in relationship to surroundings 
and construction on the site will be able to meet the dimensional regulations for the requested 
zoning district. 

The boundaries of the rezoning are reasonable in relationship to surroundings and zoning 

district dimensional requirements. 

3 



8. if a rezoning is appropriate, the requested zoning district is considered to be more appropriate 
from the City's perspective than another zoning district. 

With all the previous findings of fact, the boundaries of the proposed C-3 zoning district are 

reasonable from the City's perspective and comply with the vision found in the City's Master 

Plan. 

9. if the request is for a specific use, rezoning the land is considered to be more appropriate than 
amending the list of permitted or special land uses in the current zoning district to allow the use. 

It would be inappropriate to amend the zoning text for C-1 Local Business zoning district with 
its primary goal to create settings for commercial development to allow a Medical Marihuana 

Provisioning Center, retail facilities within the C-1 zoning district. 

10. The requested rezoning will not create an isolated or incompatible zone in the neighborhood. 
The proposed rezoning does not create an incompatible 'spot zone' within the area and it 

proposes reasonable continuation of corridor Commercial zoning to the north and south. 

Recommendation 

Per the review requirements found in Section 6.804 of the Zoning Ordinance and our findings, we suggest 

that the Planning Commission consider recommending to City Council the request from Steven Ori to 

rezone Parcel Number 64-14-19-429-013 [application Z~/lA 19-13] from C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor 

Commercial with conditions. 

4 



Technical Assessment of Site MMOD And Zoning Map Amendment 

Zoning 

~1 r D i ,. Pute Life Solutions 
i\ ame oT eve1opmen£ : 

s-,.2,, Cl o· i 
Mame of Applicant l-c; / vll (, 

?Ll8-85~-i:::.d.Ll '3 -,~~ · 
Contact at/for sits (Name, Tel): _·_._' ___ 0 

__ 
0
_• _r_'-~---------

076 c·-,.e 0 ar C Ch-:::ivez t_'\ne 
Address & Zoning for Development O .-::_i -• C · · ia r1c v · 

_ . C-~rl I ec,,.,I Co· mrn,,::)rr·--ial 
Proposed .lornng Change: .J --J - d, 1 !c;r C 

o du fv1edicai fV1arijuana Facilities 
B rop()se se: ______________ _ 

Adjacent Property Zoning: 

North: G-1 Local Comrnercia! 

South: 
C~3 Corridor Commercial 

East: 
R-1 Residential Dwe!!ing 

West: 
M-2 Heavy I\Jlanufacturing 

proposal 1 Buff-er Measurements 

Located in m· outside MM Ow,r/ay Dlstrict: l ✓ I Overly Area D Non-Overlay Area 

If located in Overia1r District, what is the district?: Cesar Chavez 
Walt Whitman Elementary School > 1 000 

Nearest School Facility: Name: ___________ Distance: ' ft 

l 
1 

• 
1 P I 500 I r;1/C,Cl()O ar< > 

Nearest Park Facility: Name: L..,::u~.'C,<J • ~--· Distance: ____ ft 

~/A >rQQ 
Nearest Religious Property: Name:_,_,_,_'-_\. _________ Distance: 0 ft 

N/A >500 Nearest Child Care Facility: Name: Distance: · ft 

7MA ~19-13 
ZMA Technical Site Assessment 



Application for Zoning Map 

Amendm nt 
City of Pontiac 

of lJSI? 

47450 Woodward Ave, Pontiac, Ml 48342 
T: 248.758.2800 F: 248.758.2827 

Property/Project Address: 676 Cesar E Chavez Ave. Office Use Only 

Sidwell Number: PF Number: 

Date: 08/15/2019 

Instructions: Completed applications with appropriate fee shall be submitted to the Office of Land Use and Strategic 
Planning at least 30 days prior to the regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting. Applications must be complete in 
all respects with supporting documents such as site plan, property survey etc. Planning staff will schedule the application for 
consideration by the Planning Commission in accordance with the attached schedule. Incomplete applications will delay the 
review process. 

Ar;!r;!licant (!;!lease grint or tvr;!e) 

Name Steven Ori 

Address 4905 Seasons Ct. 

City Troy 

State Michigan 

ZIP Code 48098 

Telephone Main: I Cell: 248-855-5443 [ Fax: 

E-Mail steve@fran ksl iquorstore. com 

Project and ProRem Information 

Name of Proposed Development: Pure Life Solutions 

The subject property is location at 676 Cesar Chavez on the N / S / E / W side of East 
between w. Montcalm st. and Kinney Rd. 

The property is zoned: C1 

Proposed Zoning District: C3 

It is proposed that the property will be used as: Medical Marijuana Provisioning Center 

The subject property is legally described as follows (include sidwell numbers): 

T3N, R1 OE, Sec 19 Assessor's Plat No 5 Lot 37 Exe SWL Y 27 



Property Owner Information 

Name Yousef Antoo 
Address 44474 Bristol Circle 
City Novi 
State Michigan 
ZIP Code 48377 
Telephone Main: I Call: 616-729-5625 I Fax: 

E-Mail Antooyousef@g mail. com 

Are you the x· Owner ___ Agent/rep.of the owner Other -- ----------

The proposed will be used for the following purpose (provide as much detail as possible with 
photographs, sketches, site plans, written. documents, etc.). 
Steven Ori is applying for a Medical Marijuaha Provisioning Center license at 676 Cesar E. Chavez Ave. 

The current parc:el is designated as a C1 ct#._ssification and needs to be a C3 designation to meet zoning 

compliance for Pontiac's Medical Marijuana zoning ordinance. Site plans are forthcoming including the 
Provisioning Center Standard Operating Plan and design markups of the proposed facility. 

Sate the reason for the Zoning Map Amendment, particularly the manner in which the City will 
benefit if the amendment is approved and why such change will not be detrimental to the public 
welfare and/or the property rights of other persons located in the vicinity of the site. 
This property is in the MMOD Cesar Chavez Overlay District, which is specifically zoned for Medical 

Marijuana licenses including Provisioning Centers. The C-1 zones are Local Business Mixed Use District 

& C"3 zones are Corridor Commercial Mixed Use District, both within the same mixed use designation. 

Changing the designation would be consistent with the overall MMOD overlay district application for MM 

faclllties. 

tl1'1f• fl/ MlchlgU/1 
Cqunry qf Oaklond 

Signature of Applicant 

Orr tit/I d(1)I of. ____ .., A, D,. 20 __ , lx,/ONI me pen.011<1((y appeared the above named penon, who bel11g duly ,11vorn, 3/ated he/she has read 
tht/ort,ofng application, by him/her J/gmtd. and know thl contantJ thereof. and that the. salllf ta tnie ofhWher own knO\fledg,, ~pl as to the ,natters 
thsl'dln 1tatt1d to b, 11p0fl ifllormal/on and h1lief and so as to thOR martm ftelshe bflleflfs It to be true. 

Nowy Pu6/lc, ~nd County, Michigan 
~ Comm/s3/® fucplres: __ 



ADDENDUM FOR APPLICANT STEVEN ORI - PURE LIFE SOLUTIONS 

The proposed will be used for the following purpose (provide as much detail as possible 
with photographs, sketches, site plans, written documents, etc.). 

Steve Ori is applying for a Medical Marijuana Provisioning Center license at 676 Cesar E. 
Chavez Ave. The current parcel is designated as a C-1 classification and needs to be a C-
3 designation to meet zoning compliance for Pontiac's Medical Marijuana zoning ordinance. 
Site plans are forthcoming including the Provisioning Center Standard Operating Plan and 
design markups of the proposed facility. 

State the reason for the Zoning Map Amendment, particularly the manner in which the 
City will benefit if the amendment is approved and why such change will not be 
detrimental to the public welfare and/or the property rights of other persons located in the 
vicinity of the site. 

This property is in the MMOD Cesar Chavez Overlay District, which is specifically zoned for 
Medical Marijuana licenses including Provisioning Centers. The C-1 zones are Local Business 
Mixed-Use District and C-3 zones are Corridor Commercial Mixed-Use District, both within the 
same mixed-use designation. Changing the designation of 676 Cesar Chavez Ave. would be 
consistent with the overall MMOD overlay district application for Medical Marijuana facilities. 
It is 2 parcels away from current C-3 zoned parcels and would be consistent with the neighboring 
retail commercial businesses on the eastern side of Cesar Chavez Ave. We don't see any 
detriment to the public welfare or the infringement of neighboring property rights as only 6 
parcels of the commercial strip facing Cesar Chavez are C-1 zoned and the remaining are C-3 
zoned. 

In addition to the direct benefit from changing the zoning designation, applicant is interested in 
purchasing the property next door and demolish it for additional parking. This adds value to the 
676 Cesar Chavez development and repurpose a property to support a new business venture. 

As a condition to the rezoning, the rezoned parcel or prope1iy will revert back to the current 
zoning district if a properly licensed cannabis facility is not operating and not open to the public 
within three years from date of Pontiac City Council approval Zoning Map Amendment. 



f-, "'ef,., 
'5'.<$· ,l 

Exhibit A 
PARCEL SKETCH 

w 

N 

' ', ' 
' ' , ' ' ' ,, ' , / ' ', . ' 

' <' > " ', V ', •· ', / , ' ( ' ' 
, ';k_ , / / , <01' o..,. , ' , , ', 1' ' > A '' <q ,, ', '-< 

' ' ( / ' ' .,, ' .. '· '<, '/ ' ' ' ,,,,-~'!'<'\,._' / <s, O; , / / , , A '' -~ '( 

"" > ', ( ", ', ', / ', <•-· ' 
1>,,, ' / // ' ' X ' v,~ 'v/ 

' ' / ' ', /)_/) ", ', ', / ', 's,'o, ', , 
'/ /, , X ""°·"'6', 

' / ' ' / ' ',?, ' ;_,, A ,, ';, ,,, ' / ,,,. / ', ,( ' ', ', > 
' ,;.. / ' •· ' X ' ' ' / ,, 6· A ' $ ' / ' ' ' , <_ Z/ .,. / ', >I/. ' ', ', > " 
,,, ' ' 'X ' '' ,, 

/ A ' ' ; ' ' ' / / ' / / ', ', ' ', ', > / ', 
/ ' ' ' X ' , ' / A <s,<o, / ', ', / ', •• , '>/ / ', <'q, '<',9 / / ' 'y ,,. ' / ,., ' ", <o<o, ', /', '£ ', / , , ' 

/ , ' 'lo. <o , / , < ' )/ / ' ', 
/ ' .• 'y' ' /' ' / / /' ,,, /'"' ' ' / / ' ' 

/ ' ' ' ' ' / / ' / ' ' >/ /, ' / / / / ' / ' ' /' '/ / / • ,, / > / ', ', ( / ', ' , 
/ / < o / / 'V ' ,> < ' ' 'y 

/ , -!r_,s· / / , ' / , , o· ', , / / .. / ' / ' •o,i0, ', / / ,, ' / 
/ 0 ; < 'cr' / /A' 0,. <, V / ~ ', )' / '-!r_,S·; ; '••/~A<", 

/ / .. / ' , ', , , ,f) ( ' .• ,, ' / < , • , , •u , / , , ~ , ~ o· ',/ ', / / .,,,. / / ', / . < ,: '£ / 
'-< / 4 ' ' ' > ,,!J' / 'v.P • ' ' 

' ' ' ' ' 

' / // f-, "vcf // ,! / /.P~ / ' '>/ ' "o· ., , , ,;;• ' 'v' , ';f , • ,, .,,. , .,. • ,", ,, I 
' // '\,Cl / o",_,, c; ~ /~ / '' ' / / 

' / ,., " / ' 'y / ',( / , ... t> .. , '"¢,•,,',, ~/ // 
'/ 4'> "''b q, ",, '' / 4' / V ' < ,, • • .., ) , 

'< ,p / ">c;,fr ', /,f, / 
', ' / o"'<S·!/l_f>' , / •v < 

, / V~0c;~ ~ , 

v 1!(>.'<>c,~ m '- / > ' 
"'"' :')?" ,.,'oef / k , ', 

C!) f-, • / '1<,, :>-, ' ( /,s,,:+-c,A' ' v°,#' /n,!p ef">/ %,i, )'- ' ' ,,, =,.,,_' Cl V ~ '.'>/ /) ' ' ~ , ..,> ."a 'I:: 'o\<S1/1'cf, 
7

4?_,_ /'- , 
' . , ' /v " '<o :'>/ ,. ' ' ~ 

,<b / , / ,10~'c,"-<j•/<fef/, /2t,< /, 
'-( , V/v_,.«),, ~ '.'>/ -l• > ~ ~ , X / 0''o'<!,•/nlief/ ~ ' '\)/y 0 V b< :',/ 

Oc_~, ' V / o~'o"'-i:Mfcf,, / 
·41~t,, 'v/ ''<' Y~o)\\~•/1<V;/ 

~"'{b './ / o~ o"'-<S•/ 
u ' '\)/v_-!<)/ ,, '( / 0' 

,/ '\)/ 

' / 
V 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
LAND BEING PART OF SECTION 19, TOWN 3 NORll-1, RANGE 10 
EAST, CITY OF PONTIAC, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN BEING MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS: 

ENGINEERS 
NOWAK&FRAUS ENGINEERS 

46777 WOODWARD AVE. 
PONTIAC, MI 48342-5032 

TEL (248) 332-7931 

LOT 37, EXCEPT THE SOUTHWESTERLY 27 FEET OF "ASSESSOR'S 
PLAT NO. 5", AS RECORDED IN UBER 1A, PAGE 5 OF PLATS, 
OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS 

SCALE 

1" = 80' 

DATE 

12-30-2019 

DRAWN 

AJE 

JOB NO. SHEET 
FAX. (248) 332-8257 

L455 1 ofl 





9/5/2019 8:24:52 PM 

PROPERTY REZONING SUBMITTAL 
FOR LOTS 36-38 FROM C1 TO C3 
PURE LIFE SOLUTIONS 
MEDICAL MARIHUANA 
PROVISIONING CENTER 

ADJACENT BUILDING 676 Cesar Chavez Blvd. 
Pontiac, Ml 

LOUNSBURY AVE. EXISITING 

rl~~PERTY CURB CUT \ 

:::::;;:::.·::::::;:;:::::::::::::;:::::;:::;:::::::;:;:::::::::::::~::::::::::;:;:;:::::::::::::::::::::; 

876 CESAR CHAVEZ·BLVO 
2130-SQ FT EXISTING 

l 
i 

ADJACENT LOT 
RZONING 

'¥
: OFF STREET 

LOADING 
ZONE 

ra 12.0'X55,0' 

:~ !-
1· '1 NEW 6' MASONRY 

ADJACENT 
HOUSE 

: ~ FENCE ON INTERIOR 

~ / ~\ LOTLINES 

~ ---a,/~l __ ".-,.---, --~ PROPERTY 
LINE 

EX!SITING 
BUSINESS 

rr1uw,:,1l~lJ[LO,tNt 

DUMPSTER DETAI 
¼l!:;;:1' 

DRAWING INDEX: 

A2. FLOORPLAN 

JO aEVATlONS 

A4 SECURITYANDWASTEPI.AN 

'""~uau~a, 

().°'"',,~' i ,::j 
~- ~ <l; 

~_. M.S9 

' 
~ 

(b LOCATION MAP 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
LOT 30 : PART OF THE 114 OF SECTION 19. TO\M'I 3 NORTH. RANOE 10 

EAST ASSESSORS PLAT NO. 5. RECORDED IN UDER 1 OF THE 
CITY QF PONTIAC. DAK!AND COUNTY. MICHIGAN 
r,JACANf RESlDENTIAl. LOl) 

LOT37 ~ EXCEPTTHESOlJTHWESTERlYU FEET THEREOF, 
ASSESSORSPLATNO. 5 (676 CEASAR CHAVEZ OR.) 

LOT 3B = EXCEPT THE SOUTHWESTERLY 27 FEET THEREOF, 
ASSESSORS PLAT NO 5 (670 CEASAR CHAVEZ OR.) 

SITE DATA: 
ZON\NG: EXlSTNG C2. PROPOSED C3 
LOT3o=4,000SOFT 
LOTJ7:4,tl.SOSOFT 
LOTJa~4,nSOSOFT 
PROPOSED TOTAL;:; 13,30050 FT 

BUILDING DATA 
EXISTlNG8UiLCHN0=2.130SQFT 
PROPOSED DUILOINO "' ~OJCI SQ FT 
USEOROUPB 
1PERSON/200o.q.rt.{3.0JCY.!00"16) 
OCCUPANT LOAD"' 16 PEOPLE 

PARKING REQUIRED: 
1 SPACE PER 200 sq. It. {3,CIJO /20J) 
PARKING REQUIRED "16SPACES 
PARKING PROVIDED" 111SPACES 

CODE REFERENCES 
2010 CITYOFPONTIACLOCAlORDINANCES 
201 O MICHIGAN MEDICAL MARIJUANA 

FACIUTYUCENSINGACf 

LICENSE: 40247 

GIOVANNI LAVIGNE 
REOISTCREOARCH!TECT 

VIGNE 
i:;rouplic Mcfoliid:iandpl,,nnor~ 

41000 \i\OODWARD AVE. 
SUITE 350 EAST 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS, Ml 48304 

566.242,1525 

ISSUED FOR: 

Ro.:onlngSubmltlD.I 

NOTES: 

PROJECT: 

DRAWING TITLE; 

8-18-19 

i;j 
~-= 
.c ~ 
() -
~ C) 

"'"' (/)~ 
a, C 
() 0 
<.O 0.. 
r--
<.D 

SITE PLAN 
&DATA 

DRAWN; RR JR 

HECKED: Gl 

HEEr No. 

Al 



"q 21'-6" 

0 00• 
D [] 
D [] 
D [] El 
D [] 

WAITING ROOM 

! 
o~J- Q~,[ ~ I () 

::::, 
0 

UJ 

ENTRY LOBBY 

gg 
BUD TENDERS 

M 

"q 2a•.q-

FLOOR PLAN 
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

9/S/2019 8:25:11 PM 

GENERATOR 

i----7 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I L ____ J 

LOADING BAY 

~~LOADING 

WALL LEGEND: 

c:::::J EXISTING BLOCK 

c:::::J EXISTING INTERIOR 

!=:J NEWBLOCK 

c::::J NEW INTERIOR 

LICENSE: 40247 

VIGNE 
gtoup !le .. ti:fo1oct:.;1nd pliinn~•• 

;~~~~ ~o~;Ro AVE. 
BLOOMFIELD HlLLS, Ml 48304 

sas.242_1525 

NOTES: 

DRAWING TITLE: 

FLOOR PLAN 

A2 



North Elevation 
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

n f 

r 

-
-

East Elevation West Elevation 
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0" SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

South Elevation 
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

9/5/2019 8:25:20 PM 

LICENSE: 402-17 

VIGNE 
41000V.OODWAROAVE. 
SUITE 350 EAST 
BLOOMFIELD H!LlS, Ml 48304 

586.242.1525 

ISSUED FOR: 

Rc.zonlngSubmlttal 

NOTES: 

PROJECT: 

DRAWJNG TITLE: 

6-18-19 

N 
(J) 
> "' .....: .c: '.2 u -
~ 0 

"'"' Cl):;:; 
(J) C: 
U 0 
<D a.. 
l'-
<D 

ELEVATIONS 

DRAWN: AA JR 
HECKED: GL 

HEET No. 

A3 



CD 
ENTRY LOBBY 

gg 

CD 
~m---~:~sPoo,a.L---~ 

BUD TENDERS 
U\ 

so 

FLOOR PLAN 
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

9/5/2019 8:25:31 PM 

r----1 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 
L ____ J 

LOADING BAY 

DISPOSAL PLAN 

1. 

,. 

5. 

MARIHUANA WASTE WllL BE.SECURED IN A LOO<EO 
ROOM, CABINET OR lRASH ENCLOSURE. 

MARlHUANA WASTE TO BE SHREDDED & MIXED WITH 
50% GENERAL "TRASH MIN. PRIOR TO LEAVING FAOLITY. 

ANY MARIHUANA THAT DOES NOT MEET QUALITY 
STANDARDS WILL SE DISPOSED TO PREVENT DIVERSION 
OF INGESTION /PROCESSING BY ANY PERSON OR 
ANIMAL 

MARIHUANA WASTE WlU. NOT BE BE BURNED OR A..USHEO 
lNTO l'HE SEWAGE/ STORM SYSTEM. 

UQUID / RESIN MARIHLIANA WASTE TI> BE DISPOSED 
IN COMPUANCE WITH APPUCABLE WAl'ER QUALITY 
CON1ROL STA1'VES ANO REGIJI.ATIONS. 

RECYCLABLEPLASllCWASTEWil.l. BECDLJ..ECTEO BY A3RD 

PARTf. 

All. BUSlNESS / OJSTOMER ?APER WASTE WltL BE 

SHREDDED PAPER WASTE CAN BE MIXED WITH MARIHUANA 
WASTE. 

LEGEND: 
€,, PANIC BUTTON 

,a, DOOR BUZZER 

CJ CCVCCAMERA 

EXIT EXITS!GN 
D 

<9> MOTION SENSOR 

@] SAFE 

SD STEEL DOOR 

di EXTERIOR LIGHT 

@iJ CAMERA MONITOR 

DVR SURVEILLANCE DIGITAL V!DEO RECORDER 

MW SECURED MEDICAL WASTE 

CC ~ECURED CLEANING CHEM!CALS 

CP COLOR PRINTER 

EL ELECTRIC CONTROLLED LOCK 

SG SECURITY GUARD 

ER EMPLOYEE I RECORDS 

RA RESTRICTED ACCESS 

LA LIMITED ACCESS 

OD OVERHEAD DOOR 

@ ALARMED DOOR 

TS TRANSFER SCALE 

POS POINT OF SERVICE 

SECURITY PLAN: 

THE FACILITY WILL OPERATE AS MARIJUANA GROW 
FACILITY CL.ASS C LICENSE ANO PROCESSING FACILITY 
BUSINESSES LICENSED BY THE STATE OF MICHIGAN AND 
SUBJECT TO LOCAL ORDINANCES. 

2. AU. EXTERIOR DOORS WILL HAVE CAMERA COVERAGE. 

4. 

s. 

7. 

ALL WINDOWS WILL HAVE SECURITY ALARMS. 

EXTERIOR LIGHTING WILL HAVE NIGHT 
LIGHT SENSORS, 

STAFF WILL RECORD ALL ACTIVITIES. 

ALL EMPLOYEE DOCUMENTS Will BE SECURED 
JN A LOCKED CABINET. 

THIS PLAN IS ILLUSTRATIVE !N NATURE. COORDINATE WITH 
AND DEFER TO SECURITY SYSTEM VENDOR'S DRAWINGS 
ANO SPECIFICATIONS. 

LICENSE: 40247 

VIGNE 
group Uc arcii,loct:;:mdp6nnor~ 

41000 WOODWARD AVE. 
SUITE 3S0 EAST 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS, Ml 48304 

S66.242..1525 

ISSUED FOR: 

RozonlngSubmltlal 

NOTES; 

PROJECT: 

DRAWING TITLE: 

6--18-19 

N 
Q) 
> cu ...: 
.c ~ 
(.) -
~ '-' cu cu 
(J):;::; 
a, C 
(.) 0 
<D 0... ,_ 
<D 

SECURITY 
AND WASTE 

PLAN 

DRAWN: AA 

HECKED: GL 

HEETNo. 

A4 



I 
I 

9/5/2019 8:25:43 PM 

' (/) ,J 
ENTRY LOBBY 

I 
EXrT 

\JJ 

7 
.f L 

CD 

OJ ' " 

~=~E~oa·-a·-
-- 7 

el Ej 

[f~ [~ -- -

gg 
BUD TENDERS L - _J 

FLOOR PLAN 
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0" 

SAFE • r----1 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I L ____ J 

I 

I 

LOADING BAY 

L ____ ~ 

LIFE SAFETY LEGEND 
NAME 
[@J ROOM TAG 

___ ONE (l) HOUR 
RATED PARTITI•N 

T\./0 (2) HOUR 
____ RATED PART!Tl•N 

w/ 90 MIN FIRE 
DOOR 

Fl ~~~NGUlSHER 

4d' E~~~fr~~c Y 

EXIT 
D 

EXIT SIGI~ rt/ 
EMERGENCY 
LIGHTING 

DISCHARGE 
EXIT 

® NET 
OCCUPANT 
TAG 

~ GROSS 
OCCUPANT 
TAG 

MAXIMUM 
TRAVEL 
DJSTANCE 

LICENSE: 40247 

G!OVANN( LAVIGNE 
REOl:.TERU>ARcttrn::CT 

VIGNE 
group !k arctilliidiiand ~6nno,~ 

41000 VIIOODWARD AVE. 
SUITE 350 EAST 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS, M! 48304 

586.242.1525 

ISSUED FOR; 

RozonlngSubrnltta! 

NOTES: 

PROJECT: 

DRAWING TITLE: 

8-18-19 

N 
(l) 
> cu ...; 
-'=2 
(.) -
~ () 
cu cu 
(/);;:::; 
(l) C 

(.) 0 
<D 0.. 
r---
<D 

LIFE SAFETY 
PLAN 

DRAWN: AA 
HECKED: GL 

HEET No. 

AS 





TO: 

ep.'2trtrJ1ent SaJety 3?1an 
PL/j'-ffTTNG DTV[Sl01·/ 

47-',50 \Voodward Ave [ ?Of·HYAC. MlCHlCAN 43342-5009 
TELi1~ '"'-lOi'l'S: c43.753.23GO / FAX: 2"1f?.758.2327 

\/~Rl'1 i~JU ST!-\!::5501\1 1 PL~i\Jf\iL~.h3 Pvtt~:_l\j/~J3ER 

7HF<f)lJ(3H T:-!f 0Fl=2CE OF DEP1JT:r f'i/U1.,(0R 1t;r}E 8PdS-D1SESS.!}_ 

SUBJECT; 

VJ!TH C0!11Dff1Cirl.'.:, 

R.AMG,•.1 DE:\rT 
114 lftf. \f\/.1\LTC•?Ji Sl\/D i F·l;°\J 64-14-08-380-027 

C-1 L(-YC/JJ_ f3US 1
;:·

1;ESS TO (>3 CC1HRiC-C1H COP·liI'~··1C:~1:C~!~~-

The City of ?01+:iac is in ;·eceipt ofapplicatior; [Z!Vl.l\ 19-14] for a Zoning Map ,il,1T1endn,,::n;: [,ezoning] 1Mith 

conditions pe1· '.:':'ction 6.807 of the Ponti2c Zoning Ordinar,ce for parcel numb-=r 64-14-08-330-027. The 

site is locat,2d on the north side of\JV. Walto;-i 2lvd, between Hollywood Avenue 3nd Carlisle Street. 

Ramon Ce;1t, ti,e applicant requests a rezoning from C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor Cornmercial. The 

rezon1,1g 11\fc,u!d ensure that the proposed Medical IVlarihuana Provisioning Cen~e.- is properly zoned. At 

the Januar'/ 8, 2020 meeting the Planning Commission recommended to City Council the approval of this 

Zoni,1g Map P-mendment with Conditions. 

Sumn12i,"'f 

1. T:1e applicant requests rezoning the subject site from C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor 

Commercial. 

2. The Master Plan identifies the subject site as Entrepreneurial: Residential, Commercial & Green. 

The proposed zoning designation is consistent with this future land use designation. 

3. The subject property is compatible with C-3 zoning standards. 

4. If the Zoning Map Amendment is 2pproved, the applicant would be required to comply with 

Article 6, Chapter 2, and Section 6.204 Site Plan Review of the Pontiac Zoning Ordinance, In 

addition, ensure all requirements to the Medical fVlarihuana Zoning Ordinance [Ordinance 2363] 

are met and obtain a Medical Marihuana license from the City of Fontiac and the state. 

5. The applicant submitted a condition to the rezoning that the rezoned parcel v,1ill revert back to 

the current zoning district if a properly licensed cannabis facility is not operating and not open to 

the public within three vears from date of Pontiac City Council approval of Zoning iVlap 

,6.mendment with Conditions. 

1 



1~ccording to the Cit\- 1

.J 2G1~ Pv1L3s·i:er Plan U:: 1jate it is a City \Vith extraordinar'/ assets arid bright, nt:\IV 

2ccJnDri1ic prospec1:s en 11~f:1rcr; t~; build a re,1ised dest:ny 1-1vith nt:\M 12tai!/cornrnercfal de:\:elciprnent. ~~ rs

'Nith t:1is spirh: that is ::>rT,tedde,j in the fVi2ster Plan L:pca1:2. 

Th2 suiJjecr site i:S d2signat2ci as Entrepr:::neur:al: Resic<::,-;tial, Con,rnercial 8' G,een mixfC:ci-use land LLS2 

category that c1lio·1vs f!2;<ibiiity in use an;:• ;<nm to enccu(2ge tr:2 positive re-use of marginal commercial 

property locations a.-ound the City. These areas have been ident:fied 'Nith the potential to be cataiysts for 

ether positive re-investment in the Walton Boulevard Corridor by entrepreneurs to start businesses and 

create jobs in the process.· 

A,reas to the east and west are a!so planned as Entrepreneurial: Residential, Commercial&. Green. Area to 
the no1ih is :)i3nned as Traditional l'leighborhood Residential, •Nhile Ent1-e,c-re11eurial: ir,dustriai, 

Comrnerci21 ;;;,_Greenland use category is designated to the south. 

The Zoning Map Arr:er:C:ment request compiies 1t1i,:h the requirements found v,;ithin the Maste1- Plan's 

Entrepreneurial District classification, v,.1hich is to spL:r neighborhood economic developr:1ent in are2s to 

allm.v flexibility to attract cree1ti11e and motivated enttc::p;-eneurs and located in the ,\ledical 1\!iarit,uana 

Overlay Disuici: described in Crciinance 2363 - ~.,1eciic2 1 !\fiarihuana Zoning Ordi,1anc2. 

Based on oui- t:=cht1ica: (eviev.1 of the proposed rezonit~g 1 the SL'bject site is located in th2 \f.r~dtcn 

Boulevard ivleC::c2i lV:;sr1huan2 Overlay District. l,1 cc:-:s' 1:ieraticn of th,2 proposed ,2zoning frorn C-1 Local 

Busir,ess to C-.3 C,)r,idor Commercial zoning distric·:, the 't°Jllovving 1,112-:Jical fvlarihuanc: t,ses; Provisioning 

Center, S2f2i:y ·:ornpiiance and S,c:cure Tt-2n:::Jo,t2·- i'aci:iti2s ,nay be located on this site, if all requirement 

of the 11/!ec!ic'.::i :111arih 1J2na Zoning Ordinance [C',c':~an,::c .2353] :,f'e met and obtain a ,v:edic:;i !'v}arihuan2 

license from t:-:':: City of Po:itiac and the state. 

Properties tc t:-:e east and west are zoned C-3 1:or,idor Commercial and C-1 Local Business. f\lorth of 

subject site ic zoned R-1 One i=arnily Dwelling. s,.::1;th cfth2 site is zoned M-1 Light fVlanufactui'ing. The 

proposed Zo1~ing Map .6,mendrne11t provides an-::/ ':e'cween various commercial zoned areas. 

Rezon;n~ C:·i-tr2:""i3 

The Pontiac ?la,-ming Commission must consicle,· 2,nv of the follO\,ving criteria [section 6.804, /HJ tha'c 

apply to t;1e r2zoning application in making fircc'.i;:gs, recommendations, and a decision to amend the 

Official Zoning f1/1ap [Section 6.804]. Addition2lly, the section also stipulates that the Planning 

Commission ,nay also consider other factors that are applicable to the application, but ai-e not listed 

among the ten criteria. To assist in the evalL12,tion of these and other criteria, we offer the following 

findings of fact for your consideration. 

Section 6.80.1 provides review criteria for the P:;,nning Commission to utilize in making its findings,, 

recommendations, and formulating a decision. The ten stated criteria are listed below 1..vith our findings: 

2 



1. Consist2r.c11 v.1ith the Qoo!s, policies or,d objectives of t,'12 1v/oster Plan and on;; sub-area plc:1s. if 
conditions ha 11e changed since the /\/lester Pion was ado;:;ted, consistency 1,vi,·h recent 
deve!oprnent trends in th2 oreo shall be considered. 

The subject s·it2 c)r,fcrms to the goals and objecti112s i,--;cluded in the Ct/s Master Plan. The 
J\11::;st.~r Pian cre2t:':f :=:ntreor2neuri2l districts to 0 

.. ,./evelop and encourage :adapti,;e ,"'-1~se of 

ptoperties to al!o·;,; various intensit/ of con~mercial uses located within specific areas and 

foster the rebirth o'.' ::he W3lton Blvd Cor1id0i·. 

2. Compatibility of the site's physica/, geological, hydrological and other environmental feotures 
with the uses permitted in rhe proposed zoning district. 

The site is occu9ieci b'/ a commercial use; s0 it's geological, hydrologicai, 2nd othet 

environrne1·:tai features are no longer present on the site. 

3. Evidence the applicant cannot 1"2ceive a rea:ocncrbfe return on investment through developing the 
property with cne (1) or more cf the uses permitted under the current zoning. 

The 2pplic2,:-:: dici not demonstrate 2n ina'.:ii!ity to recei'le a reasonable return on in\lestment 

with the: :=: 1isting zoning. 

4. Compoti'::i!ity o:J the potential uses allowed in th'.? proposed zoning district with ::urrcunding 
uses and zon.i,;,~; in te:rr.s cf fond suitability, irnoacts on the environrnent, density, nct'.!,:E cf usE, 

trcffic impac.-.:, cesrfi.=.-t.'C,,. infi'cstructure anci pote,,tioi inf!ueoce on property values. 
, of 2 Medic2i iViarihuan2 Pmvis:cning Center is compatible ,,.,i-::h. 

Slll':O L' .-, ~l 

impcct:;, ~='::':hc:'cics, and infrastructure. 

5. The capacity cf i,~e Cit;/s utiliti2s and services suJ/°icient to accommodate the uses pe,-,,ittec/ in 
the requeste.:' --:'isrxic: without compromising the health, scfety and vvelfare of the CiL":i. 

The Ci'.:y's 0ti:i·1:!es ;-:'eve c2pacity and services will be sufficient to accommoclat2 ~h'= proposed 

i\/leclic:;1 :,,·,2:·ihuc1na Prnvisioning Center and not compromise the City's health, s2f2ty, end 

6. The capability of the street system to safely ond efficiently accomrnodate the expecred troffic 
generotec uses permitted in the requested zoning district. 

VVaitc,, 21::ulev2rd is a Major Road under the jurisdiction of the City of Pontiac. The proposed 

de-.1=:!op:r,2;1t 'Nill not impact the ability ofthis !Vlajor Road and adjoining roads to handle 

potenti2l t:-2ffic. 

7. The boundories of th.:> requested rezoning district ore reasonable in relationship to surroundings 
and construction on the site vvi/1 be able to meet the dimensional regulations for th':" re1uested 
zoning d.istrict. 

The bo•.111dari2s of the rezoning are reasonable in relationship to surrouncHngs and zoning 

district dimensional requirements. 

8. If a rezoning is crppropriate, the requested zoning district is considered to be more :!ppropriate 
from th.e City's perspective than another zoning district. 

\/ifith 311 the previous findings of fact, the boundaries of the proposed C-3 zoning district are 

reasonable from the City's perspective and compl'f with the vision found in the City''; Master 

Plan. 

3 



9. If the rec;ues'. is for CJ specific use, rezoning the for;d is considered to ,J2 more appropriot2 then 

amending the list of perrnitted or special iond uses in the current Z'J;1ing disrrict to of/ow the use. 

:t ,,voulcl be inappropriate to amend the zoning te;<t for C-1 i_cc2i 2usiness zoning district tc 

allov,1 2 ivleciie2I ivlarihuana Provisioning Center .. retail faciiities within the C-1 zoning district . 

.2J. The requested rezoning will not creore an iso!oted or incompot.'ble zc,.:e in the neighborhood. 

The proposed ,ezoning does not create an incomp2'i:lbie 'sp;:;t zcne' within the area and it 

proposes reasonable continuation of CorTidor Commercial zoning to the east and weot. 

ZM/l.19-:1.4 Zoning IV!ap Amendment with C1Jnditions 

Parcel: 64-14-08-380-027 

:? es Ct i 1J t I o r1 

\.!Vhereos, The City has received an application for a Zoning M!ap Jl,rnendrnent 'Nith Conditions fo;- vacant 

r:;rnpe:·t\', icientifi2d as Pli\; 64-14-08-380-027 from Ra men Der,t for the rezor,:ng of the aforementioned 

parcel; 2.nd 

Whereas, The ~,!;=rnr:i,g D:· 1is1on has ;-2vie\,11ed the applican>:': i-ez,Jning requ,c:st in regcrds to the ,:::;ty's 

Master Flan 3'lci i:he ;equ':'.,r rnnf,Jrrr,~ to the goals and vis:c:, rnntair,e-::: 1:vic:1in the plan; and 

\/i/herecs, The Plannin; Divis:01, 110s 1·e•11ie1Ned the applican/s rezoning request and the 1·equirer.'1e,11::s set 

forth bv Section f.504 of :.he Zoning Crdinance, anc; the P!2nning Division has dete;·min":d the 

cforementioned requ1::s-~ an~~ p(e,p;Js:::C int2nded use of ti'.•2 pto;:,ert·;1 cor·.1r:!ies ,Nith the Cit\/ c-f Po~·tiac 

Zcning Ordinance; a,,d 

\l</hereo:-;, In 2cc:Ji'd2:,ce with the procedures outlined in ,he Zoning C1·clinance, Sections 6.802 as it 

rel2tes to Zoning Map A,~nendrnents, tr.2 request has und:::rgon<: the required: Technical P,eviev,,, Public 

Hearing, and Planning Commission Recommendation; and 

Whereas, On J2nua,'/ 2, 202C, a Public Hearing was he'd, anc: i,, conside 1·:1tion of public opinion, the 

Planning Co1,1rnission recommends City Council appro 11e the Zoning Map ,A.mendment with Conditions 

request for 114 1.N. Walton Blvd, approving the char,ge from the cur,2nt C-1 Local Busin<:css zoning 

district to C-3 Cor(ido1· ::::ornmerciai zoning district with Conditions,: and 

Now Therefore, Be It Resolved, That the City Council for the City of Pontiac apprnve the P!anning 

Commission recommencJation for the Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions (ZMA 19-14) request for 

114 W. Walton Blvd, also k:wwn as Parcel I\Jo. 64-14-08-380-027 to amend the current site zoning from C

l Local Business to C-3 Corridor Commercial zoning district \-vith Conditions. 

4 



Department of Building Safety & Planning 
PLANNING DIVISION 

47450 Woodward Ave I PONTIAC, MICHIGAN 48342-5009 
TELEPHONE: 248.758.2800 I FAX: 248.758.2827 

.!Ylayor Deir£lre T-Vaterman 

TO: PONTIAC PLANNING COMMISSION 

FROM: VERN GUSTAFSSON, PLANNING MANAGER 
PLl\i\lf\Jlf\JG DIVISION 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

ZMA 19-14 ZONING MAP AMENDMENT WITH CONDITIONS 

RAMON DENT 

114 W. WALTON BLVD I PIN 64-14-08-380-027 
C-1 LOCAL BUSINESS TO C-3 CORRIDOR COMMERCIAL 

PROPOSED MEDICAL MARIHUANA PROVISIONING CENTER 

DECEMBER 26, 2019 

The City of Pontiac is in receipt of application [ZMA 19-14] for a Zoning Map Amendment [rezoning] with 
conditions per Section 6.807 of the Pontiac Zoning Ordinance for parcel number 64-14-08-380-027. The 
site is located on the north side of W. Walton Blvd, between Hollywood Avenue and Carlisle Street. 
Ramon Dent, the applicant requests a rezoning from C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor Commercial. The 
rezoning would ensure that the proposed Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center is properly zoned. In 
accordance with Section 6.802 of the City Zoning Ordinance, the request for Zoning Map Amendment 
requires a technical review, Public Hearing, recommendation by the Planning Commission, and a final 
decision by City Council. 

Summary 
1. The applicant requests rezoning the subject site from C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor 

Commercial. 

2. The Master Plan identifies the subject site as Entrepreneurial: Residential, Commercial & Green. 

The proposed zoning designation is consistent with this future land use designation. 

3. The subject property is compatible with C-3 zoning standards. 

4. If the Zoning Map Amendment is approved, the applicant would be required to comply with 

Article 6, Chapter 2, and Section 6.204 Site Plan Review of the Pontiac Zoning Ordinance, In 

addition, ensure all requirements to the Medical Marihuana Zoning Ordinance [Ordinance 2363] 

are met and obtain a Medical Marihuana license from the City of Pontiac and the state. 

5. The applicant submitted a condition to the rezoning that the rezoned parcel will revert back to 

the current zoning district if a properly licensed cannabis facility is not operating and not open to 

the public within three years from date of Pontiac City Council approval of Zoning Map 

Amendment with Conditions. 

1 



Master Plcln 

According to the City's 2014 Master Plan Update it is a City with extraordinary assets and bright, new 
economic prospects on which to build a revised destiny with new retail/commercial development. It is 
with this spirit that is embedded in the Master Plan update. 

The subject site is designated as Entrepreneurial: Residential, Commercial & Green mixed-use land use 
category that allows flexibility in use and form to encourage the positive re-use of marginal commercial 
property locations around the City. These areas have been identified with the potential to be catalysts for 
other positive re-investment in the Walton Boulevard Corridor by entrepreneurs to start businesses and 
create jobs in the process. 

Areas to the east and west are also planned as Entrepreneurial: Residential, Commercial & Green. Area to 
the north is planned as Traditional Neighborhood Residential, while Entrepreneurial: industrial, 
Commercial & Green land use category is designated to the south. 

The Zoning Map Amendment request complies with the requirements found within the Master Plan's 
Entrepreneurial District classification, which is to spur neighborhood economic development in areas to 
allow flexibility to attract creative and motivated entrepreneurs and located in the Medical Marihuana 
Overlay District described in Ordinance 2363 - Medical Marihuana Zoning Ordinance. 

Medical Marihuana Overlay District 

Based on our technical review of the proposed rezoning, the subject site is located in the Walton 
Boulevard Medical Marihuana Overlay District. In consideration of the proposed rezoning from C-1 Local 
Business to C-3 Corridor Commercial zoning district, the following Medical Marihuana uses; Provisioning 
Center, Safety Compliance and Secure Transporter facilities may be located on this site, if all requirement 
of the Medical Marihuana Zoning Ordinance [Ordinance 2363] are met and obtain a Medical Marihuana 
license from the City of Pontiac and the state. 

Existing Zoning Districts 
Properties to the east and west are zoned C-3 Corridor Commercial and C-1 Local Business. North of 
subject site is zoned R-1 One Family Dwelling. South of the site is zoned M-1 Light Manufacturing. The 
proposed Zoning Map Amendment provides a mix between various commercial zoned areas. 

Rezoning Criteria 
The Pontiac Planning Commission must consider any of the following criteria [section 6.804, A-J] that 
apply to the rezoning application in making findings, recommendations, and a decision to amend the. 
Official Zoning Map [Section 6.804]. Additionally, the section also stipulates that the Planning 
Commission may also consider other factors that are applicable to the application, but are not listed 
among the ten criteria. To assist in the evaluation of these and other criteria, we offer the following 
findings of fact for your consideration. 

Section 6.804 provides review criteria for the Planning Commission to utilize in making its findings, 
recommendations, and formulating a decision. The ten stated criteria are listed below with our findings: 

2 



1. Consistency with the goals, policies and objectives of the Master Plan and any sub-area plans. If 
conditions have changed since the Master Plan was adopted, consistency with recent 
development trends in the area shall be considered. 

The subject site conforms to the goals and objectives included in the City's Master Plan. The 
Master Plan created Entrepreneurial districts to redevelop and encourage adaptive re-use of 
properties to allow various intensity of commercial uses located within specific areas and 
foster the rebirth of the Walton Blvd Corridor. 

2. Compatibility of the site's physical, g-eological, hydrological and other environmental features 
with the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district. 

The site is occupied by a commercial use; so it's geological, hydrological, and other 
environmental features are no longer present on the site. 

3. Evidence the applicant cannot receive a reasonable return on investment through developing the 
property with one (1) or more of the uses permitted under the current zoning. 

The applicant did not demonstrate an inability to receive a reasonable return on investment 
with the existing zoning. 

4. Compatibility of all the potential uses allowed in the proposed zoning district with surrounding 
uses and zoning in terms of land suitability, impacts on the environment, density, nature of use, 
traffic impacts, aesthetics, infrastructure and potential influence on property values. 

The development of a Medical Marihuana Prnvisioning Center is compatible with 
surrounding uses and in terms of land suitability, impact on the environment, density, traffic 
impacts, aesthetics, and infrastructure. 

5. The capacity of the City's utilities and services sufficient to accommodate the uses permitted in 
the requested district without compromising the health, safety and welfare of the City. 

The City's utilities have capacity and services will be sufficient to accommodate the proposed 
Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center and not compromise the City's health, safety, and 
welfare. 

6. The capability of the street system to safely and efficiently accommodate the expected traffic 
generated by uses permitted in the requested zoning district. 

Walton Boulevard is a Major Road under the jurisdiction of the City of Pontiac. The proposed 
development will not impact the ability of this Major Road and adjoining roads to handle 
potential traffic. 

7. The boundaries of the requested rezoning district are reasonable in relationship to surroundings 
and construction on the site will be able to meet the dimensional regulations for the requested 
zoning district. 

The boundaries of the rezoning are reasonable in relationship to surroundings and zoning 
district dimensional requirements. 

8. If a rezoning is appropriate, the requested zoning district is considered to be more appropriate 
from the City's perspective than another zoning district. 

With all the previous findings of fact, the boundaries of the proposed C-3 zoning district are 
reasonable from the City's perspective and comply with the vision found in the City's Master 
Plan. 

3 



9. If the request is for a specific use, rezoning the land is considered to be more appropriate than 
amending the list of permitted or special land uses in the current zoning district to allow the use. 

It would be inappropriate to amend the zoning text for C-1 Local Business zoning district to 
allow a Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center, retail facilities within the C-1 zoning district. 

10. The requested rezoning will not create an isolated or incompatible zone in the neighborhood. 
The proposed rezoning does not create an incompatible 'spot zone' within the area and it 
proposes reasonable continuation of Corridor Commercial zoning to the east and west. 

Recommendation 
Per the review requirements found in Section 6.804 of the Zoning Ordinance and our findings, we suggest 

that the Planning Commission consider recommending to City Council the request from Ramon Dent to 
rezone Parcel Number 64-14-08-380-027 [application ZMA 19-14] from C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor 
Commercial with conditions. 

4 



Technical Assessment of Site MMOD And Zoning fvlap Amendment 

:7 ,J,·• >-1n 
~t,_..,,._ ,S,.!.J I .,:) ,i\rn,e·ndment Site 

N-z;rne of Dc•Jei~1rnent: Lucid ----------
ontiac 

. 1 - . 1- . Rarnon Uent 1\ 2me o, App icam: ________ _ 

("" 0 r"J--·"ido·· r· "i-n1merc·, ...... 1 Dropos,c,.d 7r,,7in~1 rti-7nge· .. ..,,.-J "-'I r I ( "-,f\J i • .Ji . a l i .,._,. ~•...;~ ~ i.t .J. Qi • ______________ _ 

_ . !V!edical Marijuana Facilities Proposed Us::::: ______________ _ 

North: 

South: 

Easi:: 

West: 

R-1 Residential Dvvelling 

1\11-1 Light Manufacturing 

r~· 'l L IC . l u- oca :omrn-erc1a 

c .. i Locc?t! Cornrnercial 

Proposal i Buffer Measurements 

loc•ffr,~d in ow outsfoLe MM Overlay Dis~rict: I 1/ I Ovc1·!y A&·ea I I ;•Jon-Overlay Arna 

If 1·v--~···,:,d 'le ••s•,e,-l;,r, Dis'"ric·} V''"la 1• ,- '·he di~h~~·,. \/\Jalton E-!vd" 
t•---si'•J~jll,.,,.,. I_! ~ /..,..,,~ 't } it 71.1 IJl~-r: t I-~ l ~ ~-" Ct.~"'--------

Owen Elementary/ Kennedy Center > 1 000 
Ne2rest School Facility: Name:----------~ Distance: ' ft 

i\!eatest Park Facility: i\lame: Jaycee Park Distance: >500 ft 

Berea Family Tabernacle of Faith >500 
Nearest Religious Property: Name: ___________ Distance: ft 

l'-le2rest Child Care Facility: r✓ ame: i\l//\ Distance: > 500 ft 

ZMA Technical Site Assessment 



Ii 

City of Pontiac 

.. 
I Ma 

m t 

47450 Woodward Ave, Pontiac, Ml 48342 

Property/Project Address: 114 W Walton Bvd 

Sidwell Number: 14-08-380-027 

Date: 8-15-19 

T: 248.758.2800 F: 248.758.2827 

Office Use Only 
PF Number: z_;1,;4 /C/ -11 

Instructions: Completed applications with appropriate fee shall be submitted to the Office of land Use and Strategic 
Planning at least 30 days p1ior to the regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting. Applications must be complete in 
all respects with supporting documents such as site plan, property survey etc. Planning staff,vill schedule the application for 
consideration by the Planning Commission in accordance with the attached schedule. Incomplete applications will delay the 
review process. 

Applicant (please print or type) 

Name Ramon Dent 
Address 615 Griswold Suite 1300 
City Detroit 
State Michigan 
ZIP Code 48226 
Telephone Main:310-926-2089 I Cell:310-926-2089 I Fax: 

E-Mail rdent@usafetyconcepts.com 

Project and Property Information 

Name of Proposed Development_: _L_uc_id_P_on_t_ia_c ______________ _ 

The subject property 1s location at 114 W. Walton Blvd on the N / S IE I W side of _W_a_lt_o_n ____ _ 
behveen Carlisle St and _H_ol_lyv.,_o_o_d_A_ve ____ _ 

The property is zoned: _c_1 ________________ _ 

Proposed Zoning District: c3 -w,d'+~Yltc_, l ( Jjf/ 

It is proposed that the property will be used as: retail space/ provisioning center 

The subject property is legally described as foHows (include sidweIJ numbers): 

114 W Walton Blvd. 14-08-380-027 



Propertv Owner Informatioi1 

Narne Stanley Johnson 
Address 3632 Sandview Dr. W 
City University Place 
State Washington 
ZIP Code 98466 
Telephone Main: 253-973-2476 I Cell: 253-973-2476 J Fax: 

E-Mail sta n32j@g mail. com 

Are you the X Owner x~ Agent/rep. of the owner ___ Other __________ _ 

The proposed Yr.ill be used for file following purpose (pro1idle as much detail as possible ·with 
photographs, slkekhes, site pl2ms, written documents, etc.). 
The proposed will be used as a retail space, occupying a medical marijuana provisioning center. 

See attached documents 

Sate the reason for tlbte Zoning Map Amendment, p.arikuh:rly the manner in ·which tb.e City-,,:v-HI 
benefit if the amenrlment is approved and why such cha111ge wm not be detnment2il to the public 
welfaire and/or :the property rnglhts of other persons Rocate(l] irn th,e vicinity of the site. 
The zoning amendment would change from a C1 to a C3 to accomodate a retall space. The zone amendment will allow 

for new business use. It will create new jobs and increase tax revenue for the city. In addition, the new 

retail space will be a beutification to the nelghborhood; removing the abandoned gas station/eye sore -

and preventing further enviromentai damage. This change will not be detrimental to the public bee-'3use it's 

already a commerical establishment with high traffic. We'll obey all building and zoning requirments lo ensure compliance. 

Stale a/Michigan 
County of Oakland 

On rhis __ tl11J' t!F . A.D., 2() __ . befi)rl? nw personal(v uppearC'd the above named pe,:~·1>tJ, n·l,o heing tlu(:v SH'orn, srot(~d he/she has read 
lfli!foregoing applica1io11, by him/her signet!. and !:.now 1he coments rhereo/ ond 1ha1 the same is /nie CJ(hi.1/her own knuwleo'.f!;i'. excq,1 as IO the mar fer., 
rhercin stated to be upon b!fo17nation and belief and so as to those 111arrers he/she believes it ro be rme. 

NOiwy Public. Oakland County, i\.fichiga11 
,\;{y Commi.ysio,, Expires: __ _ 

I 



N 

II 

156.07 

RICHARD AVE. 

ZONING MAP 
1 /30"=1 '-0" 

LEGEND 

M-1 LIGHT MANUFACTURING 

C-1 LOCAL BUSINESS 
Fl 
LJ 

50 

113 

66 

WALTON BLVD 

C-3 CORRIDOR COMMERCIAL 

R-1 ONE FAMILY DWELLING 

86 40 80 40 40 

NOTES: 

40 

W. COLGATE AVE 

40 40 40 

WALTON BLVD 

AS A CONDITION TO THE REZONING, THE REZONED PARCEL OR PROPERTY WILL REVERT BACK TO THE 
CURRENT ZONING DISTRICT OF A PROPERTY LICENSED CANNABIS FACILITY IS NOT OPERA TING AND NOT OPEN 
TO THE PUBLIC WITHIN THREE YEARS FROM THE DATE OF PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL ZONING MAP 
AMENDMENT 

A13 





FROM: 

SUSJ~CT: 

FLAdNTNG DIVlSIOI",T 
47-150 Woodward Aie [ POl'!T,AC fvHCHIGAN 43341-.5009 

~FEC_E?HO1\' E: 2ctB.753.2at\0 / FA:(: 243.7:58.2827 

HOf',lOR;:'\BLE i\/1.0,'IOR, ,:::orn1ir]/_ ?RESIDEi\lT AND COU\\iGL PRES!DE/llT 

}(JSt GR/1~~"~DP~D<JS 
1C:-:; \,\/~ ~f\j/\t'TC'/\.l BL\/D f PJf\1 64-ll:,-Dg-3:?0-D-:-~g 

(-/ l~(}C.i\L 3.USH'JfSS TO C-3 C(JRf~JDC;~q, cc,t.Ji~·11ERCLP.L 

The City of Pontiac is in receipt of application [Zi\/lA 19-15} for a Zoning il/1:ip P,rnei:dment [rezoning] -.Nit:-i 

conditions per Section 6.807 of the Pontiac Zor,ing Ordinance for p;:;,ce: nu17c2r 64-14-08-380-028. Tre 

site is located on the north side cf 'N. Walton Slvd, betv;e•c:n Hoilyv1oc-:i .l\Vf:n'Jc: and C2rlisle Street. fose 

Grandados, the applicant ,2qu2sts a rezonhg fror:1 C-1 Local Business,:.-:, C-3 CJrridor Commercial. The 

rezoning would ensure that the proposed ivledical Marihuana Provisionirig Cent2r is properly zoned. 1\t 

the January 8, 2020 meeting the Pla;11:1ng Commission recornmenc!eci tJ City Council the approval of this 
Zoning Map Amendment vvith Ccnditions. 

Summar/ 

1. The applicant requests rezoning the subject site from C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor 

Commercial. 

2. The iVlaster Plan identi!'ies the subject site as Entrepreneuri2\: Residential, Commercial 8t Gree;-1. 

The proposed zoning designation is consistent 1.Mith this future !and use designation. 

3. The subject property is compatible with C-3 zoning standards. 

4. If the Zoning iVlap Amendment is approved, the applicant would be required to comply with 

f'.l.rticle 6, Chapter 2, and Section 6.204 Site Plan Review ofth!? Pontiac Zoning Ordinance, In 

addition, ensure all requirements to the Medical Marihuana Zoning Ordinance [Ordinance 2363} 

are met and obtain a Medical Marihuana license from the City of Pontiac and the state. 

::i. The applicant subrnitt2d a condition to the rezoning that the rezoned parcel will revert back to 

the current zoning district if a properly licensed cannabis facility is not operating and not oper, to 

the public within three years from date of Pontiac City Council appro\Jal of Zoning Map 

,l\mendment with Conditions. 

1 



Acccrciing: • i:he Cit'/s 2014 1\1\aster Pian Updace it is a City with e:,traordinacy assets ar:c bright, nevv . 

economic prospects on which tc ouiid a , .. e,;iseci destiny vvith new retail/cornr:-,erciai deveiopment. it is 

with this spirit that is embedded in the 1\:2st-':'r Plan update. 

The subject site is designated as Entrepreneu(ial: Hesidential, Commercial 6t Green r.1ix2d-use land use 

category that allO\,vs flexibility in use and fo1Tn to encourage the positive re-use of under-utilized propertv 
locations around the Cicy. These areas have been identified with the potential to be catalysts for other 

positive re-investment in the Walton 8oule11ard Corridor by entrepreneurs to start bLsinesses and create 

jobs in the process. 

Jl,reas to the east and west ar2 also plan,1ed c:,s Entrepreneurial: Residential, Commercial & Green. Area to 

the north is planned as Traditional i'leighborhood Residential, while Ent,epreneurial: industrial, 

Comrne,-cial 2-1. Green land use category is C:e:.ignated tci the south. 

The Zoning Map Amendment requesi: complies \Mith the requirements found 1Nithin the r,11aster Plan's 

Ent;epreneurial District classification, 1,vhich is 'co spur neighborhood eccr,ornic developr,1ent in areas to 

allovv flexibility to attract creative and 8ot:vatecl entrepreneurs_ 

Based on ouc technical revievv of the ;:-reposed rezoning, the subject sit:: is k>:ated in th\= \/,f-alton 
801.:.ievard fVledicai Marihuana Overlay Cistric~. in conside1-ation of the prnposec: iezoning fror,1 C-1 Local 

Businc:;s to C-3 Corridor Commerc:oi z0r1ir,g c~;strict, th= fo!lo\Ning ~,;12Cic2,! ~'·J/~ri>,u2na us2s; Pro';isfoning 

Center, Safet1/ Compliance and Secu,2 T;-;ns~•Yte,-faciiities rna1/ be iccate,~ on this si.::e, if 21! requirement 

of the Medical IVlarihuana Zoning ;J,cin2nc2 [Ci,-dinance 2363] are met c:;r:d cttai,1 a iV12:l:cal flilarihuana 

license from the City of Pontiac and t:12 state. 

Properties to the east and west are zoned C-3 Corr;dor Commercial 2,nd C-1 Local Business. i\lorth of 

subject site is zoned R-1 One Fami!'/ Dwelling. South of the site is zoned i\/1-1 Light iVlanufacturing. The 

proposed Zoning fvlap Amendment provides a mix between various intensity of commercial zoned areas,. 

which implements the Master Plan's :=uture Land Use category; Entre;Jreneuri2I: Resic'.2ntial, Commercial 

& Grc:en. 

Rezon]ng Criteda 

The Pontiac Planning Commission must consider any of the following criteria [section 6.804, A-J) that 

apply to the rezoning application in making findings, recommendatio1~s, and a decision to amend the 

Official Zoning Map [Section 6.804]. /c.dciitionally, the section also stipulates that the Planning 

Corn mission may also consider othei' factors that are applicable to the application, b-ut are not listed 

among the ten criteria. To assist in the evaiuation of these and other criteria, we offer the following 

findings of fact for your consideration. 

Section 6.804 provides review criteria for the Planning Commission to utilize in making its findings, 

recommendations, and formulating a cledsion. The ten stated criteria are listed below with our findings: 

2 



1. Consisrenc;1 ,,,1it.': the goals, policjes and objectives of the fvlasrer Pion ond any sub-area plcins. If 
conditions have cf;anged since tf,e i\l!osu"r Pion was adopted, consistency vvith recent 
devefc,o,r:::nr trends io the area shall be considered. 

-1-l~,2 s,_ioject site conforms to the goals and objecjves inc!;J,:led in the City's !VI aster Plan. The 

Master Plan created Entrepreneuri2i dist,icts to redevelop and encourage adaptive re-use of 

pr,-::,pe.,-ties to allow various intensity of commercial uses located within specific areas and 

foster the economic development rebirth of the Walton 3lvd Corridor. 

2. Compatibility of the site's physical, geological, hydrological and other environmental features 
with the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district. 

The site is occupied by a commercia1 use; so it's geological, hydrological, and other 

environmental features are no longer present on the site. 

]_ Evidence the applicant cannot receive a reasonable return on investment through developing the 
propurv with one (1) or more of the uses permitted under the current zoning. 

The applicant d:d not dernorstrate an inability to receive a reasonable return on investment 

with t:1e existing zcning. 

L1 C:_c,,1,c;otibifity of ail the potential uses allowed in the proposed zoning c'istrict with surrounding 
c·ses ond zoninQ in terms of lend suitcrbility1 impacts on the environn,ent, density, nature of use, 
,:::-1~/fic itr',!JGcts, oesthetics, infrcstructure ond potential influence on pre: :?rty values. 

-i:~e de'c12loprr:er.t of a Medicci f'-l!arihuana Provisioning Center is co,-;-,:Jatibie \Vith 
:,_T:-ounding uses and in terT;1s of i2f:cl suitabilitv, impact on the 2i~'-kc,nm2nt, d2nsity, traffic 

'.r:qJacts aesthetics, and infrast;-i}ctur~. 

5. Th,~ capacity of t:1e City's utilities and s::rvices sufficient to accommoclci':' t,',e uses perrnitted in 
t\~ r2quested dist,ict without cc,7;;-_;romising the health, safety and 1Nelf"He cif the Chy. 

-f;1e Cicy's utilities have capacii:y 2nd services will be sufficient to ;;;cc,:Anmodate the proposed 

f\/l2dic2I IV1ai-ihu2na Provisioning Center and not compromise the Cit'{s health, safety, and 

'Nelfare. 

6. The:: copcbility of the street system to sofe/)1 and efficiently accommodate the expected traffic 
geouoted by uses permitted in the requestE?d zoning district. 

1,v::·lto:1 Boulevard is a Major Road under the j1Jrisdiction of the Cit11 ,:;f Pontiac. The proposed 

de 11elopment will not impact the ability of this Major Road and adjoining roads to handle 

potential traffic. 

7_ The boundaries of the requested rezoning district are reasonable in relcUonship to surroundings 
encl construction on the site will be able to meet the dimensional regu!otions for the requested 
zoning district. 

The boundaries of the rezoning are reasonable in relationship to surroundings and zoning 

district dimensional requirements. 

8- if a rezoning is appropriate, the requested zoning district is considered to be more appropriate 
from the City's perspective than another zoning district. 

\,\/ith all the previous findings of fact, the boundaries of the proposed C-3 zoning district are 

reasonable from the City's perspective and comply with the vision found in the City's Master 

Plan. 

3 



9. (f the reques-:: is fer c specific L,52, rezoning the lend is cansicfer::d to be more op,'Jropnote than 
c1mencling the iist of perrnitt2ci or soeciol lend uses i:, t,~e current zoning distric:' to 01/011,; the use. 

lt wcuid be ir2ppropriate t.J cimend th2 zoning text for C-1 Local Business z,Jning district i:·J 

all0v,.1.:' 1\/ledical 11/larihuana ?rov,sioning Cente,, retail facilities within the C-1 zoning clistricc 

10. The requested rezoning will n.-.:,t create on isolated or incompatible zone in the neighborhood 

The proposed rezoning doE:S not create ari incompatible 'spot zone' 1Nithin the are::i and it 

proposes reasonable continuation of Co,Ticlor Co11rn1e(ci2I zoning to the east and west. 

ZM/.\ 19-15 - Zoning Map A,-nendment with Conditions 

Parcel: 64-14-08-380-028 

Whereas, The City has received an application fu a Zoning Map ,~,mendment vvith Conr.'itions for 108 w. 

\/1/cdton 2!vd, identified as Plf\l 64-14-08-33C-Q2:3 from kse Granclados for the ;-ezo;1ing of i:he 

aforern.:::ntioned parcel; and 

Where0s, T!,e P!anning Division has revi2vv2,::J t'," iipp!ic2nt's r·ezo1,ing request in reg3r.~s to the City's 

iVlast"r Pian :=ind the request conforms to the g.:,2i: and vision contained within the p!cin: 2nd 

Whereas, Ti>: Planning Division has re1Jiev.1Ec! the ;=.~•plicant's ;·ezoning request and the requi1·er0erits set 

forth b\1 S2•:tion 5.804 of the Zoning Ord1::arK2, and the P!anning Division has de+errnineci the 

aforemer:tie,ned request and propcsed intend::c: U52 of th2 property co1T1plies with the City of Pontiac 

Zoning Ordinance; and 

Wherec:;, !n accordance with the procedures oLit!ined in the Zoning Ordinance, Sections 6.802 as it 

relates tc Zoning Map Amendments, the ;-eques1 has unde1·gone the required: Technical Reviev,,, Public 

Hearing,. c,nd Planning Commission Recorrrn•enciation; and 

Whereos., On January 8, 2020, a Public Hearir1g was held, and in consideration cf public o:Jinion, the 

Planning Com11,ission recommends City Council 2pprove the Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions 

request for 108 W. Walton Blvd, apprD'1i:1g t:1e change from the current C-1 Local Business zonir.g 

district to C-3 Corridor· Commercial zoning district with Conditions; and 

Now Therefore, Be It Resolved, That the Cit; Council for the City of Pontiac approve the Planning 

Commission 1·ecomrnendation for the Zoning iVlap t.rnendment \Nith Conditions (ZiVlA 19-15) request for 

108 W. \11/alton Blvd, also \znown as Parcel f\lo. 64-:':.4-08-380-028 to amend the current site zoning from 

C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor Commercial zoning district with Conditions. 

4 



Department of Building Safety & Planning 
PLANNING DIVISION 

47450 Woodward Ave I PONTIAC, MICHIGAN 48342-5009 
TELEPHONE: 248.758.2800 I FAX: 248.758.2827 

lYf ayor Deirdre Waterman 

TO: PONTIAC PLANNING COMMISSION 

FROM: VERN GUSTAFSSON, PLANNING MANAGER 

PLANNING DIVISION 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

ZMA19-15 ZONING MAP AMENDMENT WITH CONDITIONS 

JOSE GRNADADOS 

108 W. WALTON BLVD I PIN 64-14-08-380-028 

C-1 LOCAL BUSINESS TO C-3 CORRIDOR COMMERCIAL 

PROPOSED MEDICAL MARIHUANA PROVISIONII\JG CENTER 

DECEMBER 26, 2019 

The City of Pontiac is in receipt of application [ZMA 19-15] for a Zoning Map Amendment [rezoning] with 
conditions per Section 6.807 of the Pontiac Zoning Ordinance for parcel number 64-14-08-380-028. The 
site is located on the north side of W. Walton Blvd, between Hollywood Avenue and Carlisle Street. Jose 
Grandados, the applicant requests a rezoning from C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor Commercial. The 

rezoning would ensure that the proposed Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center is properly zoned. In 
accordance with Section 6.802 of the City Zoning Ordinance, the request for Zoning Map Amendment 
requires a technical review, Public Hearing, recommendation by the Planning Commission, and a final 
decision by City Council. 

Summary 

1. The applicant requests rezoning the subject site from C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor 

Commercial. 

2. The Master Plan identifies the subject site as Entrepreneurial: Residential, Commercial & Green. 

The proposed zoning designation is consistent with this future land use designation. 

3. The subject property is compatible with C-3 zoning standards. 

4. If the Zoning Map Amendment is approved, the applicant would be required to comply with 

Article 6, Chapter 2, and Section 6.204 Site Plan Review of the Pontiac Zoning Ordinance, In 

addition, ensure all requirements to the Medical Marihuana Zoning Ordinance [Ordinance 2363] 

are met and obtain a Medical Marihuana license from the City of Pontiac and the state. 

5. The applicant submitted a condition to the rezoning that the rezoned parcel will revert back to 

the current zoning district if a properly licensed cannabis facility is not operating and not open to 

the public within three years from date of Pontiac City Council approval of Zoning Map 

Amendment with Conditions. 

1 



Master Plan 

According to the City's 2014 Master Plan Update it is a City with extraordinary assets and bright, new 
economic prospects on which to build a revised destiny with new retail/commercial development. It is 
with this spirit that is embedded in the Master Plan update. 

The subject site is designated as Entrepreneurial: Residential, Commercial & Green mixed-use land use 
category that allows flexibility in use and form to encourage the positive re-use of under-utilized property 
locations around the City. These areas have been identified with the potential to be catalysts for other 
positive re-investment in the Walton Boulevard Corridor by entrepreneurs to start businesses and create 
jobs in the process. 

Areas to the ea-st and west are also planned as Entrepreneurial: Residential, Commercial & Green. Area to 
the north is planned as Traditional Neighborhood Residential, while Entrepreneurial: industrial, 
Commercial & Green land use category is designated to the south. 

The Zoning Map Amendment request complies with the requirements found within the Master Plan's 
Entrepreneurial District classification, which is to spur neighborhood economic development in areas to 
allow flexibility to attract creative and motivated entrepreneurs. 

Medical Marihuana Overlay District 

Based on our technical review of the proposed rezoning, the subject site is located in the Walton 
Boulevard Medical Marihuana Overlay District. In consideration of the proposed rezoning from C-1 Local 
Business to C-3 Corridor Commercial zoning district, the following Medical Marihuana uses; Provisioning 
Center, Safety Compliance and Secure Transporter facilities may be located on this site, if all requirement 
of the Medical Marihuana Zoning Ordinance [Ordinance 2363) are met and obtain a Medical Marihuana 
license from the City of Pontiac and the state. 

Existing Zoning Districts 

Properties to the east and west are zoned C-3 Corridor Commercial and C-1 Local Business. North of 
subject site is zoned R-1 One Family Dwelling. South of the site is zoned M-1 Light Manufacturing. The 
proposed Zoning Map Amendment provides a mix between various intensity of commercial zoned areas, 
which implements the Master Plan's Future Land Use category; Entrepreneurial: Residential, Commercial 
& Green. 

Rezoning Criteria 

The Pontiac Planning Commission must consider any of the following criteria [section 6.804, A-J] that 
apply to the rezoning application in making findings, recommendations, and a decision to amend the 
Official Zoning Map [Section 6.804). Additionally, the section also stipulates that the Planning 
Commission may also consider other factors that are applicable to the application, but are not listed 
among the ten criteria. To assist in the evaluation of these and other criteria, we offer the following 
findings of fact for your consideration. 

Section 6.804 provides review criteria for the Planning Commission to utilize in making its findings, 
recommendations, and formulating a decision. The ten stated criteria are listed below with our findings: 

2 



1. Consistency with the goals, policies and objectives of the Master Plan and any sub-area plans. if 
conditions have changed since the Master Plan was adopted, consistency with recent 
development trends in the area shall be considered. 

The subject site conforms to the goals and objectives included in the City's Master Plan. The 
Master Plan created Entrepreneurial districts to redevelop and encourage adaptive re-use of 
properties to allow various intensity of commercial uses located within specific areas and 
foster the economic development rebirth of the Walton Blvd Corridor. 

2. Compatibility of the site's physical, geological, hydrological and other environmental features 
with the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district. 

The site is occupied by a commercial use; so it's geological, hydrological, and other 
environmental features are no longer present on the site. 

3. Evidence the applicant cannot receive a reasonable return on investment through developing the 
property with one (1) or more of the uses permitted under the current zoning. 

The applicant did not demonstrate an inability to receive a reasonable return on investment 
with the existing zoning. 

4. Compatibility of all the potential uses allowed in the proposed zoning district with surrounding 
uses and zoning in terms of land suitability, impacts on the environment, density, nature of use, 
traffic impacts, aesthetics, infrastructure and potential influence on property values. 

The d€velopment of a Medical 1\/larihuana Provisioning Center is compatible with 
surrounding uses and in terms of land suitability, impact on the environment, density, traffic 
impacts aesthetics, and infrastructure. 

5. The capacity of the City's utilities and services sufficient to accommodate the uses permitted in 
the requested district without compromising the health, safety and welfare of the City. 

The City's utilities have capacity and services will be sufficient to accommodate the proposed 
Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center and not compromise the City's health, safety, and 
welfare. 

6. The capability of the street system to safely and efficiently accommodate the expected traffic 
generated by uses permitted in the requested zoning district. 

Walton Boulevard is a Major Road under the jurisdiction of the City of Pontiac. The proposed 
development will not impact the ability of this Major Road and adjoining roads to handle 
potential traffic. 

7. The boundaries of the requested rezoning district are reasonable in relationship to surroundings 
and construction on the site will be able to meet the dimensional regulations for the requested 
zoning district. 

The boundaries of the rezoning are reasonable in relationship to surroundings and zoning 
district dimensional requirements. 

8. If a rezoning is appropriate, the requested zoning district is considered to be more appropriate 
from the City's perspective than another zoning district. 

With all the previous findings of fact, the boundaries of the proposed C-3 zoning district are 
reasonable from the City's perspective and comply with the vision found in the City's Master 
Plan. 

3 



9. If the request is for a specific use, rezoning the land is considered to be more af1propriate than 
amending the list of permitted or special land uses in the current zoning district to allow the use. 

It would be inappropriate to amend the zoning text for C-1 Local Business zoning district to 
allow a Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center, retail facilities within the C-1 zoning district. 

10. The requested rezoning will not create an isolated or incompatible zone in the neighborhood. 
The proposed rezoning does not create an incompatible 'spot zone' within the area and it 
proposes reasonable continuation of Corridor Commercial zoning to the east and west. 

Recommendation 
Per the review requirements found.in Section 6.804 of the Zoning Ordinance and our findings, we suggest 
that the Planning Commission consider recommending to City Council the request from Jose Grand ados 
to rezone Parcel Number 64-14-08-380-028 [application ZMA 19-15] from C-1 Local Business to C-3 

Corridor Commercial with conditions. 

4 



Technical ,l'\ssessment of Site Mi\,JOD Arid Zoning [1J1ap Amendment 

N::~:"":8 or IJeV0:;lopn,ent : _ .. _r_B_[_) ______ _ 

Name of .i~r.-ph;.ant: Joe Granados 
·;;1 8 L1 ~jr;: (70011 

Contact at/for site (Mame, Tel):_-'-~--_r_•_-_·r_,_'~_1-_~-_,..1_0_--;_• ________ _ 

1 0° •'/ \V lt Address gt Zoning for Development ;I O V\ · J 8 ·on 
C-1 r·o 1Tidclr (;ornnnpi~c;al 01•0,-.•o··- ,d 70,,,.,:lrl..., c·~1-.-:,~ ,,a.- ,,__, .__J J ' _ _,; 'Jl •! 

, r' -'.:iCc....J ,.!- ~,VtJ.18 :-flq_:(~)9, ..... ----------------

p l 1, f\J1edical Marijuana acilities mposec ...Jse: 

Adjacent F'rnpedy Zoning: 

North: R-i Residential Dwelling 

South: 
M-i Light Manufacturin:;; 

East: 
C-"i Local CommarcL::l 

West: 
C-"i Local Commerci:?l 

Located iri or ouiside Mlv1 Over!ay D I~/ I Overly An~a D Mon-Overlay Area 

Owen Elementary/ Kennedy Center > i 000 
Nearest School Facility: l\lame: ____________ Distance: ' ft 

J__,VC'r.:::.1,::, Par1< >t::::OQ 
Nearest Park Facility: Name: a., '-' '--' ·-·· i 

1 1 • Distance: ;...J ·- ft 

Bere2 Family Tabernacle of Faith "':,,L131 
Nearest Religious Property: COPD: ____________ Distance: ;' ' ft 

', 
1 

/ 500 
Nearest Child Care Facility: Name: I\}/ Distance: > ft 

N , R ,· . P rt CCRC Bere_a Family Tabernacle of Faith D' >~38 
earesr ei1g1ous rope Ly: _: --'----------- 1stance: v ft 

ZMA Technical Site Assessment 



City of Pontiac 
Offo:e cf Land LLF., and Strategk: Pl8nning 

47450 Woodward Ave, Pontiac, Ml 48342 
T: 248.758.2800 F: 248.758.2827 

~-
Prnperty/lP'rnject Address: .108 w Walton 

Oftke Use 0~4\ ,g~\fl §idlweU Number: 64-14-08-380-028 PF Number: 

Date; 11/11/2019 

Instructions: Completed applications with appropriate fee shall be submitted to the Office of Land Use and Strategic 
Planning at least 30 days prior to the regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting. Applications must be complete in 
all respects with supporting documents such as site plan, property survey etc. Planning staff will schedule the application for 
consideration by the Planning Commission in accordance with the attached schedule. Incomplete applications will delay the 
review process. 

&ooilica!l1l1: {@!c_e:ase ip:ri!i1llt or hB,el 

f\Jame Jose Granados 

Address 108 W Walton 

City Pontiac 

f, 
State Michigan 

ZIP Code 48340 

Telephone Main: I Cell: 248-495-0984 I Fax: 

E-Mail imprede24@hotmail.com 

!Prnjed <Jiilid j'.i)m!Qemt JI!rlformat\,m, 

Name of Prn:posed DevefopmeJmt: 

The subject property is location at 108 W Walton Blvd on the ·N / S / E / W side of Walton Blvd 

between Hollywood Ave and Carlisle St 

Tltne prnperty i5 zoned: C1 

Propo§ed ZoniR1g District: C3 

His proposed tb21t the property wm be used as: \. ~· c· r:)·.< ,·,\ . .- ,, I.·,, 1,·· -~--. / .q( \ \ ~.\ ..,\ ,· ; 
~) y\·c,._.f:ci{~+ 1.1 -

The subject prnpeirty is leg21Hy described as foHows (include sklwen .1.mmbers): 

T3N,R10E,SEC 8 MARIMONT SUB LOTS 142,143 &144 Parcel ID 64-14-08-380-028 

I 

•r,3 - '--UT ,.;;,;,. ~~- nr~a.-.: '. _,,,·:::-"t')..:., ~ -· . , .. ~- ~ . 



~Jame Granados Properties LLC 

Address 6337 Gambourne 

City Dearborn hts 

State Michigan 

ZIP Code 48127 

Telephone Main: I Cell: 248-495-0984 I Fax: 
·-

E-Mail imprede24@hotmail.com 

Are yo\Ul tlhte "-..// --'--"'~Owner ___ Agent/rep. of the owner ___ Other __________ _ 

The prroposed wm !be ,;is<1:cl for the fointH'Viliil.g pl.l!rp·n§e (pnnirle as Iffl!lch detail as po1rnib]e with 
plhofogrnphs, skekh""s, site p.lans1 wrnrten dornme111ts1 etc.). 

Sate tlhe reason for il::hie Zorming wfap Ameiru:Jment, p~rtirniillirly the m2n;ii1eir in whkh t!1e Caty wm 
beHJ1.efit Jif the 2merrulme;mt fa 21:ppnweidl and wty sBcihl .cllrnrmge wm rwt be det:dmcntml to t!h.e p:lJlblh: 
welfare and/mr tlhle prnperrty rigM:s of oHneir p,ern,1{])!15 J<C)Catecl iITTl the vkh,iv; of the site. 

State q/'Michigan 
Co1111(v of Oakland 

.,.,. 
/ 

1_~ .,,,,__:::-~~·-

,/'-- ; · 
so1:f 11atii!y'!llir~ of Applk~'llfll'[ 

i / r,._. _c,,~. 

On i/11:s __ day of , A.D., JO __ , he/are me pei:sow,/1)' ap1wared the abf)ve named person, who heing dub· sworn, stated he/she has rend 
1hejoregoi11g application, hy him/her signed, and know the com ems therwf and that the same is true of his/her own knowledge. excepl as co the mallers 
rherei11 stated Iv he upon il1/im11atio11 and /udi4mul so as lo 1/wse ma/le1·s he/she helien,s ir lo he /rue. 

No1aiy Puhlic, Oakland Co1111tv. ,'vlichig,m 
,\~;- Comm1'.,sin11 fapires: __ _ 



0 
I.LIi 

z 
0 
N 

-I 
N 0:::: 
0 
' .. 

0 0 co 
"' ' I.LIi co 
'? z 
;t 0 

N 

ALLEY 
(PUBLIC 20' R.0.W.) 

0 
N 

-; 
go::: 
6 • • 
~Cl 0 
cb \LU w 
;z z 

0 0 
N N 

----------'------------------

60.00' 
----------------------~-~--~i----~:::;:;:~~--------------

1 I ·/•, 

14-08-380-027 

ZONED: C-1 

0 
0 
0 
0 

N 
:,: 
f-
0 
..J 

I "' I' . 
I ;! I• GARAGE,; 
I b I; / 
) _J j,- / //// 
I I 

,, ' I· /." / / / / I/,.. 

I I ;., 
, 14-08-380-02[8 / 
,; I 108 W. I ; 
,; V'(ALTON BLVp / 
/ I BUILDING I ;,-

, I/ •• ~/ 

I 
I 

I 
I 
I 

I I ~ 

sj-

:,: 
f-
0 
..J 

ZONED: ¢-1 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 

0 
0 
0 
0 
~ 

ZONED: C~ 1 

CONDITIONAL REZONING STATEMENT 
AS A CONDITION TO THE REZONING, THE 
REZONED PARCEL OR PROPERTY WILL 
REVERT BACK TO THE CURRENT ZONING 
DISTRICT IF A PROPERLY LICENSED CANNABIS 
FACILITY IS NOT OPERATING AND NOT OPEN 
TO THE PUBLIC WITHIN THREE YEARS FROM 
DATE OF PONTIAC CITY COUl~CIL APPROVAL 
ZOl~ING MAP AMENDMENT 

(j:',.,,. 
~ 

' TRIUMPH 

Triumph EngiM-arlng 
l. De~)gn, Inc. 

1077Ss.s;.c111Al'/SI, 
.>UITED 

GRMJO IILANC. Ml 48-IJI> 
lf·H)6\0.56J73o4 
IFi BIO 5~~ 7Jb2 

_m 
2 :::::..·~ 
-G 0~ 

zU~ 
oou 
f- z w 
_J <( (/) 
<( _J = s :,,: ""' . ~ c2 s 0 0 
0:::, u" ~ 
~30 

I- w z _J 

0 <( 
CL 0 

(/) 

60.00' '------------------------~----------"'-'="'---r--------------- ---~f---

W. WALTON BLVD 
(PUBLIC 120' R.O.W.) 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
T3N, R10E, SEC 8 MARIMONT SUB 
LOTS 142, 143 & 144 
(PARCEL ID 14-08-380-028) 

Knew wha!'• below. 
Callbeloroyoudlg. 

,J' 10· 

;c•u:: 1·-1,, 

---C------===~ -----I-------

,o~ ~D ro,m,c IOI ,I ~l>lTDI, 

lH(ITTITlt 

REZOMIIJO PlAt/ 

RZ-1 



CHRISTOPHER P. AIELLO 
AARON D. GEYER 
A:1rao@1Chrisinello cam 

City of Pontiac 
Planning Division 

AIELLO & ASSOCIATES, P.L.L.C. 
A ctorneys and Counselors at Lalv 

32411l,1ound Road 
Warren, Michigan 48092 

January 2, 2020 

Attn: Vern Gustafsson, Planning Manager 
47450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Michigan 48342 
Sent by Email (vgustafsson@pontiac.mi.us) and by First Class Mail 

Re: Rezoning of 108 W Walton Blvd 

.. 
Dear Mr. Gustafsson: 

TB.EPHONE 
(086) 303-]2] l 
FACSIMILE 
(586) 303-1.'.'59 

The applicant has applied to the ZBA to have the real property located at 108 W. Walton 
Blvd. rezoned to support an application for licensing of a medical marihuana provisioning center 
in the Walton Blvd Overlay District. 

As a condition to the rezoning, the rezoned parcel or property will revert back to the 
current zoning district if a properly licensed cannabis facility is not operating and not open to the 
public within three years from date of Pontiac City Council approval Zoning Map Amendment" 

ADG/ 

Thank you for your cooperation in this matter. 

Very truly yours, 
AIELLO & ASSOCIATES, PLLC 

Aaron D. Geyer 

Aaron D. Geyer 
Attorney at Law 





TO: 

47450 \\/oochvard ~~ve I f'Ot!T~A_C, f\liJC~-lt,GJ.._N 4S342-5009 
TELEP-HON~: 2 ... 1.;J.753-2300 ! f.,-\J(: 2-42,.75,1.1827 

{J 
b 

5lJBJECT: ZMA :l.3-:1-E 

\NlLU.0Jvl fviOfSTA 

228 1./1j, \J1J;:\tT~J~\J 8L\JD f ?;:•J 34-:L,-'..-1J8-354-01D 

C-1 tGCf-\J_ 8~-~3lf\ItSS T{) C-~:. CtJRS:.JD()R C{J~1,Jt,/L~RC1AL 

·~· P·.TE: 

The City of Pontiac is in i-eceip c~ 2,Jplicatior: [ZMA.19-lt] fc, a Zoning 1\/lap P,mendment [rezoning] '1•tith 

conditions per Section 6.807 e,f the Pontiac Zoning Ordinan,:e for parcel number 64-14-08-354-010. The 

.33 acre site is located on ,:ne nc,rth side of \N. Waltcn Bivd, bet,.Neen 'i•i. f\!ew York Avenue and Carlisl<c 

Street. William 1\iloest2, ~he appl;c;c;r,,: requests a :-ezoning from C-1 Local Susir:ess to C-3 Corridor 

Commercial. The rezoning ,,vould ensure that the proposed Medical f\/ia,ihuar,a Provisioning Cente( is 

properiy zoned. At the Jc,m:ary 8, 2020 meeting the Planr,ing Commission recommended to City Council 

the approved of this Zoni::g f11lap Arnendrnent with Conditions. 

1. The applicant reciuests rezoning the subject site frorn C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor 

Commercial. 

2. The Master Pian ici2ntifies the subject site as Entrepreneurial: Residential, Comme,cial /:,_ Green. 

The proposed zoning dt:signation is consistent vvith this future land use designation. 

3. The subject ;:iroperty is compatible with C-3 zoning st.,nclards. 

4. If the Zoning rv1ap /l.rnendment is approved, the applicant would be required to comply with 

Article 6, Chapter 2, and Section 6.204 Site Plan Feview of the Pontiac Zoning Ordinance, In 

addition, ensure all requirements to the Medical i'!iarihuana Zoning Ordinance [Ordinance 2363) 

are met and obtain a Medical Marihuana license from the City of Pontiac and the state. 

5. The applicant submitted a conditio,n to the rezoning that the rezoned parcel vvill revert back to 

the current zoning district if il properly licensed cannabis facility is not operating and not open to 

the public within three years from date of Pontiac City Council approval of Zoning IVlap 

Amendment with Conditions. 

1 



/'.cco,ding t'J the Citv's 2014 Master P!2n Updat,e ;tis '<Nith extrao,,:;:na:-\' assets anc' b,ight, ;iew econornic 

prospec-:-:s on 'Nhich tc• build a revised destiny 'Nith r;e•lv retail/comn1ercic! ci2v,~ioprner:t it is \Nilh this 

spi,i:: th2t is embedded in the Master Plan upda~e. 

The s,,bject site is designated as Entreprer:eutial: P.esidential, Commercial£, Gr,::en mixed-use !;:;nd use 

categor/ that allows flexibility in use and fo,rn to encourage the positi,1e re-use of under-utilized propertv 

er redevelop locations around the City. These areas have been identified with the potential to be 

catalvsts fo1- other positive re-investment in these ne1ghborhoods and/or corridors by ei-,trepreneurs to 

start businesses and create jobs in the precess. 

Areas to the east 2nd vvest a1"e also planned 3S Entrepreneurial: Residenti2I, Commercial gt Green. /',sea to 

the north is pianned as Tradition2I i\!eighborl>ood Pesidentiai, 'Nhile Entrepreneurial: industrial, 

Cornmercia! !st G:-een; a mi;zed-use iand :Jse category is designated to the south. 

The Zoning 1\.iap Amendment request complies with the requirements found within -i::he ,1/laster Plan's 

Entrepreneurial District classification, vvhich is to spui- neighborho0cl/c0rridor economic development in 

areas to allm,v flexibility to attract creative 2nd motivated entreprer,eu(s located in the iv'!edical 

iVlarihuana :Jver!3'/ District d2scribed in Orclinance 2363 - l\/leclic2I i'-1i21·ih~1ana Zon:ng O,dinance. 

82sed on OL'r t':.chnical rev1e'N cf the proposed rezoning, the subjec:: :::ii:2 is located ir: the Waltor> 

EoL:le·121·d Medical ivlarihua~,a C-1ed2v District. !n consideration of th" 'J 1·0::;osed rezoning from C-l l_oc2I 

Business ',o C-3 C,Jrridor Cornrn('Jcial zcning district, the following Meclicai 1v1arihuana U'.,es; ?rovis:oni:~,g 

C-:::nte,, Scfety Compliance on-:1 :=:,:::cure :r:rnsp•,-ter facilities rn2y be l,xated en this site, :fall rec;uire"nu.t 

of th2 Vleciical 1\/larihuar:a Zoning Ordinance [Ordinance 2353} a,e met and obtain a rvJecical M2rihL1arc1 

license from tne City of Pontiac and the state. 

Prnpe1·ties to the east and \Nest 2re zoned C-3 Corridor Ccmmercial 2nd C-1 Local Business. North o:" 

sucject site is zoned R-1 One ~amily Dwelling. South of the site is zoned C-3 2nd C-1. The proposed 

Zoning Mcp ,l\rnendment pro\/ides a mix bebveen vcirious comm2;-ci2I zoned areas. 

The Pontiac Planning Commission rnust consider any of the follo,;,Jing criteria [section 6.804, A-J) th2t 

2pply to the rezoning applic2tion in making findings, recommendations, and a decision to ameno the 

Official Zoning Map [Section 6.804). Additionally, the section also stipulates that the Planning 

Corn mission may also consider other factors th2t are applicable to the application, but are not listed 

among the ten cr:teria. To assist in the evaluation of these and othei- criteria, we offer the foilov1ing 

findings of fact for your consideration. 

Section 6.804 provides review criteria for the Planning Commission to utilize in making its findings, 

recomrnendations, and formulating a decision. The ten stated criterio are listed belov,, with our findings: 

2 



1. Consiste,~cy with the goo is, policies end e:bjectives of the l'✓loster Pion and any sub-orec plans. if 
coodirions hove ,::hanged since the 1V!osrer Pion was adopted, consistency vvith reeent 
cfevefoprnent trencs in the ore'J s·;.,// b2 considered. 

T:1e subject site ccnforrns t•J the goals end objectives inciud€:d in the City's f,/laste1· Plan. The 

f11!aster· Pl2n created Em:,ep1e,.2urial districts to redevelop a0d encourage adaptive re-use of 

properties to ::i1low various intensity c-f commercial uses !ocated within specific areas and 

fosc,2, the rebirth of the W::iitori Slvd Co1-(idor. 

2. Compotibility ofr/;2 site's phys:coC geological, hydrologiccf and other environmental features 
with the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district. 

The site is currently developed as a r-estaurant use; so it's geological, hydrological, and other 

environmental features 2,r2 r,o longer present on the site. 

3. Evic'ence t/1e applicant conr,ot (eceive CJ reasonable return on investment through developing the 
property with one (1) or more of the uses r;ermitted under the cur:ent zoning. 

The applicant did noc: der ... c;;-,sc:rate an inabilitv to receive a reasonable return on investment 

with the existing zoning. 

Li Compotibi!ity of ull the pote,~Ucl uses o/!ovv·ed in the proposed zoning district 1,,1Jth surrounding 
uses and zoning in terms of lex: s:_:itobi!ity1 ii~1pacts on the enviroo,,':er:t, density noture of use, 
traffic inipacts, aesthetics, inf,·c:~tructure ond pot2ntial influence on property values. 

The develop,nent of a fv;.e::::::1 1 :\/i2,ihu2na Pmvisioning Centu is compatible 1Nith 
surrounding uses and in·:-"'.~-:-,: of i:Jnd s1~;tabf!ity, irnp3Ct on ~he: ::J,\tironrnent, densii:y, traffic 
impicts, aesthetics, 2n(i :r,-i:.-c.5"tructure. 

5. The capacity of the City's utf!it'-c-- enc services sufficient to accorr·,1odote the uses permirted in 
the requested district with0< :u,.,promising the health,. scfet;: ond 'Nelfor2 of the City. 

The City's utilities have c21:;:,::t'j and .;ecvices wi!! be sufficier,t to accommodate the proposed 

Medical ~-11arihuana F.·o• .. is:oning Center and not compromis-= the City's health, safety, and 

vvelfare. 

6. The capability. of the stt'eet to safe/;1 and efficiently cccommodate the expected traffic 
generated bv uses permittec· in th.:.: requested zoning district. 

Walton Boulevard is 2 iV1ajoi- Road under the jurisdicticn of the C:ty of Pontiac. The proposerj 

development will 11ot irnp;:ict t:1e ability of this Major Road and 3djoining roads to handle 

potential traffic. 

7. The boundaries of the requested rezoning district ere reasonable in relationship to surroundings 
and construction on the c:i:e v, 1i!/ be able to meet the dimensional regulations for the requested 
zoning district. 

The boundaries oftr.2 rezoning are reasonable in relationship to surroundings and zoning 

district dir.,ensio173i requirements. 

8. If a rezoning is appropriote, the requested zoning district is considered to be more appropriate 
from the City's perspecti•Je than another zoning district. 

With ali the previous findings of fact, the boundaries of the proposed C-3 zoning district are 

reasonable from the City's perspective and comply with the vision found in the City's Master 

Plan. 

3 



9. If the request ,s for a specific us2, rezoning the: fond is considered co be more oppropriore than 
emending t1'2 list of permitted or special fond uses in the current zoning district to cffo,,v the use. 

it '.VOuld b2 inapprnoriate to amend the zoning -cext for C-1 Local Susiness zoning district to 

arrow 2i Medical i\/larihuana Pro1;isioning Center .. retail fa,:ilities within the C-1 zoning districc. 

lU. The requested rezoning will not create an isolated or incompatible zon2 in the neighborhood. 
The pro~osed rezoning does not create an incompatible 'spot zone' within the 2rea and it 
proposes reasonable continuation of Corridor Cornmei-cial zoning to the east and west. 

ZMA 19-15 - Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions 

Pa reel: 64--14-03-354-010 

Resolution 

\lv'h2i-eas,. Th2 City has r2ceived an appl:cation for a Zoning Map /\mendrner:t 1,vith Conditions for 228 

W. \;\ta!tcr: El1rd, id2ntified as Plf,1 64-:1.4-08-354-010 from William l\/loes~3 fo1· the rezoning of the 

aforen,er,::ior,ed parcel; and 

\!Vhe(ecs, ~;-;": ?iann:17g Di1Jision hes revie'J,1ed the applicant's rezoning rc=:c; 1.',est 1n 1·egards rn the City's 

Master P,::,~ c.ncl the (2qu2st ccnfoi-rns to the goals and vision contained v,1ithin the plan; and 

\/v'h2rec.s. 1he P!anning Division has revi2 1ded t;1e applicant's rezoning reqL!est and the requirements set 

forth b':1 Se·=c::01·, S.20J. of the Zoning IJ•,C:inance, and the Planning Di'1is;on h2s c:ete,rnined the 

afor2rr'.2nti,,·,ec' i'equest and proposed in,:e~:deci use of the property corn;lieo: with the Citv of Pontiac 

\lilfEieos, I:: accordance with the procedures outlined in the Zoning Crdir,211ce, Sections 6.802 as it 

relates to 2.c,!·,ing iV1a:::> _t,_mendmEnts, the request has undergone the ,ee;uirec: Tech1,ica! Review, Public 

Hearing, anC: Pl2nr:1ng Commission Recornrr.endaticn; and 

Wherecs, On Jan 1Jarv 2, 2020, a Pubiic Hec1ring was held, and in consider2.tion of public opinion, the 

P!ar:ning Commission (ecomrnends Cit',; Council approve the Zoning i\/lap PJnendment 1,vith Conditions 

(equest for 228 W. Wc1lton Blvd, approving the change from the CUiT::,Tt C-1 Local Business zoning 

oistrict tc C-3 Corridor Commercial zoning dist1·ict with Conditions; 2nd 

Now Therefore, Be It Resolved, That the City Council for the City of Ponti::;c approve the Planning 

Comrnis.sion ;·ecommendation for the Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions (ZMA 19-16) request for 

228 W. \ivah:on Blvd, also known as Parcel ~fo. 64-14-08-354-010 to amend the c1_1rrent site zoning from C

l Local Business to C-3 Corridor Cornme~cial zoning district with Conditions. 

4 



Department of Building Safety & Planning 
PLANNING DIVISION 

47450 Woodward A~ I PONTIAC, MICIDGAN 48342-5009 
TELEPHONE: 248.758.2800 I FAX: 248.758.2827 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

TO: PONTIAC PLANNING COMMISSION 

FROM: VERN GUSTAFSSON, PLANNING MANAGER 

PLANNING DIVISION 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

ZMA 19-16 ZONING MAP AMENDMENT WITH CONIDTIONS 

WILLIAM MOESTA 

228 W. WALTON BLVD I PIN 64-14-08-354-010 

C-1 LOCAL BUSINESS TO C-3 CORRIDOR COMMERCIAL 

PROPOSED MEDICAL MARIHUANA PROVISIONING CENTER 

DECEMBER 30, 2019 

The City of Pontiac is in receipt of application [ZMA 19-16] for a Zoning Map Amendment [rezoning] with 
conditions per Section 6.807 of the Pontiac Zoning Ordinance for parcel number 64-14-08-354-010. The 
.33 acre site is located on the north side of W. Walton Blvd, between W. New York Avenue and Carlisle 
Street. William Moesta, the applicant requests a rezoning from C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor 
Commercial. The rezoning would ensure that the proposed Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center is 
properly zoned. In accordance with Section 6.802 of the City Zoning Ordinance, the request for Zoning 
Map Amendment requires a technical review, Public Hearing, recommendation by the Planning 
Commission, and a final decision by City Council. 

Summary 
1. The applicant requests rezoning the subject site from C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor 

Commercial. 

2. The Master Plan identifies the subject site as Entrepreneurial: Residential, Commercial & Green. 

The proposed zoning designation is consistent with this future land use designation. 

3. The subject property is compatible with C-3 zoning standards. 

4. If the Zoning Map Amendment is approved, the applicant would be required to comply with 

Article 6, Chapter 2, and Section 6.204 Site Plan Review of the Pontiac Zoning Ordinance, In 

addition, ensure all requirements to the Medical Marihuana Zoning Ordinance [Ordinance 2363] 

are met and obtain a Medical Marihuana license from the City of Pontiac and the state. 

5. The applicant submitted a condition to the rezoning that the rezoned parcel will revert back to 

the current zoning district if a properly licensed cannabis facility is not operating and not open to 

the public within three years from date of Pontiac City Council approval of Zoning Map 

Amendment with Conditions. 

1 



Master Plan 
According to the City's 2014 Master Plan Update it is with extraordinary assets and bright, new economic 
prospects on which to build a revised destiny with new retail/commercial development. It is with this 
spirit t'1at is embedded in the Master Plan update. 

The subject site is designated as Entrepreneurial: Residential, Commercial & Green mixed-use land use 
category that allows flexibility in use and form to encourage the positive re-use of under-utilized property 
or redevelop locations around the City. These areas have been identified with the potential to be 
catalysts for other positive re-investment in these neighborhoods and/or corridors by entrepreneurs to 
start businesses and create jobs in the process. 

Areas to the east and west are also planned as Entrepreneurial: Residential, Commercial & Green. Area to 
the north is planned as Traditional Neighborhood Residential, while Entrepreneurial: industrial, 
Commercial & Green, a mixed-use land use category is designated to the south. 

The Zoning Map Amendment request complies with the requirements found within the Master Plan's 
Entrepreneurial District classification, which is to spur neighborhood/corridor economic development in 
areas to allow flexibility to attract creative and motivated entrepreneurs located in the Medical 
Marihuana Overlay District described in Ordinance 2363 - Medical Marihuana Zoning Ordinance. 

Medical Marihuana Overlay District 

Based on our technical review of the proposed rezoning, the subject site is located in the Walton 
Boulevard Medical Marihuana Overlay District. In consideration of the proposed rezoning from C-1 Local 
Business to C-3 Corridor Commercial zoning district, the following Medical Marihuana uses; Provisioning 
Center, Safety Compliance and Secure Transporter facilities may be located on this site, if all requirement 
of the Medical Marihuana Zoning Ordinance [Ordinance 2363] are met and obtain a Medical Marihuana 
license from the City of Pontiac and the state. 

Existing Zoning Districts 
Properties to the east and west are zoned C-3 Corridor Commercial and C-1 Local Business. North of 
subject site is zoned R-1 One Family Dwelling. South of the site is zoned C-3 and C-1. The proposed 
Zoning Map Amendment provides a mix between various commercial zoned areas. 

Rezoning Criteria 
The Pontiac Planning Commission must consider any of the following criteria [section 6.804, A-J] that 
apply to the rezoning application in making findings, recommendations, and a decision to amend the 
Official Zoning Map [Section 6.804]. Additionally, the section also stipulates that the Planning 
Commission may also consider other factors that are applicable to the application, but are not listed 
among the ten criteria. To assist in the evaluation of these and other criteria, we offer the following 
findings of fact for your consideration. 

Section 6.804 provides review criteria for the Planning Commission to utilize in making its findings, 
recommendations, and formulating a decision. The ten stated criteria are listed below with our findings: 

2 



1. Consistency with the goals, policies and objectives of the Master Plan and any sub-area plans. If 
conditions have changed since the Master Plan was adopted, consistency with recent 
development trends in the area shall be considered. 

The subject site conforms to the goals and objectives included in the City's Master'Plan~,;,he 
Master Plan created Entrepreneurial districts to redevelop and encourage adaptive re-use of 
properties to allow various intensity of commercial uses located within specific areas and 
foster the rebirth of the Walton Blvd Corridor. 

2. Compatibility of the site's physical, geological, hydrological and other environmental features 
with the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district. 

The site is currently developed as a restaurant use; so it's geological, hydrological, and other 
environmental features are no longer present on the site. 

3. Evidence the applicant cannot receive a reasonable return on investment through developing the 
property with one {1} or more of the uses permitted under the current zoning. 

The applicant did not demonstrate an inability to receive a reasonable return on investment 
with the existing zoning. 

4. Compatibility of all the potential uses allowed in the proposed zoning district with surrounding 
uses and zoning in- terms of land suitability, impacts on the environment, density, nature of use, 
traffic impacts, aesthetics, infrastructure and potential influence on property values. 

The development of a Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center is compatible with 
surrounding uses and in terms of land suitability, impact on the environment, density, traffic 
impacts, aesthetics, and infrastructure. 

5. The capacity of the City's utilities and services sufficient to accommodate the uses permitted in 
the requested district without compromising the health, safety and welfare of the City. 

The City's utilities have capacity and services will be sufficient to accommodate the proposed 
Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center and not compromise the City's health, safety, and 
welfare. 

6. The capability of the street system to safely and efficiently accommodate the expected traffic 
generated by uses permitted in the requested zoning district. 

Walton Boulevard is a Major Road under the jurisdiction of the City of Pontiac. The proposed 
development will not impact the ability of this Major Road and adjoining roads to handle 
potential traffic. 

7. The boundaries of the requested rezoning district are reasonable in relationship to surroundings 
and construction on the site will be able to meet the dimensional regulations for the requested 
zoning district. 

The boundaries ofthe rezoning are reasonable in relationship to surroundings and zoning 
district dimensional requirements. 

8. If a rezoning is appropriate, the requested zoning district is considered to be more appropriate 
from the City's perspective than another zoning district. 

With all the previous findings of fact, the boundaries of the proposed C-3 zoning district are 
reasonable from the City's perspective and comply with the vision found in the City's Master 
Plan. 

3 



9. If the request is for a specific use, rezoning the land is considered to be more appropriate than 
amending the list of permitted or special land uses in the current zoning district to allow the use. 

It would be inappropriate to amend the zoning text for C-1 Local Business zoning district to 
allow a Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center, retail facilities within the C-1 zoning district. 

10. The requested rezoning will not create an isolated or incompatible zone in the neighborhood. 
The proposed rezoning does not create an incompatible 'spot zone' within the area and it 
proposes reasonable continuation of Corridor Commercial zoning to the east and west. 

Recommendation 
Per the review requirements found in Section 6.804 of the Zoning Ordinance and our findings, we suggest 
that the Planning Commission consider recommending to City Council the request from William Moesta 
to rezone Parcel Number 64-14-08-354-010 [application ZMA 19-16] from C-1 Local Business to C-3 

Corridor Commercial. 

4 



Technical Assessment of Site MMOD And Zoning ~,~c"p .A.mendment 

Zoning ArmmdrrFent Assessrnent 

J.,,...,.,,r1e,1 ('o~·,, r:a· fa ~i C D l . , __ ,,,,,.., J \.J L) ·-'·~ . 'C 
i,am0m· ev-aopmem: -~--------

:,,,1 · - ~ 1• • \/1. Jilliarn !Vioesta i"ame 011-\pp icarn:: ________ _ 

,,.1il.8_/l 0t:;_ 'J780 
Contad atifor site (Name, Tel): _L_, __ ,_L_'""_'_L_, __________ _ 

2')8 \j\. \f'f,_ l' 
,ll,,dolrnss &.Zoning for Deve!opment · ,:.._ l. !J \_ aiion 

c-·-:-_i rol"'r'1d· or rr-nnrn,r=:rr:ial 
P :r p -~n-jzo •~-,. "'"··•-g-· -' ,.J __,,• I ~' ...,•.J , I._., _1!Ci ,O 0-"'"''- .n.,,!J ,.,nan,. re:. _______________ _ 

\f I. I l\ ll ' . C '! · ' · 
o -1 Ll l. leo1ca.1 l JlanJuana ,-aci mes , rnposeu se: _______________ _ 

Adj.acenfc Property Zoning: 

North: R-·! Residential Dwelling 

South: 
C--3 Corridor Commercial 

East: 

West: 
C-3 Cori·idor Cormnercial 

Located in or 01.i:(S)d2 ;\J1M Oveyh;,y District: j./j Overly i-\rea D Non-Ovei"iay Arna 

h'Fr.oc"·"e~l i,- r,r,o,.~\c,•,· :",is:;·f-•r,;--'/' 1,1111-::d is -;•hp ...1·1~•h•:,-y;,. \IValton Blvd. ~e U r..1t 11-1 ~r.tJ 'J.·..r.Jc:-1.J -. .YJ--'4.tt-'"··j ..,.t.c..::-.. ,~ f.:a,,,,, u ...... ~~l~..,-- ~ _______ _ 

Owen Elementary/ Kennedy Center > 1 000 
Nearest School Facility: i\!2rne: ____________ Distance: ' ft 

1-1·=}\'\f'l·hornre D,,rk 
Nearest Park Facility: Name: '- J 1 0 1

' 
>r::.on 

Distance: J .., ft 

Berea Family Tabernacle of Faith >,c:;QQ 
Nearest Religious Property: Name: ____________ Distance: 0

" ft 

NIA ~,500 Nearest Child Care Facility: Name: ____________ Distance: _,.,,, · \ ft 

ZJ\llA 19-16 
ZtvlA Technical Site Assessment 



City of Pontiac 
Office of Land Use and Strategic Pl.ar;in_ing 

rrning Map 

e.lfil d rrr1 e rait 

D,74SU Woodwar~ AMf, p9ntiac, Ml 48342 

T: 248.758.2800 · · F: 248.758.2827 

Sidwell Number: 

Office Use Only · 
PF N~mber:~-:=-_,,,;£...~··_ .. _r_l~::.. __ \_t;~-·-i_c_. _ 

Instructions: Completed applic,ationt }[fith appropriate fee shall, b.e submitted to the Off.ice of Lanp. \Tse and Strategic 
Planning at least JO days prior fo the regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting. Applications must be complete in 
all respects with supporting documents such as site plan, property survey etc. Planning staff will schedule the application for 
consideration by the Planning Commission in accordance with the attached schedule. Incomplete applications will delay the 
review process. 

Applicant(p,!ease print or type) 

Name 

Address 

City 

State 

ZIP Code 

Telephone 

E-Mail 

Pa~✓-h~.c 
/?/ / C/2 -'d ~ 

Main:' . 

Project and Propertv Information ~ 

Fax: 

. // /::-
Name of Proposed Development;~~L4.,,.1ef &,' { ~;-.# /A/'C-

, ., . (' , 
The subject.J2_[operty is location at~~ A:~ JJ,fa!/4.lon mt,!P1 S /EI W side of 
between --?'t#J'7,,,'4J,!'i1);#,{ and ~/4/4, n .✓ . L...,JT,. ~':'· 

' ,;' 

The property is zoned: __ c.._.-_/~-------------
~ /j ~ 1;;· 

Proposed Zoning District: --~-~--------------

~ / J".r 
It is proposed that the property will be used as: -~~~'=· ·=,j'-.L.,7;,,..~~i ..... t;.,,,?~~---rc..!,/~---------

The subject property is legally described as follows (incllllde sidwell numbers): ? . 

-L =·==~=====-=· ==-==· =··==•====··=··"=~-



ProiJ,errv Ow11er Inforr.nation 

Name / '1/-0✓, ~/ '#?.½ •~ I _/.??: &~ <-:?':'Ji\> 

Address j' '/1' =Y' :9" 
·t;"~,,;>f .. Ah .ef>6J''l.,,b"' .rp·~< cz;?,-

~. L r_ ., ,~ 

City 
.. a'._/~ ,/~,'4>'.)""°~t;,P'&/ 

State . "~- .. / .__) ,_,,,,;-·. • ~,,,, '9r,,,,-;./ 

ZIP Code ~5;t,i:y 
Telephone Main: I Ce~d 4~," ~7fo I Fax: 

E-Mail 
/ - . t-uv /#7 i::f-y;1; /e_.,) ~o d .. ('~;:;;' ;r-;Y;J . 

_/ ~ 4 

( -
Are you the .:X Owner ___ Agent/rep. of the owner ___ Other __________ _ 

The proposed will be used for the following purpose (provide as much detail as possible with 
photographs, sketches, site plans, written documents, etc.). 

~· .I' }' ~ • 
✓&,,..,__<J.".)""'~:1_.-9c,.,,. ~ .. AJ'~ _,, ~~ -,;-~= "',.,e, 

" 
Sate the reason for the Zoning Map Amendm'erit, particiifarly the man.n'0.r. in which the City will 
benefit if the amendment is approved and why such change will not be detrimentaffo the public 
welfare and/or the property rights of other persons located in the vfopit/ofthe site. 

State of Michigan 
County of Oakland 

\. 

/<1'7?5~ Lt ~ ra 
·7 
I 

.. /. 
i 1 7;=,,. 

On this __ day of , A.D., 20 __ , before me personally appeared the above named person, who being duly swam, slated he/she has read 
lheforegoing application, by him/her signed, and /mow the contents thereof, and that the same is true ofhis!lzer own !mow/edge, except as to the matters 
therein srated to be upon information and belief and so as to those matters he/size believes it to be tn1e. 

Nota1J1Public, Oakland County, Michigan 
My Commission E,pires: __ _ 

f 

I 
'I i 
ll 1 
,1 

ij 
I 



~2FootCon!ours 

.............., 5 Foot Contours 

"'11"' FEMA Base Flood ElevaUons 

~ FEMACrossSec.tlons 

® 100 yr+ FEMA Floodplain 

• 100 yr \detailed)- FEMA FI.Jodpla,n 

® 500 yr- FEMAFloodplaln 

9) FLOODWAY - FEMA Floodplain 

Disclaimer: The information provided herewith has been compiled from recorded 
deeds, plats, tax maps, suNeys and other public records_ It is not a legally recorded 
map or survey and is not intended to be used as one. Users should consult the 
information sources mentioned above when questions arise. FEMA Flooplain data may 
not always be present on the map. 

(~{)AKlAND~
0 

CCU"<l\ l.1JCH1".;AN 
r~=~-,o.,.,..,._"'>"',-,,u . .,.,,'4,. 

David Coulter 
Oakland County Executive 

Date Created: 1/3/2020 

A 
NORTH 

1 inch = 50 feet 

Oakland County One Stop Shop 2100 Pontiac Lake Road Bldg. 41 West Waterford. Ml 48328 Phone: 248-858-0721 Web: www.advantageoakland.co1 





x-

?P'A,/7 q,:f;-!,t/ - .% 

A'-~ 

_u:f,.,, ::r~,e/,e;u'/ ~ ,,....,.,_,~ ~~ 

/4~...,e c;; c;.,__,e,,:/ ~,P,,,.,.,,,,,...L J,-,,/ 
~ ~..,,,~_,</,/, 
~ . 

~~-~✓ 





TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

Cc: 

RE: 

CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Honorable Council President and City Council Members 

Dr. Deirdre Waterman, Mayor 

November 14, 2019 

Jane Sais DiSessa, Deputy Mayor; Anthony Chubb, City Attorney: and 
Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

Resolution to Re-Appoint the following individuals to the City's Planning 

Commission: Mona Parlove for a term ending June 30, 2021 and Dayne 

Thomas to the Planning for a term ending June 30, 2022. 

As you are aware, the Planning Commission has several members with expired terms, in 

order to address this matter, for your consideration, the following resolution is 

recommended: 

Whereas, Article V. Section 2-372 of the Municipal Code, the Planning Commission is 
comprised of six non-elected officials and the Mayor or his/her designee; and 

Whereas, there are currently several appointments with expired terms on the Planning 
Commission; and 

Whereas, according to State Law and City Ordinance, the Mayor shall appoint the 
commissioners subject to the approval by a majority of the City Council. 

Now therefore, be it resolved that based upon the recommendation of the Mayor, that the 
City Council reappoint Mona Parlove to serve on the City's Planning Commission for a term 
ending June 30, 2021 and to reappoint Dayne Thomas to serve on the City's Planning 
Commission for a term ending June 30, 2022. 

Attachments 

jbd 



Subject: Follow up to the interview of my Planning Commission appointment 

Good afternoon, City Council Members -

Thank you for the opportunity to talk with you yesterday. I know how busy everyone is, so I appreciated the time yciu 
each .had to share with me. 

After we parted company, I had a few thoughts l wanted to share. The init!a,1 interview I had with the Council Members last 
year was much shorter. This year, we certainly did not have enough time to discuss all the topics mentioned, nor did I 
have the ability to answer all.the questions which were asked of me, due to the limited time of our meeting. 

Please be aware that I've had over 45 agenda items I was asked to consider while having the honor of being a Planning 
Commissioner, thus far. While one item of the 45 seemed to be the primary focus of our meeting yesterday -- the drag 
racing event on the SJlverdome grounds - the other 44 items which were _considered over the course of this year were 
important items to the a ppropr1ate petitioners, as well. If there were any outstan<l°lng .concerris from those a pproxi(Jlately 
44 items, I think someone would have mentioned something yesterday ... so, from that perspective, 1 am happy that most_ 
everything else seems to be satisfactory .. 

In regard to my showing empathy and compassion toward my fellow residents who have come out to express their feelings 
about the various petitioner's requests for variances or special exceptions from the Planning Commission, a few moment$ 
from my "tenure'' come to mind. The first was when a petitioner wanted to build a Dollar Store within an extremely close 
proximity to our City Hall. _Though the parcel was zoned to accept that proposed business, neighbors came to share their 
opposition to having an adjoinfng parcel modified to allow the busfness to move forward. After much consideration of 
the residents' comments and overall positions, I voted to deny that petitioner's request for the variance that was sought. 

In November, a petitioner wanted to repurpose a former General Motors plant site, and needed a special exception permit 
to move forward with his intended plan. Several residents came out, and shared their views. When it was discovered the 
petitioner was potentially creating a nuisance at the site for the neighbors (with noise & dust}, we worked coHectively to 
address the solution to the request. Per always, l was extremely mindful of the residents that evening. The decision made 
by my fellow Commissioners and myself was one that reached a middle ground, which seemingly worked for pretty much 
everyone in the room that evening. 

In some cases, while I do listen to all resii:lents who publicly sh,fre their feelings, I may not feel it is best for the City to "go 
along with" the residents who have spoken their views at a Planning Commission meeting. For example, a couple of 
months ago, a long-time business owner ln Pontiac wanted to·add packaged beer and wine sales to his existing Dollar 
Store business. Many neighbors came out in full support of that business owner, and shared their reasons of support of 
the request. However, my personal feeling was that we already have far too many opportunities to purchase alcohol in 
the city. Even though neighbors came out to let the Commissioners know their feelings, l voted to deny the requested 
variance. I was evaluating the long term ramifications, while being mindful of what I think is best for our City. The 
requested way of "enhancing" an existing business by that business owner did not make sense to me, even \hough the 
majority of the neighbors who spoke that night were in support of the business owner's request.· 

Dr Taylor Burks brought up extra vehfde parking at the Sllverdome, which had been approved for car storage. That vote 
had taken pface prior to my being a Planning Commissioner. She also mentioned a former Planning Commissioner who 
had chosen to take- herself off the Commission. No one has stepped away from the Planning Commission while I have 
been a part of tt, so I don't know what Dr Taylor Burkes was referencing. 

As a follow up to the drag strip event In August on the Silverdome grounds ... .! did subsequently learn the event was a huge 
success for those who put it on. So much so, the event creators are hoping to repeat the event in 2016, ideally somewhere 
in Pontiac. I understand there were over 101000 people who attended. To have more than 10,000 people for one event 

Mona Parlove 1 

. ,. 

j 

!· 



in our great city for only a few hours is pretty impressive, f think. I spoke to several people who visited, and they all had 
a fun time, they loved seeing the tremendous turn out, and I did not hear one negative comment. I still think the vote to 
approve the permit was the right vote for Pontiac, overall. If the request were to put a permanent drag strip at that site, 
my vote would not have been the same. 

As for the Silverdome, itself, I am beyond disappointed Jn what I see has happened to that structure. However, the 
Plannlng Commission does not have the authority to enforce code violations. I mentioned that fact the night we approved 
the permit for the drag strip event Please do keep that one fact In mind, Council Members, especially as we move for.ward 
- the Planning Commission must consider what fs put in front of us as a commission, and we can't make building owners 
and business owners comply with code requirements. My suggestion for Pontiac to deal with the Sifverdome owner would 
be to find a way to place liens on the title to the property, for outstanding fees and fines which he most certainly must owe 
the city, by now. Hopefully, that wfll be the impetus for him to start to comply with what is required of him as a property 
owner. When he sells the property, he would have to pay off the liens that have been placed against the title, or he cannot 
transfer the ownership to the new buyer. 

When Mayor Waterman asked me to be a Planning Commissioner, I was extremely humbled and Incredibly honored. 
still feel that way, and I shall for as long as my commiss1on lasts. My mind is open when I attend every Planning 
Commission meeting. I listen closely to all Information presented by those who speak and share what they have to share. I 
am not capricious In my decisions. I do not know where the term "executive branch'' comes from, when asked yesterday if 
that Is what I consider when I render a decision for a petitioner. Rather, I try to look ahead at what ls best for the City, as 
a whole. 

I have had several people tell me that they like to watch our current Planning Commission meetings when we are in 
session, or, when the meetings rerun on the cable channel. They appreciate how we have respectful dialogue with each 
other, as well as the whole approach we take in being courteous to those who come into the Planning Commission 
meetings. l appreciate those comments, and I think our group of Commissioners are very gracious fn how we treat each 
other and our guests ln the audience -- which would include our fellow residents. As Comm)ssioners, accepted our 
appointments without any provisions for monetary compensation. We do our best, with the overall concern we have for 
a better Pontiac. · · 

It Is critical for all of us to collectively move Pontiac forward, Every single day, I do what I can to improve the undeserved 
reputation our City has, that our community is perceived as 'undesirable'. That the City has 'nothing to ~ffer', and why 
would anyone want to llve or work whe,re all of us have chosen to live and work. 

I believe I can be more effective in helping Pontiac succeed by being a Planning Commissioner. I am extremely proud of 
what I have contributed to the City, thus far. I have done so by conducting myself in a very fair and resp~ctful way; while 
in the P!anniqg Commission chambers, as well as in all aspects of my life. I belfeve we all lead by example, and! think it is 
critical to treat every single person with dignity. 

I very much look forward to continuing my work as a Planning Commissioner. Additionally, I hope we can all find a time to 
sit together, as a collective group -- the Mayor, City Council Members, Zoning Board Members, the Planning 
Commissioners, and anyone else within our City Hall who wants to see the City of Pontiac succeed -- so we can not only 
learn a bit more about each other, but all work together in moving Pontiac forward with the same cohesive plan and 
positive outcome in mind. 

Thank you -

Mona Parlove 
Associate Broker 
Hall & Hunter, Realtors 
248.514.0685 cell 

Mona Parlove· 2 



Moha Parlovs, Platmlng Comm!ssfon Application 

tnte rests /Reasons/ Q1.1a Jlf/catlo11s: 

r am extremely passionate abou~ being a patt of the posttJVe momentum thot I? underway In Pontiac •. 
My bellef Is the level of Integrity lo our City neerJs to be simultaneously ra!sed ilnd embraced as a 

· reallstlc expectation for our community, As a long-1:ltne resident, l feel I have a r~sponslb1llty to help 
make a difference. 1t IS a fallacy to think that "someone else" Is golno to suddenly show lip and "flx" 
everythlng, Rather, those who are going to make the needed corrections and Improvements are · 
people just /Ike rnyself ... the ones who are trying be good neJghbors, while gofng tJ1rough their day, 
Understanding that we are all responsible for where we IJve, and how we are each the f;,ce and.the 
fabrlc of our community Is a core belief of mlhe, and <1n Important attrlbute which 1 would bring to 
the Planning Comn;lsslon. · · 

13oards/Commfssfons/Commlttees on which I have served: 
• > 

PonUac Master Plan Steering Committee, from March 2014 to present 

District 2 Advisory Group, co-chair, from Janttal)' 2014 to present 

Elecl:lvo off)ces I have held: 

None 

Other organizations, Pettlnent,Ed1.1cation, Hobbles/lnterests 

I have been a llcensed real estate agent slnce 1987 (27 years1 and a broker for 10 years), pradlcing 
· my profession on a ti.Ill time basis the entire time. I have acquired an expansive (rnentaQ database 

of Information, as It pertains lo construction and tnaterla!s used In resident/al, and someUrnes, 
commerclal appllcatlcins, While serving on the Plannlng Commission, t wflf be able to-readlly access 
this acquired Information while, maklng the Important decisions presented to the City by various . 
petltloners. 

Also, I have been in vlrtually every communlly lh Oakian~ Counly, as well as scores ln Wayne, 
Macomb, Uvlngston &, Washtenaw Counties, The "real lime'' experiences of transacting real estate In 
these communltles affords me the opportunlly to see how the varlous nelghliorlng munfdpalltles 
f1mct1on on a dally basls, as well as Wfth an overall longer vlew. 

1 am a member of the Pontlac Women's Round Table, focusing on positive lntemctlon and change In 
the City of Pontiac. 

Interests are expanslve - food (cooking&. enjoying); n.tnnlng, biking, lnterar.ftng with people, att, 
reading, writing, muslc of all types, travel, voluhteerlng, photography, Independent tlJms, baseball, 
trying to learn something about everything, being a goocl person that m<1kes a small difference every 
day If possible. 

'J'o be a~ke.d to be a P)annfng Cornmlssfoner Is an honor beyond my greatest dreams. If ccnfltmed, I 
Wlll do all I can to help move ~tmtlac forward and In a dlrectloil tha residents can all be proud of, 



· PATE SeP,ternber 30, 20'14 

NAMC~ona Parlove 

/\OORESS_ 

Cl!cl( l10re lo prln1 !he completed 
CITY OF P 101m for malling lo lhu c«y Clerk. 

CAND//:JATI! QUESTIONNAIRE 
BOARDS & COMMISSIONS 

~ -lfjb 

;.{JE1~%1E~lil 
• ..!::...::x..r~~ 

CoUNCILDISTfllCT_. ______ ~ 

. ZJP48341 -----------
PH0HE{honw) _________ _ PHONI: /buslnesa or oell).; 

EMAIL_ 

T/!P- Cl\y of f'Qntlao wishes to 1han~ you for yaur Interest In set'llng ·es a Cltlzan Represonlallve an a· aoard or 
Commission. YPur CandldatP-QUestlannalre WIii be kept on lllo and ontorcd for oonslderallon for postl)d openings on 
any Board or Comml,;slon that you expressed an ln1erest in for a perlad of two years, Pleas~ feel ltM lo submit an 
updated C-andldato Ques1Ionnefre at any1Jme, 

Please ha advised lhat t¾e Information contained In \his Que$Uonnalre ls not Ctll!Ndenllal, and wm b!> revJewed b\• 
Ui• Mayor, City counon and other app10prlme personnel 1:1s vacancies or openings ocr.ur on tho ViltioUs aoards or 
eomm,!lS!ons. raga ?. of 1J1fs Candidate QUMt1on/1llUo may also be fnotudad In any City Gounoll Meeting Agenda 
Peoket whloh Is publJshad and mado ~vallabla for publio 1/ISpaotlon fn print ciml on t'le lnternel Your address, 
phone numbers and e111aJl, conla/ned hare on Pago j, wlll not bo p~bUshad ln an Aganda Paol<e1, 

- lnfiirmatfon refatlve lo tho below boards or ¢omrnlssfons oan be founrl on the Glly'a wabpage at 
\Yll~!!n.QJnL.\J.!t ' ' 

BO/>J1DS/COMMISSIONS ON WHIDH'iOUWANTTO Sl:llVE! 

bP!llllnled by City Couoall 

fJ Board of Appeals 
0 lnoome T"x Board of Review 
0 Zoning Board of Appeals 
• lloard of Revlow ' 
• Genera) Employee Retlrernent systt!lm 

Appointed by Mayor, 
Confirmed bvC~I 

0 Ta>tlncrome1iFJ11analne,AU\horlty/Brow11/Jald 
RedevolopmsntAWlalll)' 

0 Hlslorlo Dlstrlot Commlsslo~, N•"'-""'""""m•ll<o 
0 Loc;i! Off!cblll Col\1\l',nll<ltioO Commlsslon ' 
O Arts cornmleslon , 
0 C-Onstruotlon Code Board of Appeals,·1~,;,,,,,n-:.nr, •. >11,. 

ta Planning Commtsslon 
0 Hous111g Com1nfsulon1 ti."'""'ie-w,,-,.i¼i 

PagHof2 

11 
r 
'· !: 

i 
)i 

i 

r 
i, 
•, 



PONTIAO flliSIOITNT FDR! w~><iw•,"""""'"'=1" 1 yoal-' 

Of',eUPATION • Rosldenl!al R~al Eia!o SgJes 

UOMD$/COMM1sSIONS/COMM!TTEt-S ON WHICH YOU ~AVE $EftVED (US1 MUNICJMLlllES ANI) OATfS,ti) 

runnvE OFFICES iHATYOU !-IAVE Hl:1.0 

None 

OTHER ORQANlZATIONS PERTIN!'.NT EDUCATION HOSSl~S/INiERESTS@ 

ADOrtlONAl INfOflMATION 

0eacn re\1>rn comp!stetJ form to: Cltyof P011tl!l!), Cfetk's omen, 47450 WooctwatdAvonus;PonllM, Ml 483'l2or fax lo 
248. 7o!l.316D or cilr.1r tha c-moll 1nb on the flt>t page lo sand form l>y ~-moll, 

OISClOSURF; Of POTfNTIAI, CONFl.IDi 01' lrITTRESi 

In order to avoJ~arr/ poienllel comllctoflnler<;l!I, 1, !ho undotGlgoed, •Iii•• r,ot\o belnvo!vod lo any recommendalloM or 
doolsfon mafllngregordlng any agem:y(les} or ontlcyOes) rorwhloh I ser1e lo the following Mpacl\)'{les) which may contraotof 
sub""!nm,r::t wlth th• City of Poollaa, 

Agen•Y.--1-_::_=;::.;..:::;,.;:q:4...,----------

Sl!l)l•t~re:----+.Lf'J:::fot:.£J"'¥'.\?,!,;:;.,1E.--.!:;:::. _______ _ 

Data, __ -.,:::;_;---'------.-+-'--1---

RevOi/14 



July 31, 2018 

Dear Honorable Mayor Waterman, 

Thank you for the opportunity to serve the Pontiac Planning Commission. 

As you know, I have served on the Planning Commission since 2011, and during my tenure as Chairman, 
I have presided over more than 400 planning proposals and in tum, the Planning Commission have 
approved some of the biggest developments ln Pontiac history, Including but not limlted to: 

• • M-1 Concourse • Ultimate Soccer • Wessen Lawn Tennrs Club • Challenger Stamping 
• Willlams Aerospace • GM Global Propulsion Systems (multiple expansions) • Washington Junior High School repurposed·as Senior Living 

Indeed, during my tenure as Chair, the Pontiac Planning Commission have recommended for approval a 
glut of vacant industrial sites that were repurposed Into v!able, tax revenue producing enterprises for 
whlch the City of Pontiac can be proud. 

Moreover, during my tenure the Plannlng Commission have approved hundreds of smaller commercial 
enterprises as well which are the lifeblood of any community, and altogether, large and small, it has 
resulted In hundreds of thousands of dollars of new tax revenue for the City of Pontiac. 

I am especially proud of the tact that a multitude of business owners1 large and small, have thanked me 
for the respect and dignity for which they were treated by our commissioners during their presentations 
to Planning Commission: I am proud of that, because as Chair I seek proper decorum and for the most 
part, my wishes have been fulfilled. 

In dosing, my professional background earned over 40 years in Marketing, Product Plannlng and Product 
Development with some of the largest corporations fn the world has uniquely prepared me to Chalr the 
Pontiac Planning Commission, so I think I am well suited to bring professional guidance and expertise to 
the Planning Commission for another term. 

Thank you for the opportunity to serve you and the City of Pontiac. 

Respectfully, 
Dayne Thomas 
Chair, Pontiac Planning Commission 
Chair, ·GM Modern Housing Board of Dir1:ctors 

;, 

\ ,. 
' 

,. 
[ 
i' 
\ 

I 

f 



Personal Bio 
D11yne Thomas 

Chairman, Pontiac Planning Commission 
.117 I iii .Ht 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 

dayne@daynethomas.net 
19 I 

Dayne Thomas was born and raised in Pontiac, Michigan but a business odyssey took hlm across the US 
and Asia Paciflc ... and then backl 

He worked for companles as diverse as GM, BMW, A!G, Aon and Gulf States Financial Services and lived 
and.worked in cities as diverse as Pontiac, Deriver, Houston, LA, NY, Hong Kong, Tokyo and Melbourne 
(Australia). 

Dayne Thomas was born and raised on Pontiac's near north side in the modest, Historic neighborhood 
known as GM Modern Housing ... a planned housing development conceived by Pierre DuPont, GM 
Chairman and largest shareholder of GM {at the time), as well as patriarch of DuPont Companies, It was 
Pierre DuPont who vlsuallzed and developed the 61 acre site drca 1919 to 1926 . 

. Dayne Thomas family moved to Pontiac in the mid 1930's ... his father worked at Baldwin Rubber 
Company (a major automotive supplier of the day), where he was responsible for Chemical Department 
and Salvage ... while his mother worked at Pontiac Motor in Salary Payroll. 

The family moved into their home on Oliver Street, (GM Modern Housing) In September 1945 and 
Dayne Thomas was bom In November 1945. 

The tragic death of Dayne's father ln 1956 meant the family would not move from Oliver Street, so the 
modest house on Oliver Street, in GM tv1odern Housing is the only family home Dayne Thomas has 
known. 

Dayne Thomas matrlculated Pontiac Schools: Mccarroll Elementary, Lincoln Jr. High School anci' Pontiac 
Northern High School where he played Football, Basketball and Tennis (as Captain) and graduated in 
1963. Prior to his senior year, he was nominated by VFW to attend prestigious, Wolverine Boy State. 

Dayne Thomas went on to study Communication Arts at Michigan State University where he graduated 
with a BA Degree in Advertising in i972 after proudly serving 2nd Infantry Division In the Republic of 
Korea.during the Viet Nam era, He earned the rank ofSergeant/SPS and was awarded an Army 
Commendation Medal as well as an Expedition Medal awarded by Republic of Korea. 

Next page ... 



Dayne Thomas commenced hls professional career with GMC Truck & Coach in Pontiac, Michigan as a 
Sales Engineer in 1972. 

.. 
Jn 1980, as the domestic auto industry was suffering thru major economic turmoil, Dayne Thomas 
accepted a post with BMW of North America as a District Sales Manager Jiving in Denver and overseeing 
the Rocky Mountain Region, __ .,.1 

Then in 1984, Dayne Thomas moved to Southern California (Orange County} and accepted a post with 
General Group of Companies as Sales Manager in the Automotive Financlal Services sector, overseeing 
the contlguous US. · 

in 1996, Dayne Thomas accepted a post with AIG as Regional Director in Southeast Asia, based in Hong 
Kong, overseeing consumer financial service operations in Singapore, Malaysia, Indonesia, Thailand, 
Philippine's and Guam. 

In 1998, after overseeing the successful launch of consumer financial service programs with AIG, in 
Southeast Asia, Dayne Thomas accepted a post with Aon Corp as Regional VP based in Tokyo, 
successfully overseeing a consumer fina nda! service program developed speclfically for Best Denki, 
Japan's largest electronic retailer. 

In 1999, Dayne Thomas took a post with Aon in Melbourne·(Australia) as RegionalVP overseeing 
consumer financial service program developed exclusively for Fisher-Paykel, New Zealand's premier 
Consumer Appliance Manufacturer. 

In 2002, Dayne Thomas repatriated to the US and accepted a post with Gulf States Financial Services (an 
. affiliate ofToyota Financial Services} as Sr. Manager, Product Development based in Houston, 1)(. 

In the fall of 2009, Dayne Thomas came full circle and moved back into the modest boyhood home 
where he was raised ln Pontiac, The neighborhood is llsted upon the National Register of Historic Places, 
and he has set about to restore the home true to its historical character. 

Dayne Thomas says: "So many people have helped me, so I came back ... to give back While others 
moved out ... ! moved back ... to give back to the city that gave me a st.art". 

Dayne Thomas is slngle (divorced, no children) and proudly serves as Chairman, Pontlac·Plannlng 
Commission; serves as Chair, GM Modern Housing Board of Directors (an association he founded}, and 
served upon Master Plan Advisory Corrymittee 

Dayne is also owner/proprietor of. 110liver Street Farms and Vineyards", a personal revitaliz~tion project 
founded to clean up Urban blfght and repurpose abandon parcels and convert dust and blight into 
Community Gardens ... Orchards ... Vineyards ... and Open Air Farmers Market! · 

Dayne Thomas is a proud son of Pontiac ... and a proud Alu_mnus of Michigan State University! 



Professional Overview: 

Personal Resume 
Dayne Thomas 

Pontiac, Michigan 48342 · 
davne@daynethomas.net 

More than 40 years of experience in Marketing, Product Planning and Product Development 
domestically and internationally. · 

Professional Skills: 
Planning, development and execution 

Professional Experience: · 
GMC Truck & Coach (H.Q, Pontiac, Michigan): 

• Sales fng!neer 
• Market Research Analyst • Government Sales • Municipal Fleet Sales • Government Sales 
• Di~trict Mgr 

BMW North America {HQ, Montvale, NJ): • Sales Manager serving Rocky Mountain Region 

Genera.I Group International (HQ, Harbor City, California-Automotive Financial Services): 
• Sales Manager serving contiguous 48 states 

American International Group (HQ, New York-Insurance & Flnandal Services): 
• Regional VP {Southeast Asia Regional Office-Hong Kong, serving Singapore, Malaysia, Indonesia, 

Philippines' and Guam) 

Aon Corp (HQ, Chicago, lllinois-Jnsurance & Financial Services): 
· • Regional Director (Tokyo, serving Japan and Korea) 
• Regional Director (Melbourne, Australia, serving Australia and New Zealand) 

Gulf States Financial Services (HQ, Houston, Texas-Automotive Flnanclal Services): 
• Senior Manager/Product Planning, serving US Gulf States) 

Civic Engagement: 
• Chair, Pontiac Planning Commission {2011 to 2018) . 
• Chair (and founder}, GM Modern Housing Board of Directors (2016 to 2018) • Owner/Proprietor: Oliver Street Orchard/Vineyards/Community Gardens 







Lucy Payne 

February 5, 2014 

City of Pontiac Community Planning Corn.missioners 
47450 Woodward Ave. 
Pontiao, Ml 48342 

RE: City of Pontiac Planning Commissioners 

To: The City of Pontiac Mayor and Planning Commissioners. 

The ai:tMhed resume will provide details of my previous and present qual.lfioatfo11s ru.1~ 
experience, 

Fol' the past 26 years, I have served as a .Patie11t Re!atfol11l Representative and Cusromcr Service 
1'r11iuer at Saint Joseph Mercy Oakland (SJMO), During that time, 1 have worked dllige11tiy to 
foster mutually beneficial relationships with not only the associates, admlnistrative team, medical 
staff, nursing and anoillary pel.'sonnel and the City ofPoutiao commimity. 1n my pnst role, I 
1;1ngaged the hospltal perso1m~I, physiclaus in resoJving/medlating challenging lssues that ofte11 
involved risk oases with multiple departments and services in meeting customers expeolatlons 
and sutisfocti.o_n, The scope ot my work provided me with a unlqul} perspectiv<> on t!w wants and 
needs of patfou!s, their families, and the community needs as well. 

I am pioud lo have been involved ln a number of SJMO committees that were.chai·ged with 
orohcstrittillg soine of SYM:O most successful quality hnprovement activities such as Customer 
Service Training, Bmerg1;1ncy Deparhnent process improvement Task Force, Emergenoy Wait 
Time and Dress-Code initiatives, I WM also very 1ustrnmental u1 collaborating with SJM:O 
BuUdlngs and Ground Department, SMARTTra.nsportation Services and lhe City of Pontiac 
Build.fog Depm1tnet\t in lmplementhlg and the building of a bus shelter for the comfort of 
patients and the commllnity th<1t_u~e the p~1blic transportation system. 

My area of e:xperfo!lce inc!ude·organiz:atfonal mauageme11ti problem soivlng1 investigation, 
mediation, behavioral ruatwgement; grief consulting, interaorlon with diveme groups and 
addressing concerns of the com.munlty, lhavtl also gained experience through my work as a 
co11sultant of a broad speotl'llm of business exposures to oase studies and best praotices 111 a 
variety of industdes as n.u independent business ow11er Payne & Payne Consulting, tLC. 



My educational credeutinla iMhtde a Associate Degree in Liberal Arts from Oakland Community 
College, Bachelor of Science degree in Human Rosource Development from Oak.lattd Un!V•rsity, 
Mastor of Arts degree iu Organizational Management and a. Ceitificate of Mediator Training 
from Oakland Medication Center, 

It has been my experience that comm.lttees and boa\'ds are most effectlve with individuals iliat are 
diverse in areas o:fkoowledge, sk.llis and exrmrtise, As a visionary, I am very interested in 
utilizing my skins in the revitalization of the City of Pontlao's future plans that promotes a 

. healthy and safe environment for our city residents, whlle generati.ngxevcm1e for the city, 

It has been my absolute pleasure and an honor to serve with tho City of Pontiac Mayor and 
Planning Cotlll)1issione.l'll, r look toiward to u.tillz.ing my,expedence .in building and brldglng, . 
g11ps in conununloatlon, strategic planning, creative th.inl<lng, collaboration, negotiation, an<l . 
customer service. I look forwat'd to :niy oontiuual servicillg the comm1miLy and collabol'atl.ng with 
you l.u designing the future City of?ontiao . 

............... 



CAREER SUMMARY 

P~OFESSlONAL 
EXP8R!ENCE 

LUCY PAYNE 

An accomplished senior--level patient relations representative witb. '27+ 
years of experience managing customer gi.'i.evances at St. Joseph. Mercy-

. Oakland.iJ.1 Pontiac, Michigan, a.457"bed health system serving a diverse 
patle11t po1)ulati.on itt an urban setting, Collaborated wlth the CEO and C-level 
leadership team, _physicians, risk ma.nagementj nursing and others in resolving 
:i.ssueJJ. Expertise hthtvestlgatlng and au.al.yzing grieva.ncei data to proactively 
f01mulate strategies for preveming grievances and .improving systems and 
prooosses. Grievance mitigation suppprted by aohlevement of a Master of A.1.'ts 
in Organizational Management, a. Bachelor of Science in Human Resource 

1 

Development, a certificate fa Civil Me<liator Training, a.n.d completion of a 
pre..J.icensi.ng course in Life and Health Xnsurance. 

P & P Consu/flng, LLC, Bingham Farms. Mioh/gE!Q 
Conaultant • Organlz:ational Management I 
rroblem Resolution I Mediation 

2003 - present 
2003 - present -

• Consulted on ma.itagoment and customer rel!ltlous for a wide variety of 
businesses ns a principal with P & P Consulting, LLC 

'Am1lyzed business process flow fat medical group i:wacticeB, m1tomobile 
dealerships, and fman.oial sewice~ finns; reoomroeuded process 
improve~ents 

• Trained staffs in custoi'Del' service improvement l:echniq11cs 

Saint Joseph Mercv-Oa/<land, Ponffac, Mfohlgan . 
Patient Relations Roprssenfafive 

P<lflent Relations Management 

1984 - 8/2012 
1984 - 8/2012 

Managed customer complaints wi!hin. St. Joseph Mercy-Oakland health system; 
oomplainfa involve a wide-range offasues/disoiplines (e.g., sta~ billing, food 
service, housekeepin& safety, parking, phannacy services> ph.y$ioal plant, eto.) 
" Interviewed c\1stome1'S to detennine nature of complaint; employed customer 

relationship m!l1lagement and mediation techniques to negotiate win-wln 
resolutions to. issues identified 

• Coilaborated ·wifu physicians and nursing and a11oitlary department heads and 
staff to imptuve customer service as well as illvestigate and resolve customer 
service issues 

- fdentffied Incidents with the potential fol.' legal / risk management 
involvement; advised ci~k monagement department heads nf complaint; 
collaborated with risk manag9meJlt O!I ln.cident investigation; served as 
liaison between patient/family and rlskmauagement department 
Docum.e!l.ted a1l customer com.plain.ts 011 computer data.base; tracked 
ri;;soJutfon of issues 

• , Am:ilyzed bilHng issues and made determination regardlug billing. 
adjlUltments /-reimbursement 
Reviewed patient medicnt charts lo determine validity of patient care issues / 
complaints; met with department lteads1 medical staff'., nursing ond MOil/ary 
staff to discuss issue resolution and future process improvement strategies 

Served as a liaison ~tween customers!famil.ies and the Gift ofLlre and lvf.ichigan 



,Lpcyflayne 
Page 'l. ofi 

l:;OUCAT!ON 

APPOINTMENTS 

HONORS/AWARDS 

Eye Bonk organiuitions, encomaglug organ donation> providing gdef counselil\g 
services, and eduoatl11g pailents and' families on organ, tissue audeye trruispllluts 
Responded to code oalls and served a.$ liaison between f1JJUil;Y members and 
physi'cians; provided gl'ief/cri:iJ.s counseling to patien,ts and families 

• Tetflfied in court proceedings and 11sslnled aftonif}ys ln lawsuit preparations 
Interviewed neiv hires for Patient Services Department; facilitated one-on- oni, 
and group interviews as well as Ctllldidate ltfring discussions 

Teaching . 
• Trained mcdicn[ residents and all new einploycos JI\ customel'/patieut service 
• Managed Oakland Unlvcrsity Internship Progl'iun for Patient Repmsentatives 
Process Improvement 
• Analyzed all customer complaints to determit1e trends, in.et with department 

heads on rm individual basls when trends were evident; followed-up to ensuro 
problem resolution, 

• Reengine«ed the patiellt death process and fetal demlS(! protocols 
• Championed the lllstallation of a bus shelter near the bospJml grounds; managed 

project coordlnatfon between the hospitaP~ Adtnio1stl'atlou and Buildings and 
Grounds Dept., the City of Pontiao and SMART Transit 

• C.omplled and analyzed patient satisfaction data on Emergonoy Sewloes; drafted 
report/ presented findings to Process fmprovement Team; worked wlth 
physicians Md staff to jmprove response time a11d customer relations 

• Resolved employee identification by customers challenge by instituting a oo!or
coded nniform (by staff c(assiflcation) policy 

• Collaborated whb secttt'lty and dsk management personnel to reeugiueer process 
for securing patient belongings; instituted pol!•y debiting departJ:nenml budgets 
for patient relrnbursenient for lost items 

"""'lM'-"a=te=rto=rd"'-"'-80.,,,.fl,.,,_o=oi-=D=)s""tr,=-lot,,_, .,_.W;=at=erfo=rd"'", =M=lo=M""ga="'-----~-,.......,.1~97 4-§_~ / 1988-97 
Substitute Taacher (Grades K-i2) 1988 - i997 
lnstructlorm! Technician (Grades K-12), 1974 - i982 
Montgomery Developmental Training Center 

Detroit 9,.QJI!!Il~f BU§/ness, E emdafe, Michigan 
Dean of Students I Proctor (part-time position) 
Pontiac Schools/Senlors Fitness Program (part-time) 

Master of Arts in Oruanlzai!onal Managomimt 
Uidve1-si(y of Phoenix, Troy, Michigan Campus 

1975 ,-.~i=96=0 __ 
1975-1980 
l982-1982 

February 2004 

Saohelor of Sc!cmoi. In Human Resource Development June i985 
Oakland University, RochMtmi Miohigmi 

CM! Mecl!ntor Traittl11g, 40-Hour Course November 2012 
Oakland Mediation Center, Bloomfield Hills, Ml 

Additiom1l Professiotiul Devefopmen(: 
• Certificate, Pre-Licensing Course ia Lifo & Health lnsunmce, }iuunoial Scrvfoos 

Institute, Novi, MI, November 2013 

• Planniug Commissioner, Clty of Pontiac, :MI, 11/2012 - present 
• Board Mombet•, Baldwin Ceutor, Pontiac, MJ, 2005 • 2013 
• Committee Arpointments at SaiutJoseplt Mercy-Oakland, Pontiac, MI 

- Member, Chief Bxecutiv,e Officer Arlviso1-y Committee, 200?. 
- Member, Speaker's Burc11t1, 1991-8/20 l2 
• Founder and Cl\air; Hospital Grievance Conmtlttee, 2003 - 8/2012 

Honored !IS one of~e top donor fuoilitators, Miohigan Ey'e Banki 2000 





Objective 

Education 

Contribute to my communi!}:: by volunteering for the Pontiac Planning Commission 

2009-2012 Lawrence Techp.ological Uruvetsity. 
Master of Architecture· Profussfonal Degree Program 

• Concentration 1:it Sustainability St(1d.ies · 

Southfield, MI 

• GPA: 3.5 

2007 New Horizons Computer Learning Center Troy, MI 
Certificate pf£ompletion for Ma:cromedia Classes 

• ·web design with Dr1,;amweaver and Ffash 

200 i-200_5 Lawrence Teohuological U:riiversity · South-field, MI 
Badielot· of Science ln Architecture 

• GPA:,3-.5 
• Computer programs: Autocad 2005, .3dmax, Adobe lliust:J;atot and Photosh0p 
• Building Systems: commercial and residential 
• Structural Engineering- • 
• Landscape Design 

1997-2001 Oald:rnd Communlty College Oa:ldand County, MT 
Associate in Applied Scienc.e: Computer In.formation Systems 

• GPA: 3.7 
• Nerworking 
• Web design 

Work ½""-en.,.,·""'01'"'1c""e'-----------------'---------------------
2.005-cui:tent Alexander Bogaerts + Associates, P.C. Bloomfield Hi1ls1 MI 

• C•nstruction cb:icur:nentation 
• SPA, PDD, PUD documentation 
• Website deslgn and implementation, www.6ogaerts.us & ,vww.newconrifles.c'om 
• Head of th¢ ITT depai:trnent · 
• Code Researqh 
• Presentation work: tendering elevations {l.nd gite plans 
• Specllkatlons and materials research 

2001-2006 Oaldand Hills Equestrian Center 
1999-2001 Riding Instructor (Self-employed.) 
1997~1999 Springbrook.Stables 

• Taught all aspects of equine care 

Oakland 'Ibwnship, MI 
Macomb Township, MI 

Sterling Heights, MI 

• Eyaluated and trained horses for sale 01· purchase . 
• Job required extensive knowledge and communication skills 
• Taught dasses containing 1-4 smdeots rmgin~ in ages from 6-60 years. 
e Competed and trni;ned students Jn Htmter/Jumper sbows wi_thin Midwest 

2000-2001 Health Improvement Network S,;m.th.field, MI 
0 Performed o-£Ece and clerical' tash: typed d.ictatio'tis and filed paperwotk: 

1999-2000 Goldner-Walsh Nursery . Pontiac, rv:rr 
0 Provided friendly-ctJStomer service 
• Helped .propagate n:ew plants and cared for existing 

1996-1997 Ra,.etrack Veter.i:naty Services _ . . Livonia, MI 
• Performed office and clerical tasks: helped with billing and handled collecti0t1s 
" Asslsted veterinarians 
• Dev-doped x-rays .and sterilized ~qulpment 

1· 



E. Ashley Fegley 

Pol;l.tiao. Ml 48241 

August 3, 201& 

Building, Safety and Plan.rung .Division 
City Hall 
47450 WoodwardAvenu~ 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 
248,758.2816 

RE: City of Pontiao Planning. Commissioner Appointment 

Dear Mayor Watennan, 
For the past fifteen years, I have called Pontiac home. I love the area, h1y neighb.ors and · 

the eon:rrntmify. I a,m invested in the City of Pontiac and would like to continue to serve.the City , 
as a m~mber of the Pontiac Planning Commission. . 

I have been working in .the build,ing industry as a Project Manager a:t Alexander V. 
Bogaerts + Associates_ for ove~ 13 years. The :fitm has a vast :experience wj.th a ~de, :variety, of 
b~iilding typologies for over 39 year~. It has specializ~ in i;6s1dentia1 housing sµch as DUsf:om 
single family, production __ single family, condoruil1iums1 Jil)artme,nts, .. and seniQ+ h9usi:Iig but aiso . 

· takes on projeots'that are commercial, qffice and renovations. Beipg _a small litm, I hav.e been :· - · · · 
able to work on ma.11-y or these types of project$:. Clli:rently, I havd)ti.gun taking the ARE 5,0 · · _: · ·: · 
NCARB tests to earn my Mchitectural Licens.e ,atid hope to have.it~ year, I thoroughly enjoy •, 

· my occupation and believe my experienc~ is an as13et to the co:m:ntl;ision Imd the City of Pontiac. 

?~~~ 
E. Ashley Fegley 



Cl1Y OF PONTIAC 

CANDIDATE QUESTIONNAIRE 
BOARDS & COMMISSIONS 

COUNCIL DISTRICT_· ______ _ 

DATE ____ A_u~gu'--st_3_,_2_0_1_8 ______ _ 

NAME. ____ E_._As_hl~ey,__Fe~gl~e~y ___________________ _ 

ADDRESS, _ ____:11!~--~------------ ZiP 48341 

PHONE (business or cell) 248.334.5000 PHONE (home)•_A~-~~I_ __ _ 

EMAIL'--__ ___,,_,,. 

The C(ty of Pontiac wishes to thank you for your interest in serving as a Citizen Representative on a Bo1;1rd or 
0ommlss!on. Your Candidate.Questionnaire wlll be kept on file'and entered for consfderation for posted openings on 
any Board or Commlsslon that you expressed an Interest In for a period of two years, Please feel free to submit an 
updated Candidate Questionnaire at any time. · 

Please be advised that the Information contained In this Questionnaire is not confidential, and will be reviewed by 
the Mayor, City Council and other appropriate pe·rsonnel as vacanctes or openings occur on the various Boards or 
Commissions. Page 2 of this Candfdate Questionnaire may also be fncluded In any City Council Meeting Agenda 
Packet which ls published and made ava!lable for public Inspection in print and on the Internet. Your address, 
phone numbers and e-mail, contained here on Page 1 wm not be pu~lished ln an Agenda Packet 

Information relative to the below boards or commfssions can be found on the City's webpage at 
www.gontfac.mLus. 

BOARDS/COMMISSIONS ON WHICH YOU WANT TO SERVE: 

Appointed bv City 0ounc[I 

D Board of Appeals 
• Income Tax Board of Review 
D Zoning Board of Appeals 
• Board of Review 
D General Employee Retirement System 

Rev01/14 

Appointed by Mayor, 
Confirmed by City Council 

D Tax Increment Financing Authority/Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority · 

0 Hlstorlc District Commission, No Councll Connrrna(fon 

0 Local Officers Compensation Commission 
D Arts commission 
0 Cornt1.ructlon Code Board of Appeals, No COijncll ConOrinallon 

Ii Planning Commission 
• Housing Commission, NoCounollConn,matlon 

Page 1of2 



PONTIAC RESiD.E'(l!T FOR; _+_/_-_l.;..,.5 ____ years 

OCCUPATION ____ P_r_o~j_ec_t_M_a_n_a=g~er_at_a_n_Ar_c_h_it_·e_ct_u_r~a,l_F_lr_,tn ____________ _ 

INTERESTS/REASONSjQ1.JALIFICATIONS 

· I have enjoyed applying my professlomil experi~nce to serving on the Pontiac Planning 
Commiss1,on and would like to contlr;iue doing so. 

80ARDS/bOMMISSJQNS/COMMITTEES ON WHlCHY.OU HAVE SERVED (UST MUNICIPALITIES AND DATES) 

Pomiac Plannl.ag Com.mission 2011 - cnrrent . 

. ELECTIVE OFFICES THAT YOU HAVE HELD 

None 

~"' 

OTHER ORGANIZATIONS PERTJ{'JENT EDUCATION H0881ES/INTERESTS . 

2012-2016 - Pontiac Youth Assistance website design and implementariot1 
2014-2017 - Destination Imagiriatlon ream ccx1.ch at Martel] Elementary in Troy, MI 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

Please return completed form to: City of Pontiac, Clerk's Office, 47 45o·woodward Aven:tJe1 Pontiac, Ml 4<;3342or fax to . 
243. 7 58 .4 744 or click the e-mall tab on the first page to send fo,ri'n by a.mail. 

DlSCLOSURE Of POTENTIAL·OONFUCT OF INTERE:ST 

In order to avoid any po.tential ·conflict bf Interest,.·!, .the undersfgr.ied, .agree not to be Involved in any recommendations or 
decision rnaJ<lng regarding any agency(les) or entlty(/es) fur which I serve In tile following capacity(ies) which may contract or 
subcontract with the City of Pontiac. 

Agency: Alexander V. Bogaerts + Associates; P.C. 

Capaonyln ~h~.·ar1,.qgei-
s1gnature: 'c:"'. . • . ·. . . 
Date: z3 -$·-Z@! ¥! ·· . : .. • . 

Rev01/14 · Page2 6f2. 





CITY OF PONTIAC 
Department of Building Safety & Planning 

Planning Division 
47450 Woodward Ave" Pontiac, Michigan 48342 

Telephone: (248) 758-2800 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

HONORABLE MAYOR, COUNCIL PRESIDENT AND CITY COUNCIL 

VERN GUSTAFSSON - PLANNING MANAGER 

DONOVAN SMITH - CITY PLANNER 

THROUGH THE OFFICE OF DEPUTY MAYOR, JANE BAIS-DISESSA 

RESOLUTION TO SCHEDULE PUBLIC HEARING 

2020-2024 CITY OF PONTIAC PARKS & RECREATION MASTER PLAN 

JANUARY 8, 2020 

The City of Pontiac is in the final stages of completing the 2020-2024 Parks & Recreation Master Plan. To 

ensure the 2020-2024 Parks & Recreation Master Plan is completed, adopted, and the city remains eligible 

for DNR Trust Fund Grants for the year 2020 through 2024, the Planning Division has provided a schedule 

to accomplish this by February 1, 2020 Department of Natural Resources deadline. 

In compliance with the Department of Natural Resources (DNR) requirements for Parks & Recreation 

Masterplan adoption, the Planning Division is requesting the Pontiac City Council to hold a Public Hearing 

on January 21, 2020. This process allows the city to take advantage of the potential funding and grant 

benefits as well as adopting a sound Parks & Recreation Master Plan that is designed as a guide for 

improving our community health and wellness programs and our city park systems. 

The Planning Division request the following action of City Council at the regular schedule meeting January 

14, 2020: 

1. Request to schedule Public Hearing for January 2l5t 

2. Public Hearing and Resolution for adoption on January 21st 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
Department of Building Safety & Planning 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

Planning Division 
47450 Woodward Ave• Pontiac, Michigan 48342 

Telephone: (248) 758-2800 

City of Pontiac Parks and Recreation Master Plan 2020-2024 

For the City of Pontiac, Oakland County, Michigan 

Resolution to Schedule Public Hearing 

WHEREAS, that the Pontiac City Council will hold a PUBLIC HEARING at its Regular Meeting on January 14, 

2020 beginning at 6:30 p.m. at the Pantie City Hall, 47450 Woodward Avenue Pontiac, Michigan 48342 in 

the upper level Council Chambers to receive comments on the proposed 2020-2024 City of Pontiac Parks 

and Recreation Master Plan. 

WHEREAS, the 2020-2024 Parks & Recreation Master Plan can be viewed on the City of Pontiac Website: 

http://www.pontiac.mi.us/departments/community_development/planning_and_zoning/parks_and_rec 

reation_masterplan.php 

WHEREAS, NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that the text of the proposed Parks and Recreation Master Plan 

may be examined at the Pontiac Public Library, 60 East Pike Street, Pontiac, Michigan 48342 and Pontiac 

City Hall 47450 Woodward Avenue Pontiac1 Michigan 48342 during normal business hours. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that a Public Hearing for the City of Pontiac 2020-2024 Parks & 

Recreation Master Plan be held on January 14, 2020 beginning at 6:30 p.m. at the Council Chambers in 

Pontiac City Hall, 47450 Woodward Avenue, Pontiac, Michigan 48342. 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
Department of Building Safety & Planning 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

Planning Division 
47450 Woodward Ave• Pontiac, Michigan 48342 

Telephone: (248) 758-2800 

City of Pontiac Parks and Recreation Master Plan 2020-2024 

For the City of Pontiac, Oakland County, Michigan 

Resolution for 2020-2024 Parks and Recreation Master Plan Adoption 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac has undertaken a planning process to determine the recreation and natural 

resource conservation needs and desires of its residents covering a five-year period for the years 2020 

through 2024, and 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac began the process of developing a citywide recreation plan in accordance 

with the most recent guidelines developed by the Department of Natural Resources that were made 

available to local communities, and 

WHEREAS, residents of the City of Pontiac were provided with a well-advertised opportunity during the 

development of the draft plan to express opinions, ask questions, and discuss all aspects of the parks and 

recreation plan, and 

WHEREAS, the public was given a well-advertised opportunity and reasonable accommodations to review 

the final draft plan for a period of at least 30 days, and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on January 14, 2020 at Pontiac City Hall to provide an opportunity 

for all residents of the planning area to express opinions, ask questions, and discuss all aspects of the City 

of Pontiac Parks and Recreation Master Plan 2020-2024, and 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac has developed the plan as a guideline for improving recreation and 

enhancing natural resource conservation for the City of Pontiac, and 

WHEREAS, after the public hearing, the Pontiac City Council voted to adopt the City of Pontiac Parks and 

Recreation Master Plan 2020-2024. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED the Pontiac City Council hereby adopts the City of Pontiac Parks and 

Recreation Master Plan 2020-2024. 


	20200110135145535
	20200110135246865
	20200110135341465



